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Seeing through the day-to-day tasks of service delivery and maintaining our
critical focus on delivering high levels of customer satisfaction every day, | am
personally vitalized by the opportunity that we see to integrate our data center
and infrastructure assets with our monitoring and problem management tools and
our content delivery technologies to provide a “Compute and Delivery Fabric”
which will leverage the virtualization tools that are now available. We anticipate
that this initiative will allow us to provide even better and more efficient services
to our customers while delivering both margin improvement and new revenue
opportunities. The virtualization of our infrastructure, technologies and global
delivery capability will be a primary goal for us this year.

The entire senior management team wishes to express our genuine appreciation
to the hardworking, energetic and committed group of more than 550 worldwide
NaviSite employees. Without the dedication of each of these employees, we
could not have achieved the milestones that we have already passed nor would
we be positioned to execute on our future vision.

Continuing with my belief that we are a technology company and a people
business, 1 would like to express my pride in the achievements that our
employees have accomplished this year. With the tremendous talent that we
have in our company, | am more confident than ever that we will continue to
maximize the value that NaviSite provides for our customers, partners
employees and shareholders.

Sincerely,

& AA—

Arthur Becker
Chief Executive Officer
November 8, 2006
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Dear NaviSite Shareholders: .

i}
Fiscal 2006 m‘arked a new milestone for our company As fiscal 2005 was
dedicated to the completion of the integration of our previous acquisitions, in
fiscal 2006, we directed our efforts toward accelerating our revenue growth which
began to be realrzed in the second half of the fiscal year.. We achieved key
financial mltestones with our twelfth consecutive quarter of positive EBITDA, the
achievement of record EBITDA in the fourth quarter and the repayment of our
maturing short term obligations in April with a new five year facility.- We also .-
increased our investment in our Content Delivery service offering, upgraded and
expanded our, Professional Services organization, continued to expand the
operations and capabilities in our Delhi office and built.a successful inside sales
and business |development group. We continue to focus on becoming the
leading Srngle Source Provider of Application Solutions for the mid-sized
enterprise market We are encouraged by the acceptance of our comprehensrve
suite of serwcles and are particularly excited by the increased interest in Software
as a Service by both vendors and customers and in our Content Delivery
offering. We belleve that successful companies in our market will be required to

offer a complete set of services to meet customer demands.

Fiscal Year 2006 Highlights:

During fiscal 2006 we redirected our efforts from integration and organization to
sharpening our customer-centric approach and to embracing the exciting
opportunity of integrating our data centers, network and application management
tools into one|compute and delivery fabric. While continuing to build the internal
capabilities that will drive operating efficiencies and revenue growth, our work in
fiscal 2006 aIIowed us to re-articulate our message from that of a provider of a
broad suite of| services to that of a Single Source Provider focused on the needs
of our middle market customers who will benefit by using one vendor to fulfill*
many of their. IT requirements. Concurrent with this market based approach, we
are transformrng our delivery capabilities to feverage our diverse collection of
computing assets into one integrated fabric to compute and deliver for our
customers.

The Application, Hosting and Content Delivery Group

' Srgned 212 new clients -
Booked over $2.1 million of incremental monthly recurring revenue
Increased bookings by more than 40% over fiscal 2005
Establlshed our inside sales force and business development team
Increased the number of 1SV’s that use our Software as a Servrce
solution for their end users to 70
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4 RN -PART I .
SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS :

Thls Annual Repoit on Form 10-K tontains forvard- -looking statements within the meaning of Section 21E of
the Seciifities E. vchange Act of 1934 ,:as amended, and Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, that
involve risks and unceriainties. All statements other than statements of historical information provided herein are
Sforward-locking statements and may contain information about financial results, economic conditions, trends and
known uncertainties. Our actual results could differ materially from those discussed in the forward-looking
statements as a result of a number.of factors, which include those discussed in this section and elsewhere in this
report and the risks discussed in our other fil lmgs with the Securmes and Exchange Commission. Readers are
cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements, which reflect management’s analys:s
Jjudgment, belief or expéctation only as of the date hereof. Investors are warned that actual results may differ
materially from management’s expectations. We undertake no obligation to publicly reissue or ipdate these
forward-looking statemenis to reflect events or circumstances that arise after the date hereof. ;

N . ‘ . . .

Item 1. Business s vt R -

OurBusmess e e n

' a0 T gt S . . * f R '

' NaviSite, lnc provides Apphcauon Management Hosting and Professional services for mid- to large -sized
organizations. Leveraging our set of technologies and subject matter expertise, we deliver cost-effective, flexible
solutions that provide responsive and -predictable levels of service for our customers’ businesses. We provide
services -throughout the information technology lifecycle. We are dedicated to delivering quality services and

meeting rigorous standards, including SAS 70, Microsoft Gold, and Oracle Certified Partner certiﬁcations. )

We beheve that by leveraging economies of scale utilizing our global délivery approach, industry best practtces
and process automation, our services enable our customers to achieve significant cost savings. In addition, we are
able to léverage our application services platform, NaviView™, to enable software to be delivered on-demand over
the Intemnet, providing an alternative delivery model to the traditional Ilcensed software model. As the platform
provider for an increasing number of independent software vendors (ISVs) we enable soluuons and serwces toa
wider and growing customer base. .

Ou1: services include: ) ] . )

Appltcatwn Management - S ' '

. .+ Application management services — Defined services provnded for specific packaged apphcanons that are,
incremental to managed services. Services can include monitoring, diagnostics and problem resolution.
Frequently sold as a follow-on to a professional services project.

. L i R ¢ |
» Software as a Service — Enablement‘of Software as a Service to the ISV commumty et

. Developmem Servnces — Services include. eBusmessteb solutions, enterprise integration, business mtel-
ligence, content management and user interface design. Coa

+ Custom': Serv1ces-—~Serv1ces mclude custom apphcatlon managemenl and remote mfraslruclure
managemenl ' ' L ‘ - .

Lo ' £ . . LI

- . . - .
1

, . -y ' él‘._'|—|‘ [

Hosting Services . S . . oy

« Managed services — Support provided for hardware and software located in a data center. Services include

business continuity and disaster recovery, connectivity, content distribution, database administration and

< performance tuning, desktop support, hardware management, monitoring, network managemenl security
management .server and ‘operating system management and storage management.
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« Content Delivery — Includes the delivery of software electromcally using NaviSite technology to manage
verston Control and accelerated content distribution.

* Colocation —f Physical space offered in a data center. In addition to providing the physical space, NaviSite
offers environmental support, specified power with back-up power generation and network connectivity

" options. . |

[ ’

Professional Services

¢ For leading exflterprise software applications such as Or:icle, PeopleSeft, ID Edwards and Siebel Systemis,
“"NaviSite Proffssional Services helps organizations plan, implement and maintain these applications.

+ Optimize scalable, business-driven software solutions. Specific services include planning, implementation,
' maintenance, Pptimizalion and compliance services.- -

. ; ; Lo . . . . .
We provide these services to a range of vertical industries, including financial services, healthcare and
pharmaceutical, manufacturmg and distribution, publishing, media and communications, business services, public
sector and software, lthrough our direct sales force and sales channel relationships.

Our managed application services are facilitated by our proprietary NaviView™ collaborative ‘application
management platform. Our NaviView"™ platform enables us to provide highly efficient, effective and customized
management of enterprise applications and information technology. Comprised of a suite of third-party and
proprietary products; NaviView™ provides tools designed specifically to meet the needs of customers- who
outsource their IT needs. We also use this platform for electronic software distribution for software vendors
and to enable software to be delivered on-demand over the Intemet, providing an alternative delivery model to the
traditional licensed software model.

We believe that the Combmatlon of NaviView™ with our physncal infrastructure and technical staff gives us a
unique ablllty to provision on-demand appllcanon services for software providers for use by their customers.
NaviView™ is apphcanon and operating platform neutral as its on-demand provisioning capability is not dependent
on the individual software application. Designed to enable enterprise software applications to be provisioned and
used as an on-demand solution, the NaviView™ technology allows us to offer new solutions to our software vendors
and new products to’ our current customers. '

We currently operate in 13 data centers in the United States and one data center in the United Kingdom. We
believe that our data centers and infrastructure have the capacity necessary to expand our business for the
foreseeable future. Our services combine our developed infrastructure with established processes and procedures
for delivering hosting and application management services. Our high availability infrastructure, high performance
monitoring systems,:and proactive and collaborative problem resolution and change management processes are
designed to ldemlfy|and address potentially crippling problems before they are able to disrupt our customers’
operations. |

We currently serwce approximately 940 hosted customers. Our hosted customers typically enter into service
agreements for a term of one to three years, which provide for monthly payment installments, providing us with a
base of recurring revenue. Our revenue increases by adding new customers or providing additional services to
existing customers. Qur overall base of recurring revenue is affected by new customers, renewals and terminations
of agreements with insting customers.

We were formed in 1996 within CMGI, Inc., our former majority stockholder, to support the networks and host
Web sites of CMGI its subsidiaries and several of its affiliated companies. In 1997, we began offering and
supplying Web site hostmg and management services to companies not affiliated with CMGL. We were incorporated
in Delaware in December [998. In October 1999, we completed our initial public offering of common stock and
remained a majoﬁtyiowned subsidiary of CMGI until September 2002, at which time ClearBlue Technologies, Inc.,
or CBT, became our majority stockholder. :

* In December: 2002, we acquired all of the issued and outstanding stock of ClearBlue Technologies
Management" Inc., or CBTM, a subsidiary of CBT, which previously had acquired assets from the bankrupt
estate of ApphedTheory Corporation- related 1o application management and application hosting services.

: ]
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. This acquisition added application management and development capabilities to our managed application services.

¢ In February 2003, we acquired Avasta, Inc., a provider of application management services, adding
automated application and device monitoring software capabilities to our managed.application services.

» In April 2003, we acquired Conxion Corporation, a provider of application hosting, content and electronic
software distribution and security services. This acquisition added proprietary content delivery software and
related network agreements to our managed application services and managed infrastructure services.

» In May 2003, we acquired assets of Interliant, Inc. related to managed messaging, application hosting and
application development services. This acquisition added messaging-specific services and capabilities and
IBM Lotus Domino expertise, and formed the core of our managed messaging services.

* In August 2003, we acquired assets of CBT related to colocation, bandwidth, security and disaster recovery
services, enhancing our managed infrastructure services and adding physical plant assets. Specifically, we
acquired all of the outstanding shares of six wholly-owned subsidiaries of CBT with data centers located in

. Chicago, Illinois; Las Vegas, Nevada; Los Angeles, California; Milwaukee, Wisconsin; Oakbrook, Illinois;
and Vienna, Virginia and assumed the revenue and expenses of four additional wholly-owned subsidiaries of
CBT with data centers located in Dallas, Texas; New York, New York; San Francisco, California; and
Santa Clara, California, which four entities we later acquired. '

* In June 2004, we completed the acquisition of substantially all of the assets and liabilities of Surebridge, Inc.,
a privately held provider of managed application services for mid-market companies. This acquisition
broadened our managed application services, particularly in the areas of financial management, supply chain
management, human reSources management and customer relationship management.

We have made significant steps to improve the results of our operations. Due to improvements we have'made in
our overall business, the repayment of our maturing debt and our successful ﬁnancmg with Silver Point Finance and
the avallablllty to us of committed lines of credit, our audit report no longer contains the opinion of our mdependem
registered public accounting firm, KPMG LLP, that our recurring losses as well a$ other factors raise substanual
doubt about our ability to continue as a going concern.

Our Industry

The.dramatic growth in Internet usage and the enhanced functionality, accessibility and secusity of Internet-
enabled appllcauons have made conducting business on the Internet increasingly attractive. Many businesses are
using Internet-enabled mformatmn technology infrastructure and applications to enhance their core business
operatlons increase efficiencies and remain competitive. Internet-enabled information technology infrastructure
and applications extend beyond Web sites to software such as financial, email, enterprise resource planning, supply
chain management and customer relationship management applications. Organizations have become mcreasmgly
dependent on these applications and they have evolved into important componenits of their businesses. In addition,
we believe that the pervasiveness of the Internet-and quality of network infrastructure, along with the dramatic
decline in the pricing of computing technology and network bandwidth, have made the software as a service model
a viable one. We believe that the recent.adoption of alternative software licensing models by software industry
market leaders is driving other software venders in thls direction and, consequently, generating strong mdustry
growlh

_As enterprises seek fo remain compeiitive and improve proﬁtability, we believe they will continue to
implement increasingly sophisticated Internet-enabled applications and delivery models. Some of the potential
benefits of these applications and delivery models include the ability to:

* inicrease operating efficiencies and reduce costs,

ot

* build and enhance customer re!atlonshlps by pr0v1dmg Internet- enabled customer service and technical
supporl :

B v . . - D
+ manage vendor and supplier relatlonshlps through lntemet enabled technologles such as online tralmng and
online sales and marketing; . :
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 communicate jand conduct business more rapidly and cost-effectively wnh customers,. suppliers and
. employees wolrldw:de and

v ;‘ [ A oy

«’improve servie_e and'lower the cost of software ownership by the adoption of new-Intemet-enabled software
delivery models. . . :
il

i+ L . St o oo
i

These benefits have driven increased use of Internet- enabled information techno]ogy infrastructure and
applications, which m "turn’ has created a strong demand " for specialized information tec:hnologyl support and
applications expertlse. An increasing number of businesses are choosing to outsource the hosting and management
of lhese‘applications.: - | . »

e,
L -

The trend towards outsourced hosting and management of infermation technology infrastructure and appli-
cations by mid—'markél companies and organizations is driven by a number of factors, including:

. developments by ma_[or hardware and software vendors lhat facilitate outsourcmg,

»-'the need to lmprove the reliability, avallabthty and overall performance of lnteme{ enabled appllcauons as

they increase m 1mponance and complexity; - - : : : P ‘
' t . r -

« the neecl to focus on core busmess operations; -

.* challenges and costs of hiring, training and retaining application engineers and information technology
.+ . employees with the requisite range of information technology expertise; and .. .

] J,rlu

+ the i mcreasmg complexlty of managmg the operauons of Intemet enabled appllcauons

Notwnthstandmg increasing demand for these services, we believe the number of providers | has decreased over
the past three years, ananly as aresult of industry consolidation, We believe this conso]:dauon trend will continue
and will benefit a small number of serv1ce providers that have the resources and lnfrastructure to cost effectively
provnde lhe sealablhty, performance rehablllty and business continuity that, customers expecl

o

Our Strategy |

Our goal is lolbeeome the leading provider of outsourced IT services for mid-market companies and
organizations. Key. elements of our strategy are to: . . 1 . '

Prowde Erceliem Customer Serwce We are committed to providing all of our cuslomers w1th a hlgh level of
customer support. We beheve that, through the acquisition of several businesses we have 'had the berefit"of
eonsohdaung best of| Lbreed aceount managemenl and cuslomer support praetlces lo ensure lhat we are ach1evmg [hIS
goal ’

A . .
v i ! . - PN ' o h [T

Expand Our-Gl%Jba! ‘Delivery Capabilities. 'We believe that global delivery is an integral piece of ourlong™

term strategy in that-it directly maps to our overall goal of service and operational excellence for our customers. By

leveraging a global delivery solution, we believe that we will be able to continue to deliver superior services and
technical expertise at a competitive cost and enhance the value proposmon for our customers. R
' 5

lmprove Opem;mg Margins Thrr)ugh Eﬂ' fciencies. We have made 51gn1ﬁcant lrnprovemenls to our overa]l
cost structure dunng the last twelve months. We intend to continue to improve operating margins as we grow
revenue and 1mprove the efficiency of cur operations. As we grow, we will take advantage of our infrastructure
capacity, our NaviView™ platform and our automated processes. Due to the fixed cost nature. of our mfrastructure
increased customer revenue results in incremental improvements in our operating: margins, -

Grow Tlimugh[ Disciplined Acquisitions. We intend to derivé a portion of our future growth lhrough
acquisitions of technologle‘; products and companies that improve our services and strengthen our. position in
our larget markets. By utilizing our experience in acquiring and effectively integrating complememary companies,
we can eliminate dup];cauve operations, reduce costs and improve our operating margins. We intend Lo acquire
companies that pr0v1de valuable technical capabilities and: ‘eniry into target markets, and allow us to take advantage
of our existing techmcal and physical infrastructure. o Coe

|




Continue to Broaden Our Service Offerings. We intend to broaden our service offering to compete-more
effectively with the larger IT outsourcers. We believe that by growing our professional services, we will more
effectively deliver to our customers a full range of services for Oracle, PeopleSoft, J.D. Edwards and Siebel Systems
solutions. We beliéve that these services will help our customers achieve peak effectlveness with their systems. We
believe that our abllny to host appllcauons in addition to providing profcssmnal services will dlsungmsh us from
our competitors, as companies look to use one vendor for both of these'services. "™ = - Cy
b

Qur Services
-,

We offer our customers a broad range of managed IT services that can be cleployed qu1ckly and cost effectively.

Our management expertise allows us to meet an expanding set of needs as our customers” applications become more

complex. Our experience and capabilities save our customers the time and cost of developing expertise in-house,

and we increasingly serve as the sole manager of our customers’ outsourced applications. ,
Application Management Services N

+ Application Management J

We provide implementation and operational services for packaged applications, including PeopleSoft
Enterprise, JDE Enterprise One, Oracle E-Business Suite and Siebel CRM. Application management
services are available in one of our data centers or via remote management on a customer’s premises. Our
messaging services include the monitoring and management of messaging applications, such as Microsoft
Exchange and Lotus Domino, allowing customers to outsource their critical messaging applications.
Customers can host their applications in one of our data centers or keep their sefvers in their own facility,
which we monitor and manage remotely. [n addition, our customers can choose to.use dedicated servers or
shared servers. We provide expert services to assist our customers with the migration from legacy or
proprietary messaging systems to Microsoft Exchange or Lotus Domino. We also have expertise to
. customize messaging.-and collaborative applications. We offer user pr0v151on1ng, spam filtering, virus
.+ - protection and.enhanced momtonng and reporting. e Vi o
¢ Softwafe- as-a-Service ¢ Tt T o FE !
Using our NaviView™ collaborative application management platform, we enable software vendors to
provide their applications in an on-demand or subscription model.

» Custom Services helps organizations plan, develop, and manage their complete ponfoho of custom and web-
based applications.

« Development Services

+ eBusiness/Web Solutions

« Enterprise Integration

* Business Intelligence

« Content Management T

« User Interface Design -~ .~ ¢ ' " e PR
\ ! o \ . . . '

. Managcmént Services : l ‘ ' ' ' o

» Application Management

* Remote Infrastructure Management

Hosting Services

B - ., oL . -, .
NaviSite Hosting Services, from application and managed services to colocation and software-as-a-service,
provide highly-available and secure ongoing technology solutions for our customers’ critical IT resources.

7
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.. Managed SeWices

w4

We prov1de fully managed apphcatlon hosting services. We manage data centers, Internet connectivity,
. servers and networkmg, security, (including firewalls, virtual private networks and intrusion detection),
storage, lpad. balancers, database clusters, operating systems, and Web and application servers. We also
provide bundled offenngs packaged as content delivery services. Specific services include:

* Business Clominuity and Disaster Recovery

| . Connectivit:y

..+ Content Di;st‘rilgtltion ' '
* Database F%dministfation and Performance Tuning « Co i
¢ Desktop Slljpport‘ ‘
+ Hardware Management
. Monitoring’
* Network Nllanagement :
. _Secunty J .
+ Server and Operatmg Managemem : o
. Storage Mgmagement '
Content De]i;'ery Acceleration

. .
Colocation |

Our data centers provide our colocation customers with.a secure place to gain rapid access to the Internet,
without havmg to build their own physical infrastructure. Our data centers include rmultiple levels of security
with camera survelllance redundant uninterruptible power supply, heating, ventilation and :nr conditioning,
monitored customer access 24 hours a day, seven days a week, and advanced fire suppressmn Specific
" services mclude
. Connectlv_lty

. Equipmen}
* Power

!
* Remote Hlands

» Space l

» Security |

f

. i,
Professional Services

For leading enterpnse software applications such as Oracle, PeopleSoft, JD Edwards and Siebel, NaviSite
Professional Servnccs helps organizations plan, implement, maintain, and optimize scalable business-driven
software solutions. !

¢ Planning Se;rvices
 Technical Architecture Design
* Implementation Services
* Project _H‘lealth_Chgck and Readiness Assessment

» Mergers, 'Acquisitions and Spin-Offs ' .
| 8
!




- * Maintenance Services o : !
». Application Upgraaes
. Optimization Services _ ' .

= Application Optimizatiory

., Cornpli'ance/Government
» Compliance and Governance for Enterprise Applications

Al of our ‘service offerings can be customized to meet our customers’ particular needs. Our proprietary
NaviView™ platform enables us to offer valuable flexibility w1thout the significant costs associated with traditional
customization.

v <,
NaviView™ Plaiform

Our proprietary NaviView™ platform is a critical element of each of our service offerings. Our NaviView™
platform allows us to work with our customers’ information technology teams, systems integrators and other third
parties to provide our services to customers. Our NaviView™ platform and its user interface help ensure full
transparency to the customer and seamless ope'ration of outsourced applications and infrastructure, including:
(l) hardware, operating system, database and application monitoring; (i) event management; ‘(ili) problem
resélution management; and (iv} integrated change and conﬁguranon management tools. Our NaviView™ platform
includes:

Evem Detection System — Our proprietary technology allows our operations personnel 1o efficiently process
alerts across heterogeneous computing environments. This system collects and aggrégates data from all of the
relevant systems management software packages utilized by an mformatlon technology orgamzatlon '

Synthetic Transactmn Monitoring — Our proprietary synthelic transactlon methods -emulate the end -user
expenence and momtor for applrcauon latency .or malfunctions that affect user productivity.

Amomared Remedtanon — Our NaviView™ platform allows us to proacnvely monitor, identify and fix
common problems associated with the applications we manage on behalf of our customers, These automated fixes
help ensure availability and reliability by remediating known issues in real time, and keeping applications up and
running while underlying problems or potential problems are diagnosed. ‘

Componem lnfonnanon Manager— This central reposntory prowdes a unified vrew of drsparate network,
database, application and hardware information.

Escalation Manager — This workflow automation technology allows us to streamline routine tasks and
escalate critical issues in a fraction of the time that manual procedures require. Escalation manager initiates specific
orders and tasks based on pre-defined conditions, ensuring clear, consistent communications with our customers,

Our Infrastructure

* Our infrastructure has been designed specifically to meet the demanding technical requirements of providing
our services (o our customers. We securely provide our services across Windows, Unix and Linux platforms. We
believe our infrastructure, together with-our trained and experienced-staff, eiable us to offer market-leading levels
of service backed by high service level guarantees. :

Network Operations Centers — We monitor the operations .of our infrastructure and customer applications
from our own state-of-the-art network operations centers. Network and system management and monitoring tools
continuously monitor our network and server performance. Our network operations center performs first- level
problem identification, validation and resolution, We have redundant network operations centers in New Delhi,
India and in Andover, Massachusetts that are staffed 24 hours a day, seven days a week with network, security,
Windows, Unix and Linux personnel. We have technical support personnel located in our facilities in San Jose,
California; Syracuse, New York; Houston, Texas and India, who provide initial and escalated support, 24 hours.a
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day, seven days a week for our customers. Qur engineers and support persennel are promptly alerted to problems,
and we have established procedures for rapidly resolving any technical issues that arise.

Dara Centers —' We currently operate in 13 data centers located in the United States and one data center
located in the United Kingdom. Our data centers incorporate technically sophisticated components which are
designed to be fault- Ioleram The components used in our data centers include redundant core routers, redundant
core switching hubs and secure virtual local area networks. We utilize the equipment and tools necessary for our
data center operations, including our infrastructure hardware, networking and software products, from industry
leaders such as BM(iJ Cisco, Dell, EMC, Hewlett-Packard, Microsoft, Oracle and Sun Microsystems.

Internet Connecnwty We have redundant hlgh-capacny Internet connections to providers such as Global
Crossing, Level 3, Cogem AT&T and XO Communications. We have deployed direct private transit and peering
Internet connections| to utilize the provider's peering capabilities and to enhance routes via their networks to
improve global perfofnnance. Our private transit system enables us to provide fast, reliable access for our customers’
information technology infrastructure and applications.

Sales and Marketing

Direct Sales — Our direct sales professmnals are located in the Umted States and the United ngdom Our
sales teams meet with customers to understand and 1dent1fy their 1ndw1dual business requirements, then to translate
those requirements mto tailored services. Our sales teams are also supported by customer relationship managers
who are assigned to specnﬁc accounts to identify and take advantage of cross-selling opportunities. To date, most of
our sales have been'reahzed through our direct sales force. .

Channel Relanonsh:ps— We also sell our services through third parties, pursuant to reseller or referral
contracts with such third parties. These contracts are generally one to three years in length and provide the reseller a
discount of approximately 25% from our list price or require us to pay a referral fee, ‘ypically ranging .from
approximately 4% L"o 10% of the amounts we receive from the customer. Typically, these third parties resell our
services to their customers under their private label brand or under the NaviSite brand. In additicn, we jointly
market and sell ourjservices with the products of Progress Software. For systems integrators, our flexibility and
cost-effectiveness bolsters their application development and management services. For independent software

vendors we prov:de the opportumty to offer their software as a manag,ed service.

:

Marketing — Our marketing organization is responsible for defining our overall market strategy, generating
qualified leads and increasing our brand awareness. Our demand generation team focuses on identifying key market
opportunities and customer segments which will best match our service portfolio and creates marketing programs
which target those s%:gmems. Our marketing programs include a variety of advertising, events, direct mail and email
campaigns, pariner Imarkeling, and web-based seminar campaigns targeted at key executives and decision makers
within organizations. We are actively building general awareness of our company and our strategy through public
relations, marketing communications and product marketing. The marketing organization also supports direct and

channel sales. [ . . . .

1
Customers l
Our customers include mid-sized companies, divisions of large multi-national companies and government
agencies. Our customers operate in a wide variety of industries,-such as technology, manufacturing and distribution,
healthcare and pharmaceutical, publishing, media and communications, financial services, retail, business services
and government agencies.
1

As of July 3];1 2006, NaviSite serviced approximately 940 hosted customers.

We derived approx:mately 9%, 8% and 12% of our revenue from the New York State Department of Labor for
the fiscal years ended July 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectlvely

P
i

Other than the New York State Department of Labor, no customer represented 10% or more of our revenue for
the fiscal years eqded July 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004. Substantially all of our revenues are derived from, and
substantially all of our plants, property and equipment are located in, the United States.
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Competition ‘ e < : T , :

We compete in the outsourced lT and professnonal services markets. These markets are fragmented hlghly
compelmve and likely to be charactenzed by 1ndustry consolldauon ‘

v, e

* We'believe that participants in these markets must grow rapidly and achieve a si gmﬁcant presence to compete
effectwely We believe that the prlma:y compeltitive factors determining success in our markets include: | "~

R . T t ' e 1 . '

. quallty of services clellvered S
= ability to con31stently measure track and report operatxonal metncs
1 (3 :

* application hosting, mfrastructure and messaging management expertlse; o

* fast, redundant and reliable Internet connectivity;

. 'a‘robust infrastructure providing availability, speed, scalability and sécurity;

. comprehenswe and d:verse service offerings and umely addition of value- add services,
t ] i .

* brand recogmtlon
» strategic relationships; T o

;£ * competitive pricing; and

* adequate capltal to perrmt connnued 1nvestment m mfrastructure customer semce and support, and sales
“and marketmg

ot

- We believe that. we compete: effecuvely based on our breadth of service offenngs the strength of our

Nav1V1ew platform, our exlstmg infrastructure capacity and our pncmg :
2l . 1 LI Siw
Our current and prospective compemors mclude

* hosting and related services providers, including Data Return, LLC, Globix Corp., SAVVIS (which acquired
the Cable & Wireless business including the Exodus and Dlgltal Island businesses), IBM, AT&T and local
, and regional hosting providers;

* application services providers, ‘such as lBM [nfocrossmg, Inc., Electronic Data Systems Corp. and
'Computer Sciences Corporatlon . : ‘

« content and electromc software dlstribution providers, such as Akamai, Inc., Limelight Networks Inc.,
Digital River, Inc. and Intraware, Inc.;

» colocation providers, including SAVVIS, Equinix and Switch & Data Facilities Company, Inc.;
. messagmg providers, mcludmg Mi8, Cntleal Path, Inc., lntemoded Inc, and USA.net, Inc., and

. * professional services provnders mcludmg Oracle Consultmg Services, Accenture, Ciber, CSC CedarCre-
. stone, Deloitte Consulting, IBM and Rapidigm. ; : _ ,

Intellectual Property

We rely on a combination of trademark, service mark, copyright, patent and trade secret laws and contractual
restrictions to establish and protect our proprietary rights and promote our reputation and the growth of our business.
While it is our practice to require our employees, consultants and independent contractors to enter into agreements
containing non-disclosure, non-competition (for employees only) and non-solicitation restrictions and covenants,
and while our agreements with some of our customers and suppliers include provisions prohibiting or restricting the
disclosure of proprietary information, we cannot assure you that these contractual arrangements or the other steps
taken by us to_protect our proprietary rights will prove sufficient to prevent misappropriation of our proprietary
rights or to deter independent, third-party development of similar proprietary assets. In-addition, we offer our
services in other countries where the laws may not afford adequate protection for our proprietary rights.
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We license or lease most technologies used in our hosting and application management services: Our
technology suppliers may become subject to third-party infringement claims, or other claims or assertions, which
could result in'their inability or uniwillingness to continue to licénse their technology to us. The loss of certain of our
technologies could impair our ability to provide services to our customers or réquire us to obtain substitute
technologies that may. be of lower quality or performance standards; or at greater cost. We expect that we and our
customers increasingly.will be subject to third-party infringement claims as the number of Web sites and third-party
service providers for Internet-based businesses grows. We cannot assure you that third parties will not assert claims
atleging the infringement of service marks and trademarks against us in the future of that these claims will not be
successful, Any mfnngement claim as to our, technologies or services, regardless of jis ment, could be time-
consuming, result in} costly litigation, cause delays in service, installation or upgradés, adversely impact our
relationships with suppl_lers Or customers or require us to enter into costly -royalty or licensing agreements.
Government Regulatlon L

While there currenlly are few laws or regulations directly apphcable to the Interrietor td managed application
hosting service providers, due to the increasing popularity of the Internet and Internet-based applications, such laws
and regulations are being considered and may be adopted. These laws may cover a variety of issues including, for
example, user privacy and the pricing, characteristics and quality of products and services. The adoption or
modification of laws or regulations relating to commerce over the Internet could substantially impair the future
growth of our business or expose us to unanticipated liabilities. Moreover, the applicability of existing laws to the
Internet and managed application hosting service providers is uncertain. These existing laws could expose us to
substantial liability if they are found to be applicable to our business. For example, we offer services over the
Internet in many states in the United States and internationally and we facilitate the activities of our customers in
those jurisdictions. As a result, we may be required to qualify to do business, be subject to taxation or be subject to
other laws and regulauons in these jurisdictions, even if we do not have-a physical presence or employees or
property there. The appllcauon of existing laws and regulations to the Internet or our business; or the adoption of
any new legislation or regulations applicable to the lnternel or our business, could materiaily adversely affect our
financial condition and operating results.

Employees e . . . . o

As of July 31, 2006, we had 564 employees. Of these employees, 426 were principally engaged in operations,
50 were principally engaged in sales and marketing and 88 were principally engaged in general and administration.
None of our employees is party to a collective bargaining agreement, and we believe our relationship with our
employees is good: We also retain consultants and 1ndependent comractors on a regular basis to assist in the
completion of projécts. j

Available Information . . ‘ ,

4

We make our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and
amendments to those reports available through our Web site under “Investors”, free of charge, as soon as reasonably
practicable after wé file such material with, or furnish it to, the Securities and Exchange Commission. Our Internet
address is http://www.navisite.com. The contents of our Web site are not incorporated by reference in this annual
report on Form 10 K or any other report filed with or furnished to the SEC.

Item 1A. Risk Facmrs

- We operate m a rapldly changing env:ronment that mvolves a number of rlsks some of which are beyond our
control. Forward-looking statements in this report and those made from time to time by us through our senior
management are made pursuant to the safe harbor-provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of
1995.. Forward-looking statements concerning the expected future revenues, earnings or financial results.or
concerning .project plans, performance, or development of products.and services, as well as other estimates
related to future operations are necessarily only estimates of future results and we cannot assure you that actual
results will not m:liten'ally differ from expectations. Forward-looking staternents represent management’s current
expectations and are inherently uncertain. We do- not-undertake any obligation to update forward-looking
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statements, If any of the following risks actually occurs, our business, financial condition and operating results
could be matenally adversely affected.

We have a htstm'y of losses and may never achieve or sustain profi tabthty We have never been profitable
and may never become profitable, As of July 31, 2006, we had incurred losses since our incorporation resulting in an
accumulated deficit of approximately $469.9 million. During the fiscal year ended July 31, 2006, we had a net loss
of approx1mately $13.9 million. We ant|c1pate that we will-continue to incur net losses in the future. As a result we
can give no assurance that we will achieve profitability or be capable of sustaining: proﬁlable operations.:

Our ﬁnancmg agreement with Silver Point Finance includes various covenants and restrtcnons that may
negan vely affect our liguidity and our ability to operate and manage our business. Asof July 31, 2006, we owed
Silver Pomt Finance approximately $70.7 million under our financing agreement. The financing agreement:

. restncts our ablllty to create or incur additional mdebledness ' ¥

. restncts our ablhty to create, incur, assume or permlt to exist any lien or secumy interest in any of our assets
excluding certain limited exemptions; -

"o ‘restricts our ablhty 1o make investments including joint ventures with certain limited exemptions;

* requires that we meet financial covenams for ﬁxed charges, Ieverage adjusted EBITDA, capnal expen-
ditures and minimum bookings; S .

. restncts our ability to enter into any transacuon of merger, consolidation or llqutdatlon

. restncts our ability to enter into any transaction w1th any holder of more than 5% of any class of capxlal stock
' except in the ordmary course of business; and

* restricts our ability to amend our orgamzauonal documents.

L IF we breach our senior secured term loan facnllly with Silver Point Fmance a default could result. A default if

not walved could result in, among other things, us not being able to borrow additional amounts from Silver Point
Finance. ]n addition, all or a portion of our outstanding amounts may become due and payable on an accelerated
basis, which would adversely affect our liquidity and our ability to manage our business. The principal amounts of
our semor secured term loan facility with Sitver Point Finance are to be repaid i in consecutive quarterly installments
of i increasing amounts beginning on April 30, 2007, while interest- -only payments made in consecutive quarterly
installments began in July 2006. All remaining amounts due and outstanding under the financing agreement are due
to be repaid in full by April 11, 2011. In addition, our senior secured term loan facility with Silver Point Finance
exposes us to interest rate fluctuations which could significantly increase the interest we pay Silver Point Finance.
We are required, under our senior secured term loan facility with Silver Point.Finance, to purchase interest rate
_protection.which shall effectively limit the unadjusted LIBOR component of the interest costs of our loan with
* respect to not less than 70% of the principal amount at a rate of not more than 6.5% per annum. Had our senior
secured term loan facility with Siiver Point Finance been outstanding for the full fiscal year, a hypothetical 100 basis
point increase in our LIBOR rate would have resulted in an approximate $0.7 million increase in our interest
expense for the fiscal year ended July 31, 2006.

: | sigrg‘iﬁcam portion of our revenue comes from one customer and, if we lost this customer, it would have a
significant adverse impact on our business results and cash flows. The New York State Department of Labor
represented approximately 9%, 8% and 12% of our consolidated revenue for the fiscal years ended July 31, 2006,
2005 and 2004, respectively. The New York State Department of Labor has multiple contracts with us and hasbeena
long-term customer of ours, but We cannot assure you that we will be able to retain all of the contracts with this
customet. We also cannot assure you that we will be able to maintain the same level of service to this customer or
that our revenue from this customer will not significantly decline in future periods. On August 16, 2003, we entered
into a new agreement with the New York State Department of Labor with a two year term which is set to expire on
June 14, 2007. The New York State Department of Labor is not obligated under our new agreement to buy a
minimum amount of services from us or designate us as its sole supplier of any particular service. Further, The New
York State Department of Labor has the right to terminate the new agreement-at-any time by providing us with
60 days notice. We have been notified by the New York Department of Labor that funding for the America’s Job
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Bank program will cease at the expiration of our current contract. We have begun making preparations to continue
the program and service without government funding and expect to receive revenues from advertising placement as
well as other ancrllary services, but we cannot assure you that revenue will remain at the same level or that cash
'flows wrlll not' be adversely 1mpacted L ' ’ "

Atl’annc Investorl's LLC ‘may have interests that conﬂrcl with the interests of our other stockholders and as
our majority stockhol’der, can prevent new and. existing investors from influencing significant corporate
decisions. - Atlanuc-lnveslors LLC owns approximately 59% of our outstanding capital stock as of September 30,
2006. Following the closrng of our senior secured term loan facility with Silver Point Finance on Apnl 11, 2006,
Atlanuc Investors’ ovlmersh:p was approxrmalely 43%ona fully diluted basis. In addition, Atlantic Investors holds
a promlssory note in the principal amount of $3. 0 million, the maturity date of which was extended, pursuam 10 the
amended loan agreement dated April 11, 2006, 16 90 days after the maturity date of the Silver Point Finance toan
facility. Atlantic has the right to convert any unpaid amounts into common stock at any time at a price.of $2.81 per
share. As of July 31 l2006 we had recorded accrued interest on this note in the amount of $0.8 million. Atantic
Investors has the power acting alone, to elect a majority of our Board of Directors and has the ability to control our
management and affairs and determine the outcome of any corporate action requiring stockholder approval.
Regardless of how c')ur other stockholders may vote, Atlantic Investors has the ability to determine whether to
engage in a merger, ! consolidation or sale of our assets and any other significant corporate transaction. Under
Delaware .law, Atlantic Investors is able to exercise its voting power by written consent, without convening a
meeting of the stockholders. Atiantic Investors’ ownership of a majority of our outstanding common stock may
have the effect of delaymg, deterring or prevenung a change in control of us or discouraging a potential acquirer
from attempting to ;oblam control of us, which could adversely affect the market price of our common stock.

Members of orlrr management group also have srgmﬁcam interests in Atlantre Investors LLC,. which may
create conflicts of interest. Some of the members of our management group also serve as members of the
management group of Adantic Investors, LLC and its affiliates. Specifically, Andrew Ruhan, our Chairman of the
Board, holds a 10% equity interest in Unicorn Worldwide Holdings Limited, a managing member of Atlantlc
Investors. ‘Arthur Becker our President and Chlef Execuuve Officer and a member of our Board of Directors, is the
managing member fof Madison Technology LLC, a managing member of Atlantic Investors. As a result, thesre
NaviSite ofﬁcers and directors may face potential conflicts of interest with each other and with our stockholders.
They may be presemed with snuauons in their capacnty as our officers or directors that conflict wuh their ﬁduerary
obligations to Atlantlc Investors ‘which in turn may have interests that conflict with the 1nteresl5 of our other
stockho]ders t. ' o

.
[ I‘

- Our corrrmonl stockholders may suffer dilution in the future upon exercise of outstanding convertible
securities or the issuance of additional securities in potential future acquisitions or financings.” In connection
with our financing 'agreement with Silver Point Finance we issued warrants to Silver Point Finance to purchase an
aggregate of 3,514,933 shares of dur common stock. If the warrants are exercised; Silver Point Finance may obtain'a
significant equity interest in NaviSite and other stockholders may experience Sigrificant and immiedidte dilution,
Our stockholders \lm also experience dilution to the extent that additional shares of our common stock are lssued in
potential future acqursmons or financings. ’ o S v

Acqu isitions may resultin drsruptrons to our business or distractions of our managemem due to dxfﬁeultres
in integrating acqulred personnel and operations, and'these mtegratwns may not proceed as planned Since
December 2002, we have acquired CBTM (accounted for as an “‘as if pooling”), Avasta, Conxron selected assets of
Interliant, all of” the shares of ten wholly-owned subsidiaries of CBT (accoumed for as an “as’if poolmg”) ‘and
substantiaily all of the assets and liabilities of Surebridge. We mtend to continue to expand our business through the
acquisition of compames technologles products and servrces Acqulsmons mvolve a number of specral probl.ems

and risks, mc]udmg '
- g . - : T IR
» difficulty mtegratmg acqurred teehnolog1es products services, operauons and personnel‘wnh the.existing
» businesses; - LI i : - - N T
1 g L Crody o | . G “f
) drfﬁculty mamtammg relationships with important third parties, uncludmg those relating to markenng

., alliances glnd providing preferred partner status and favorable pricing; .. | .
t

. B by ‘ H
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-, « diversion of management’s attention in connection with both negotiating the acquisitions and integrating the
businesses: - . e ., oo

y - f - eoe Mo . . . . Tt 3 R Lo
* strain on managerial and operational resources as management tries (o oversee larger operations;

* inability to retain and motivate management and other key personnel of the acquired businesses;

v

* exposure to unforeseen llabllmes of acqmred compames
* potential cnslly and time-consuming lmgallon 1nclud1ng slockholder lawsuns

T potenual issuance of securmes in connectton with an acquisition with rights that are superior to the rights of

holdérs of our common stock, or which may have a dilutive effecl on our common stockholders;
. ] 1- ‘ S . i

;* the need to mcur addmonal debt or use. cash and . " N .

. the requrremenl o record potentm]ly %lgmﬁcant addmonal future operating costs for the dmOI’(lZdllOﬂ of
'1manglble assets ' .

~,
Lk

As a result of these prob]ems zmd risks, busmesses we. acqurre may not produce the revenues, earnings or
business synergies that we anticipated; and acquired products, services or technologies might not perform as we
expected. As aresult, we may incur higher costs and realize lower revenues than we had anticipated. We may not be
able to successfully address these problems and we cannot assure you that the acquisitions will be successfully
identified and completed or that, if acquisitions are completed, the acquired businesses, products, services or
-technologres will generate sufficient revenue 10 offset the associated costs or other harmful effects on our business.
In addmon our limited operating hrstory with our current structure'resulting from recent acqulsmons makes it very
drfﬁcu]t for us to evaluate or pred1cl our gbility to, among other things, retain customers, generate and sustain a
révenue base sufﬁcrem to meet’our operating expemes and ‘achieve and sustam profitability.

A farlure to meet eustomer specifi canons or expectatwns could result in lost revenues, mereased expenses,
negative publicity, claims for damages and harm to our reputation and cause demand for our services to decline.
Our agreements with customers require us to meet specified service levels for the services we provide. In addition,

" our customers may have additional expectations about our services. Any failure to meet customers’ specifications or
expectations could resul[ in: ;s T .

* delayed or lost revenue;
* requirements (o provrde additional services to a customer ai' reduced charges or no charge;
* negative publicity about"us', which could'adv'e'rsely affect our ability to attract or retain customers; and

+ claims by customers for substantial damages against us, regardless of our responsibility for the failure, which
may not be covered-by insurance policies and which may not be limited by contractual terms of our
engagement.

Cur ability to successfully market our services could be substantially impaired if we are unable to deploy
new infrastructure systems and applications or if new infrastructure systems and applications deployed by us
prove to be unreliable, defective or.incompatible. 'We may experience difficulties that could delay or prevent the
successful development, introduction or marketing of hosting and application management services in the future. If
any newly introduced infrastructure systems and applications suffer from reliability, quality or compatibility
problems, market acceptance of our services could be greatly hindered and our ability to attract new customers
could be significantly reduced. We cannot assure you that new applications deployed by us will be free from any
reliability, quality or, compatibility problems. If we incur increased costs ‘or are unable, for technical or other
reasons, to host and manage new infrastructure systems and applications or enhancements of existing applications,
our ability to successfully, market our services could be substantially limited.

Any interruptions in, or degradation of, our private transit Internet connections could result in the loss of
customers or hinder our ability to attract new customers. Our customers rely on our ability to move their digital
content as efficiently as possible to the people accessing their Web sites and infrastructure systems and applications.
We utilize our direct private transit [nternet connections to major network providers, such as Level 3 and Global
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Crossing as.a means of avoiding congestion and resulting performance degradation at public Internet exchange
points. We rely on these telecommunications network suppliers to maintain the operational integrity of their
networks so that our) private transit Internet connections operate effectively. If our private transit Internet
connections are mlerrupled or degraded, we may face claims by, or lose, customers, and our reputation in the
industry may be harmed, which may cause demand for our services to decline. |, -, . - . L

. If we are unable to maintain existing and develop additional relatmnsh:ps with software vendars, the sales
and marketing of our service ojfenngs may be unsuccessful. 'We believé that to penetrate the market for
managed IT services we must maintain existing and develop additional relationships with industry:leading software
vendors. We license or lease select software applications from software vendors,.including IBM, Microsoft and
Oracle. Our relauonshlps with Microsoft and Oracle are critical to the operations and success of our busmess The
loss of our ability to continue to obtain, utilize or depend on any of these apphcatmns or relatlonshlps could
substanually weaken our ability to provide services to our customers. [t may also require us to obtain substitute
software applications that may be of lower quality or performance standards or at greater cost. In addition, because
we generally license applications on a non-exclusive basis, our competitors may license and utilize the same
software applications.(In fact, many of the companies with which we have strategic relationships currently have, or
could enter into, similar license agreements with our competitors or prospective competitors. We cannot assure you
that software appllcauons will continue to be available to us from software vendors on commercially reasonable

| terms. If we are unable to identify and license software applications that' meet'our targeted- criteria for new
| application 1ntr0duct10ns we may have to discontinue or delay 1ntroducuon of services relatmg to these
] applications. ‘ s : ' : ,

Our netwark infrastructure could fail which would i lmpazr our ability to provide guaranteed levels of service
. and could result in stgmf cant operating losses. To provide our customers with guaranteed levels of service, we
‘ must gperate our network infrastructure 24 hours a day, seven days aweek wuhout mlermpuon We must, therefore,
protect our network 1nfrastmcture equipment and customer files agamst damage from human error, natural
disasters, unexpected|equipment failure, power loss or telecommunications failures, terrorism, sabotage or other
intentional acts of vandalism. Even if we take precautions, the occurrence of a natural disaster, equipment-failure or
other unanticipated p'roblem at one or more of our data centers could result’in interruptions in the services we
provide to our custom}ers. We cannot assure you that our disaster recovery plan will address all; or even most, of the
problems we may encloumer in the event of a disaster or other unanticipated problem. We' have experienced service
| interruptions in the past, and any future service interruptions could:

* require us to spend substantial amounts of money to replace equipment or facilities;
S entitle customers to claim service credits or Seek damages for losses under our service level guarantees;
™~ . . . . . . . - ’ i .

. * cause customers to SBCI( alternate pl'OVldCI‘S or

relationships. !

~ . Our dependence on third parties increases the risk that we will not be able to meet our customers’ needs for
software, systems and services on a timely or cost-effective basis, which could result in the loss of customers.
Our services and 1nfr:’aslruclure rely on products and services of third-party providers. We purchase key components
of our infrastructure; including networking equipment, from a limited number of suppliers, such as IBM, Cisco
Systems, F5 Networks, Microsoft and Oracle. We cannot assure you that we will not experience operational
problems atmbutablf': to the installation, .implementation, integration, performance, features-or functionality of
third-party software, ‘systems and services, We cannot assure you that we will have the necessary hardware or parts
on hand or that our suppliers will be able to provide them in a timely manner in the event of equipment failure. Our
ability to timely oblam and continue to maintain the necessary hardware or parts could result in sustained equipment

failure and a loss of revenue due to customer loss or claims for service credits under our service level guarantees.

|

I

| .

++ impede our ability to attract new customers, retain. current customers or enter into addmonal straleglc

We could be subject to increased operating costs, as well as claims, litigation or other potential liability, in

connection with risks associated with Internet security and the security of our systems. A significant barrier to

, the growth of e- -commerce and communications over the Internet has been the need for secure transmission of
confidential information. Several of ‘our infrastructure systems and application' services use encryption and
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authentication technology -licensed,from third parties to provide the protections necessary to ensure secure
transmission of confidential information. We also rely on security systems. designed by third parties and the
personnel in our network operations centers to secure those data centers. Any unauthorized access, computer
viruses, accidental or intentional actions-and other disruptions could result in increased operating costs. For
example, we may incur additional srgmﬁcant COsts to protect against ( these mterrupuons and the threat of security
breaches or to, alleviate problems caused by these interruptions or breaches f a third party were able to
mrsapproprmte a consumer’s personal or proprietary information, mcludmg credlt card information, during the

use of an appllcauon solution provided by us, we could be sub_ject to claims, lmganon or other polenual liability.
. .

Th:rd-pan‘y infringement claims agamst our technology suppliers, customers or us could result in
disruptions in service, the loss of customers or costly and time- consummg Imgauan. ‘We license or lease
most techno]ogres used in the infrastructure systems and application services that we offer. Our technology
suppliers may become subject to third-party infringement or other claims and assertions, which could result in their
inability or unwillingness to continue to license their technologies to us. We cannot assure you that third parties will
not assert claims against us in the future or that these claims will not be successful. Any infringement claim as to our
technologies or services, regardless of its merit, could fesult in'delays in service, installation or upgrades, the loss of
customers or costly and time-consuming litigation. o .. .

We may be subject to legal claims in connection with the information disseminated through our nerwork,
which could diverf management’s attention and require us to-expend significant financial resources. 'We may
face liability for claims of detamation, negligence, copyright, patent or.trademark infringement and other claims
based on the nature of the materials disseminated through our network. For example, lawsuits may be brought
against us claiming that content distributed by some of our customers may be reguiated or banned. In these and other
insiances; we may be required to engage in protracted and expensive litigation that could have the effect of diverling
managemenl s attention from our business and require us to expend significant financial resources. Our general
liability insurance may not cover any of thesé claims or may not be aclequate to protecl us against all liability that
may be imposed. In addition, on a limited number of occasions in the past, businesses, organizations and individuals
have sent unsolicited commercial e-mails from servers hosted at our facilities to a number of people, typically 1o
advertise products. or services. This practice, known as “spamming,” can lead to statutory liability as well as
complamts against service provrders that enable these activities, pamcularly where recrplents view the materials
recewed as offensive. We have, in the past received, and may in the future receive, letiers from recipients of
mformanon transmitted by our customers objecting to the transmission. Although we proh:bll our customers by
contract from spamming, we cannot assure you that our customers will not engage in [hlS practice, which could
subjgct us to claims for damages.

lf we Jail to ‘attract or retain key offi cers, management and techmcal personnel, our ability to successfully
execute our business strategy or to continite fo prowde services and techmcal support o our customers could be
adversely affected and we may not be successful in’ attractig néw customers. We believe that attractmg,
training, retaining and motivating technical and managerial personnel, including mdmduals with significant fevels
of infrastructure systems and application expertise, is a critical component of the future success of our b_usm_ess
Qualified technical personnel are likely to remain a limited resource for the foreseeable future and competition for
these personnel is intense. The departure of any of our executive officers, particularly Arthur P. Becker, our Chief
Executive Officer and President, .or core members of our sales and marketing teams or lechmcal service personnel,
would have negative ramifications on our customer relations and operations. The departure of our executive officers
could adversely affect the stability of our infrastructure and our ability to provide the guaranteed service levels our
customers expect. Any officer or employee can terminate his or her relationship with.us at any time. In addition, we
do not carry life insurance on any of our personnel. Over the past three years, we have had reductions-in-force and
departures of several members of senior management due to redundancies and restructurings resulting from the
consolidation of our acquired companies. In'the event of future reductions or departures of employees, our ability to
successfully execute our business strategy, or-to continue to provide services to our customers or attract new
customers, could be adversely affected. '
v .o A ", 1 : 1 ,
-The unpredictability of our quarterly results may cause the trading price of our common stock to fluctuate
ordecline. OQur quarterly operating results may vary significantly from quarter-to-quarter and period-to-period as
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a result of a number of factors, many of which are outside of our contiol and any one of which may cause our stock
price to fluctuate. Thei primary factors that may affect our operating results include the following: :

_ = areduction of market demand and/or acceptance of our services;
* our ability to develop, market and introduce new services on a timely basis;

+ the length of th‘le sales cycle for our services;

_ . _ _ R
* the timing and !size of sales of our services, which depends on the budgets of our customers,

N

. downﬁvard pric!é adjustments by our competitors;
|
. cl;aﬁge's in the mix of services provided by our competitors; i
¢ technical difﬂc}ultiéé or systefn downtime affecting the Internet or our hosting operations; .o St
e ou‘r.ability to n|'1eet any inc;reased technologicat demghd_s of ‘opr_ cus_to'm‘eljs;’aqd; |
* the amount anél timing of costs related to our marketing efforts and service introductions. -

Due to the abovelfactors, we believe that quarter-to-quarter or period-to-period comparisons of our operating
results may not be a g(')od indicator-of our future performance. Our operating results for any particular quarter may
fall short of our expectations or those of stockholders or securities analysts. [n this event, the trading pnce of our
common stock would:hkely fall. S '

If we are unsuccessful in pending and potential litigation matters, our financial condition may be adversely
affected. We are cur’remly involved in various pending and potential legal proceedings, including a class action
lawsuit related to our initial public offering. If we are ultimately unsuccessful in any of these matters, we could be
required to pay substz}ntlal amounts of cash to the other parties. The amount and timing of any of these.payments
could adversely affect our financial condition.

If the markets for outsourced information technology infrastructure and applications, Internet commerce
and communication Hec!:ne there may be insufficient demand for our services and, as a result, our business
strategy and objectives may fail. The increased use of the Internet for remevmg, sharing and transferring
information among b‘usmesses and consumers is developing, and the market for the purchase of products and
services over the Internet is still relatively new and emerging. Our industry has experienced periods of rapid growth,
followed by a sharp declme in demand for products and services, which related to the failure in the last few years of
many companies focused on developing Internet-related businesses. If acceptance and growth of the Internet as a
medium for commerce and communication declines, our business strategy and objectives may fail because there

may not be sufﬁcnem market demand for our managed IT services.
I

If we do not respond to rapid changes in the technology sector, we will lose customers. The markets for the
technology-related selrv:ces we offer are characterized by rapidly changing technology, evolving industry standards,
frequent new service introductions, shifting distribution channels and changing customer demands. We may not be
able to adequately adapt our services or to acquire new services that ¢an compete successfully. In addition, we may
not be able 1o establlsh and maintain effective distribution channels. We risk losing customers to our competitors if
we are unable to adapt to this rapidly evolving marketplace. &

] . ' ' .

The market in which we operate is highly competitive and is likely to consolidate, and we may lack the
financial and other resources, expertise or capability needed to capture increased market share or maintain
market “share. We! compele in the managed IT services market. This market is rapidly evolving, highly
competitive and likely to be characterized by over-capacity and industry consolidation, Our competitors may
consolidate with one: another or acquire software application vendors or technology providers, enabling them to
more effectively compete with us. Many participants in this market have suffered significantly in the last several
years. We believe that participants in this market must grow rapidly and achieve a significant presence 1o compete
effectively. This con:sohclauon could affect prices and other competitive factors in ways that would 1mpcde our
ability to compete successfully in the managed IT services market. i

!
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.. Further, our business is not as developed as'that of many of. our competitors. Many. of our competitors have
substantially greater financial, technical and market resources, greater name:recognition.and ‘more established
relationships in the industry. Many of our competi'tors may I_Je able to:

. ) s
[P RN N

. develop and expand their network infrastructure and service. offermgs more rapldly,

. adapt to new or emergmg techno]ogles and changee in customer requlrements more qulckly,

i

* take advantage of acquisitions‘and other opportunities more readily; or!

« devote greater resources-to the marketing and sale of their services and adopt more aggressive pricing
t Pohmes than we can, o Sy ool :

We may ]ack the financial and other resources expemse or capablhty needed (o maintain or caplure mcreased
market share in this environment in the future. Because of these competitive factors and due to our comparatively
small size and our lack of financial resources, we may be unable to successfully compete in the managcd IT services
market.

Difficulties presented by international ec&nomic, poliz:ical, legal, accounting and business facrai-s could
harm our business in international markets. We operaté-a data center in the United Kingdom. Revenue from our
foreign operations accounted for approximately 4% of our total revenue during the fiscal year ended July 31, 2006,
We recently expanded our operations to India, which could eventually broaden our customer service support.
Although we expect to focus most of our growth efforts in the United States, we may enter into joint ventures or
outsourcing agreements with third parties, acquire complementary businesses or operations, or establish and
maintain new operations outside of the United States. Some risks inherent in conducting business internationalty
include:

+ unexpected changes in regulatory, tax and political environments;
* longer payment cycles and probiems collecting accounts receivable;

= geopolitical risks such as political and economic instability and the possibility of hostilities among countries
or terrorsm;

* reduced protection of intellectual property rigilts;

« fluctuations in currency exchange rates or imposition of restrictive currency controls;

* our ability to secure and maintain the necessary physical and telecommunications infrastructure;
* challenges in staffing and managing foreign operations;
» employment laws and practices in foreign countries;

* laws and regulations on content distributed over the Internet that are more restrictive than those currently in
place in the United States; and

* significant changes in immigration policies or difficulties in obtaining required immigration approvals.

Any one or more of these factors could adversely affect our international operations and consequently, our
business.

We may become subject to burdensome government regulation and legal uncertainties that could sub-
" stantially harm our business or expose us to unanticipated liabilities. 1t is likely that laws and regulations
directly applicable to the Internet or to hosting and managed application service providers may be adopted. These
laws may cover a variety of issues, including user privacy and the pricing, characteristics and quality of products and
services. The adoption or modification of laws or regulations relating to commerce over the Internet could
substantially impair the growth of our business or expose us to unanticipated liabilities. Moreover, the applicability
of existing laws to the Internet and hosting and managed application service providers is uncertain. These existing
laws could expose us to substantial liability if they are found to be applicable to our business. For example, we
provide services over the Internet in many states in the United States and elsewhere and facilitate the activities of
our customers in these jurisdictions. As a result, we may be required to qualify to do business, be subject to taxation
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or be subject to other laws and regulations in these junsdlctlons even if we do not have. a physical presence,
employees or property in those states. .o

The price of our common stock has been volatile, and may continue to experience wide ﬂuctuation's Since
January 2005, our corrlmon stock has closed as low as $1.19 per share and as high as $5.45 per share. The trading
pricé of our common|stock has been and may continue to be subject to wide fluctuations due to the nsk factors
discussed in this section and elsewhere in this report. Fluctuations in the market price of our common stock may
cause an investor in gur common stock to lose some or ali of his investment. e

Anti-takeover provisions in our corporate documents may discourage or prevent a takeover. Provisions in

our certificate of incorporation and our by-laws may have the effect of delaying or preventing an acquisition or
merger in which we are acqurred ora transacuon that changes our Board of Dlreclors These provrsrons

1 ' .

+ authorize the board to issue preferred stock without stockho]der approval
+ prohibit cumulative voting in the election of directors; o

* limit the persons who may call special meelmgs of stockholders and

1 [
= establish advance notice requirements for nominations.for lhe election of dlrectors or for proposing matters
that can be acted on by stockholders at stockholder meetings. .

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments . R

None.

i .

R - rh
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ItemZ' Propef{ies N Traabr, I I . a7

Facnlltles

v

Our executive ofﬁces are located at 400 Minuteman Road Andover Massachusetts. We lease offices and data
centers in various cities across the United States and have an office, a data center in the United ngdom and an
ofﬁce in lndla The lable below sets forth a list of our leased- offices_and data centers g

.1 ’ Iy .
" o Sqr.lare Footage L
v : B Lo " Leased

, _Loéatio;l L . ., . Type . (Approximate) L;ase Expiration
< SanJose, CA(IX3)./....... e ‘Data Center and Off'ce it 66,350 - - November 2016
Los Aln,'gelés,' CA ............. 01 " Data Center | STy February 2009 * ~
* San Francisco, CA . .....:. 5 :.'.". Data.Cemer L 20,576 January 2010
Atlanta, GA . ...........oia... .. Office . . . -4598 May 2007 . _
Chicago, IL(1}............... ... Office . ., : 4 453 June 2009
‘Chicago, IL. . ........... .. ...... Data Center N T 6,800 January 2009 . ..
Qak Brook, IL . .....07. ... 0. ... .. - Data Center 16,780 Seplember 2009
Andover, MA ........... ‘. l.... Office - - 25817 - January 2018
Andover, MA e " Data Centér and Office =~ 86,931 January 2018
Syracuse, NY ... ....... ........ Daa Ceriter ! “21246 ' November 2008
Syracuse, NY (1) ................ Office . . . -44,002 . December 2007
Syracuse, NY (1) ............. ..., Office 5,016 - May 2009
New York, NY ............ ST Office - 1,500 December 2006
"New York, NY ......o..0.0....... Data Center ' 33,286 May 2008
" Las Vegas, NV (2) .... S .. Data Center . ' 28,560 i—”qbruary 2010
Dallas, TX ..ot Data Center - 21370 January 2010
Houston, TX (1) . ................ Data Center and Office 20,545 October 2008
-Vienna, VA. .. ... e e e ‘Data Center and Office 23,715 * December 2009
Milwaukee, WL Data Center 5200 March 2010
' Gurgaon Haryana, Indla ......... 1 Office | - 12,706 July 2008
~London, England .. ............,. DaaCenter . . 4022 March 2010

(1) We have idle offi ice space at [hlS facility from which we derive no economic benefit.

(2) We have entered into a sublease with a third party for this facnhty, however we retain the use of approximately
_*2,000 square feet.

(3) In September 2006, after the’ end of our fiscal year, we exlended the lease for this facility by ten years until
November 2016 which is reﬂected above. - . ! :

We believe that lhese offices and data cemerq are adequate to meet our foreseeable requirements and that
suitable addmonal or substitute space will be avaitable on commercially reasonable terms, if needed.

Item 3. ‘Legal Proceedings . .
IPO Securlties Litigation

On or about June 13, 2001, Stuart Werman and Lynn McFarlane filed a lawsuit against us, BancBoston
Robertson Stephens, an underwriter of our initial public offering in Ociober 1999, Joel B. Rosen, our then chief
~ executive officer, and Kenneth W. Hale, our then chief financial officer. The suit was filed in the United -States
District Court for the Southern District of New York. The suit generally alleges that the defendants violated federal
securities laws by not disclosing certain actions allegedly taken by Robertson Stephens in connection with our
initial public offering. The suit alleges specifically that Robertson Stephens, in exchange for the allocation to its
customers of shares of our common stock sold in our initial public offering, solicited and received from its
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cuslomers‘,agreemenl:s to purchase additional shares of our common stock in the aftermarket at pre-determined
prices. The suit seeks unspecified monetary damages and certification of a plaintiff class consisting of all persons
who acquired sharesfof our common stock between October 22, 1999 and December 6, 2000. Three other
substantiaily similar lawsults were filed between June 15, 2001 and July 10, 2001 by Moses Mayer (filed June 15,
2001), Barry Feldman (filed June 19, 2001), and Binh Nguyen (filed July 10, 2001). Robert E. Eisenberg, our
president at the time of the initial public offering in 1999, also was named as a defendant in the Nguyen lawsuit.

On or about June 21, 2001, David Federico filed in the United States District Court for the Sdudl'em District of
New York a lawsuit |agams[ us, 'Mr. Rosen, Mr. Hale, Robertson Stephens and other underwriter defendants
including . P Morgan \Chase, First Albany Companies, Inc., Bank of America Securities, LLC, Bear Stearns & Co,,
Inc., B.T. Alex. Brown lnc Chase Securities, Inc., CIBC World Markets, Credit Suisse First Boston Corp Dain
Rauscher, Inc., Deutsche Bank Securities, Inc., The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., J.P. Morgan & Co., J.P. Morgan
Securities, Lehman Brothers Inc., Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith, Inc., Morgan Stanley Dean Witter & Co.,
Robert Fleming, Inc 'and Salomon Smith Bamey, Inc. The suit generally alleges that the defendants violated the
anti-trust laws and [hg federal securities laws by conspiring and agreeing to raise and increase the compensation
received by the underwriter defendants by requiring those who received allocation of initial public offering stock to
agree to purchase shares of manipulated securities in the after-market of the initial public offering at escalating price
levels designed to inflate the price of the manipulated stock, thus artificially creating an appearance of demand and
high prices for that stdck and initial public offering stock in general, leading 1o further stock offerings. The suit also
alleges that the defendants arranged for the underwriter defendants to receive undisclosed and excessive brokerage
commissions and that, as a consequence, the underwriter defendants successfully increased investor interest in the
manipulated initia] public offering of securities and increased the underwriter defendants’ individual and collective
underwritings, compensation, and revenue. The suit further alleges that the defendants violated the federal
securities laws by is:suing and selling securities pursuant to the initial public offering without. disclosing to
investors that the underwriter defendants in the offering, including the lead underwriters, had solicited and received
excessive and undlsclosed commissions from certain investors. The suit seeks unspecified monetary damages and
certification of a plamuff class consisting of all persons who acquired shares of our common stock between
October 22, 1999 an? June 12, 2001.

Those five cases: along with fawsuits naming more than 300 other issuers and over 50 investment banks which
have been sued in subslanually similar lawsuits, have been assigned to the Honorable Shira A. Scheindlin (the
“Court™) for all pretnal purposes (the “1PO Securities Litigation™). On September 6, 2001, the Court entered an
order consolidating the five individual cases involving us and designating Werman v. NaviSite, Inc., et al., Civil
Action No. 01-CV-5374 as the lead case. A consolidated, amended complaint was filed thereafter on April 19 2002
(the “Class Action Litigation”) on behalf of plaintiffs Arvid Brandstrom and Tony Tse against underwriter
defendants Robertson Stephens (as successor-in-interest to BancBoston), BancBoston, J.P. Morgan (as succes-
sor-in-interest to Hambrecht & Quist), Hambrecht & Quist and First Albany and against us and Messrs. Rosen, Hale
and Eisenberg (colle'cuvely, the “NaviSite Defendants™). Plaintiffs uniformly allege that all defendants, including
the NaviSite Defendants violated the federal securities laws (i.e., Sections 11 and 15 of the Securities Act,
Sections 10(b) and 20(a) of the Exchange Act and Rule 10b-5) by issuing and selling our common stock pursuant to
the Octaber 22, I999 initial public offering, without disclosing to investors that some of the underwriters of the
offering, including [f‘e lead underwriters, had solicited and received extensive and undisclosed agreements from
certain investors 1o purchase aftermarket shares at pre-arranged, escalating prices and also to receive additional
commissions and/or other compensation from those investors. At this time, plaintiffs have not specified the amount
of damages they are seeking in the Class Action Litigation,

Between July and September 2002, the parties to the IPO Securities Litigation briefed motions to dismiss filed
by the underwriter defendants and the issuer defendants, including NaviSite. On November 1, 2002, the Court held
oral argument on [lhe motions to dismiss. The plaimtiffs have since agreed to dismiss the claims against
Messrs. Rosen, Halei and Eisenberg without prejudice, in return for their agreement to toll any statute of limitations
applicable to those crlaims. By stipulation entered by the Court on November 18, 2002, Messrs. Rosen, Hale and -
Eisenberg were dismissed without prejudice from the Class Action Litigation. On February 19, 2003, an opinion
and order was lssued on defendants’ motion to dismiss the IPO Securities Litigation, essentially denying the
motions to dismiss of all 55 underwriter defendants and of 185 of the 301 issuer defendants, including NaviSite.

f 2
|
|




On June 30, 2003, our Board of Directors considered and'authorized us to negotiate a settlement of the pending
Class Action Litigation substantially consistent with a memorandum of understanding negotiated among proposed.
class plaintiffs, the issuer defendants and the insurers for such issuer defendants. Among other contingencies, any
such settlement would be subject to approval by the Court. Plaintiffs filed on June 14, 2004, a motion for
preliminary approval of the Stipulation And Agreement Of Settlement With Defendant Issuers And Individuals (the
“Preliminary Approval Motion”). On February 15, 2005, the Court approved the Preliminary Approval Motion in a'
written opinion which detailed the terms of the settlement stipulation, its accompanying documents and schedutes,
the proposed class notice and, with a modification to the barorder to be entered; the proposed settlement order and
judgment. A further conference was held on” April 13,.2005, at which time the Court: considered additional
submissions but did not make final determinations regarding the exact form, substance and program for.notifying
the proposed settlement class. On August 31, 2005, the Court entered a further Preliminary Order in Connection
with Settlement Proceedings (the “Prellmmary Approval Order™), which granted preliminary approval to the
issuer’s settlement with the plaintiffs in the IPO Securities Litigation. The ‘Court subsequently held a Fed. R. Civ. P.
23 falmess hearing on April 24, 2006 in order to COl’lSldel‘ the written and oral submissions addressing whether the
Court should enter final approval of the settlement; the maitér was taken under advisement and remains pending
with theCourt: If the proposed issuers’ settlement is completed and then approved by the Court without further
modifications to its material terms, we and the pamcxpaung insurers acting on our behalf may be responsible for
providing funding of approximately $3.4 million towards thé total amount plaintiffs are guaranteed by the proposed
issuer’s settlement to recover in the IPO Securities Litigation. The amount of the guaraniée allocable to uscould be
reduced or eliminated in its entirety in the event that plaintiffs are able to recover more than the total amount of such
overall guarantee from settlements with or judgments obtained against the non-settling defendants. Even if no
additional recovery is obtained from any of the non-settling deféndants, the settlement amount allocable 10 us is
expected to be fully covered by our existing insurance policies and is not expected to have a material effect on our
business, financial condition, resuls of operauons or cash flows. AR

We believe that the allegations agamst us are w1thout merit and, if the settlement is not approved by the Court

and ﬁnahzed we intend to vigorously defend against the plaintiffs’ claims. Due to the inherent uncertainty of

litigation, we are not able to predict the possible outcome of the suits and their ultimate effect, if any, on our
business, ﬁnancml condmon results of operations or cash flows.

Item 4, Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders.
vy . . ‘l= " N -

None. ' . b
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Qur common slock is currently traded on the Nasdaq Capital Markct under the symbol “NAVL"™ As of
September 30, 2006, there were 248 holders of record of dur common stock. Because brokers and other institutions
on, behalf of stockholders hold: many of such shares, we are unable to estimate the total-number of stockhoiders
represented by these tecord holders. The following table sets forth for the periods indicated the hlgh and low sales
prices for our commcl)n stock as reported on the Nasdag Capital Market.

[P T Coooan

Flscal Year Ended July 31, 2006 . ! o ' e . } _ o ‘
May 1, 2006 |lhr0ugh July 31, 2006. . . . .. B g 85597 $3.24)
February 1, 2006 through April 30, 2006. ... . .%o\ ot S e $5.00-. $1.35 .
November 1,{2005 through January-31, 2006 ..................... Moa ) RPN $ 1.83 $1.01°
* August 1, 2005 through October 31, 2005 . .7, . ... T LUl 31900 8107

Fiscal Year Erded Jnly 31,2005 ' . a o ' T )
May i, 2005 through, July 31,2005, . ...... B A 5240  $116

 February 1, 2005 through April 30,3005, ... e\ rr o s AU $229 $1.23
- November 12004 through January 31, 2005. e e A v e .. 33300 $1.94
August |, 2004 through October 31, 2004 . . .. .. P A A T - $3.64 -+$1.32

We believe that|a number of factors may cause the markel pnce of our common stock to ﬂuctuate significantly.
See “Hem 1A. RlSk Factors” '~ #- RAGIR . : ST R A

We have never pald cash d1v1dends on our common slock We currenlly dnumpale retalnmg all avallab]e
earnmgs if any, to finance internal growth and producl development Payment of dividends in the future will depend
upon our earnings, financial condition, anticipated cash needs and such other factors as the directors may consider
or deem appropriatefat the time. In addition, the terms of our fi inancing agreement daled April 11, 2006, with Silver
Point Finance restricts the payment of cash d|v1dcnds on our common stock.

We did not repurchase any shares of common stock during fiscal year 2006.

Information regarding our equity compensation plans and the securities authorized for issuance thereunder is
set forth in Item 12 below.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data . SR T

The following selected consolidated financial data should be read in conjunction with our consolidated
financial statements and related notes and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations” included elsewhere in this report. Historical results are not necessarily indicative of results

of any future period. . . ; :
Year Ended July 31,.
- . R . 2006 2005 O 2004 . 2003 2002
(In thousands, except per share data)
REVENUE . ...\ mh v e i innneaenns $108,844 5109731 $ 91,1260 $ 75281 $ 40,968
Revenue, related parties . ... .............. 243 132. 46 1,310 18,453
Total Fevenue .. ... .... Cee...liol.... 109087 109863 91,172 76,591 59,421
Costofrevenue . . .......oviiiiiinnnnnnn 75,064 80,227 68,379 70,781 67,000
Impairment, restructuring and other . ........ — 383 917 . — 68,317
* Total costof revenite . ... ........... 75,064 . -.80,610 69296 - 70,781 © 135,317
G'ro's_s profit (loss). . ...... .. e B = 34,023 ‘29',2_5'3 21,876 '5,810 (75.896)
Operating expenses: e R ;
. Selling and marketing. . ................ 14756 12,993 10,642 6,910 14,984
_General and administrative . .. ......... L. 217877 723600 | T24.714.° 20207 19272
Impairmeni, restructuring and other. . . .. ... 1,373 2,662 . 5.286 8882 _ (2,633)
Total operating expenses. . . ........... - 737916 39,255 40,642 35,999 31,623
_ Loss from opérations .. ......... ceee (3893)  (10002) . (18,766)  (30,189)  (107.519)
Other income (expense): . . . . . '
Interestincome . ..........ouvvuuinnn. 283 61 126 851 1,060
Interest expense ... .... ... .. ...l (9,585) ' (7.590) (3.181) _(43403) _ (14,718)
Other income (expense), el .. .......... 437, 2785 468 (733) (516)
Income tax expense .............c0.0n0.- (L173) ... (1,338) (- (153) —
"ONet'loss L e $(13,931) $(16,084) $(21,354) $(73,627) $(121,693)
Per ,comrglon share: S ' ' ‘
Basic and diluted: S . C . o : .
© Netloss......... T e .8 (049 S8 (057 -§ (085) 5 -(632) $ (22.30)
Basic and diluted weighted average number of L ,|' e ‘
common shares outstanding . ............ 28,601 28,202 ', . 25,160 11,654 5,457
BALANCE SHEET DATA: : o :
Working capital (deficit) .........0. 0 ... $ (9.072) $(77,560) " $(36,711) " $(16301) $ 16,516
Total BSSELS . . . vt eeie e e e $102409 $101.177 $123.864 $69371 §.53534
Long-term obligations . ............... ... $ 70817 %. 5515 % 50224 $13577  § 28,073
Stockholders' equity {(deficit) . . ............ $(1,976) % (2672) $ 11,082 $16879 § 8544

v
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Opemn’on S

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains fonvard-looking statements within the meaning of Section 2IE of
the Securities Excimnge Act of 1934, as amended, and Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, that
involve risks and uncertainties. All statements other than statements of historical information provided herein are
Sforward-looking statements and may contain information about financial results, economic conditions, trends and
known uncertainties {Our actual results could differ materially from those discussed in the forward-looking
Statements as a result of a number of factors, which include those discussed in this section and elsewhere in this
report under ftem 1A./"Risk Factors™ and the risks discussed in our other filings with the Securities and Exchange
Commission. Readers iare cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements, which reflect
management's analms Jjudgmen. belief or expectation only as of the date hereof. We undertake no obligation to
pubhc!y revise these forward looking statemenis to reflect events or circumstances that arise after the dare hereof

Overview ' , .
TN .

We provide our |SeerCCS 1O customers typ:cally pursuant to agreements with a term.of one to three years and
momhly payment installments. As a result, these agreements provide us with a base of recurring revenue. Our
revenue increases by, adding new customers. or additional services 1o existing customers, Our overall base of
recurring revenue is affected by new custemers, renewals or terminations of agreements with existing customers.

\‘ .

A large pomon of the cosls o opera(e our data centers, such as rent, product development and general and
administrative expenses, does not depend strictly on the number of customers or the amount of services we provide.
As we add new customers or new services to existing customers, we generally incur limited additional: expenses
relating to telccommhmcauons -utilities, hardware and software costs, and payroll expenses. We have substantial
capacity to add’ customers to our data centers, Our relauvely fixed cost base, sufficient capacity for expansnon and
limited incremental’ variable costs provide us with the opportunity to grow profitably. However; these same fi xed
costs present us with the risk that we may incur losses if we are unable to generate sufficient revenue.

In recent years,!we have grown through acquisitions of new busmcsses and have reqtructured our h:smrlcal
operations. Specifically, in Decémber 2002, we acquired ClearBlue Technologies Managemem, Inc. (a wholly-
owned subsidiary of lour majority stockholder at the time of the acquisition and therefore was accounted for as a
common control: merger), adding application management and development capabilities to our managed appli-
cation services. In February 2003, we, acquired Avasta, Inc., adding capabilities to our managed application
seérvices. In April 2003, we acquired Conxion Corporation, providing key services to our managed application
services and manageId infrastructure services. In May 2003, we acquired assets of Interliant, Inc., forming the core
of our managed mes'saging services. In August 2003 and April 2004, we acquired assets of CBT (which was,our
majority stockholde‘r at that time and therefore was accounted for as a common control merger) related to
colocation, bandwidth, security and disaster recovery services, enhancing our managed infrastructure services. In
June 2004, we acqt‘.ured substantially all of the assets and liabilities of Surebridge, 'Inc., adding s;gmﬁcam
capabilities to our managed application and professional services. Prior to September 2002, substantially all of our
services were managed application services. We have added managed infrastructure and managed messaging
services and increased managed applications and professmnal services since that time. This transformation in our
business will result ifi our recent results bemg more relevant to an understanding of our business than our historical
results. We also cxpécl to make additional acquisitions to take advanmge of our available capacity, which will have
Slgmﬁcam effects on our financial results in the future. ' :

4 ! wt * . s

Our acquisitions of CBTM and the assets and certain liabilities of CBT were accounted for in a manner similar
to a pooling-of- mtérest due to common control ownership. The assels and the liabilities of CBT, CBTM and
NaviSite were combmed at their historical amounts beginning on September 11, 2002, the date on which CBT
obtained a majority ownerthp of NaviSite. Our acquisitions of Avasta and Conxion, selected assets of Interliant and
our acquisition of substantially all of the assets and liabilities of Surebridge were accounted for using the purchase
method of accoumi'ng and as such, the results of operations and cash flows relating to these acquisitions were
included in our Co]nsoildated Statement of Operations and Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows from their
respective dates of acqunsnlon of February 5, 2003, April 2, 2003, May 16, 2003 and June 10, 2004.

|
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-+ . We have made significant steps'to improve the results of our operations. Due to improvements we have made in
otr overall business, the repayment of our maturing debt and our successful financing with Sitver Point Finance and
the availability to-us of committed lines of credit, our audit report no longer tontains the opinion of our independent
registered public accounting firm, KPMG LLP, that our recumng losses as well as other factors raise subslanna]
doubt about our dblllly to continue as a gomg concern. T e e ' " g

.
'

Resqlts',of Operations for the Three Years Ended July 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004
The following table sets forth the percentage relationships of certain items from our Consdlidzited}StalememS
of Operations as a percentage of total revenue for the periods indicated.

Year Ended July 31,
2006 2005 2004

. P [ . . . . o ' " ot et B

Revenue,. . .. KR SC OPI SO FRPEDUS LI S PR Ve L. 99.8% * 99.9% . 99.9%

Revenue, related parties. . . .. . ... . 02% - 0.1% 0.1%
Total revenue ... ............. il st e, 1000% 100.0%  100.0%

Cost of'revenue....'....;:....'f-..-....-.i.-'..;'.-...-...-.u;.:».:.'..JT ..... A 6818% 0 73.0%  75.0%

Impalrment restructurmg and other . ......... .00 0 o 0.0% 04%  1.0%
Total cost of revenue . . . .. . e ;- ..... S S . 68.8% 734% 76.0%

Gross profit .. ..... .. X e L L 312% 266%  240%

. - " ¢ . L R - ! P :

Operating expenses: . . . oy } ’ _ o .

_ -Selling and marketing . . ... .............. e S 135%  11.8%, 11.7%
General and administrative. .. ... ... ... .. ... . ... .. e . +200% 21.5% 27.1%
Impairment, restruéturirig and other .. ....... PP S N S . 1.3% 2.4% 5.8%

., Total operéting EXPENSES . . ... ... PR e ' . ..... " 34.8% 35.7% 44.6%

Loss from operations. . . . . . O SO (3.6)% (9.1)% (20.6)%

Other income (expense): . . o .

Interest income ... 0L e, 03% 0% 0.1%
Interest eXpense. .. ...l e s L BB% (69% (3.4)%

. Other income-{expense), net . .. ............ R e 04% 2.5% - {0.5)%

Loss before i income tax expense ....... L Sl .' (11.7)% (13.4)% (23.4)%

Income tax expense. ‘. ....... e e Ll . o e S (L.D% (1.2)% (0.0¥%

Netloss «............ TR e e e e e oo (12.8)% (14.6)% (23.4)Y%

e ‘ ' ‘ : - . \ . P Y -‘,'

Comparison of the Years 2006, 2005 and 2004
Revenue

"... We derive our .revenue from managed-IT services, including hosting; colocation and application services
comprised of a variety of service offerings and professional services, to mid-market companies and organizations,
including mid-sized companies, divisions of large multi-national companies and government agencies. '

“Total revenue for the fiscal year ended July 31, 2006 decreased 0.7% to approximately $109.1 million from
approximately $109.9 million for the fiscal year ended July 31, 2005. The decline in revenue is primarily related to
the sale ofiour MBS Practice in July 2005 which contributed:approximately:$4.3-million in revenue during fiscal
year 2005 partially offset by net increased revenue from new customers and sales to existing customers. Revenue
from related parties increased 84% during the year ended July 31; 2006 10 dpprommalely $243, 000 from
approxjmately $132,000 during the year ended July 3t, 2005. - .. ..
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-Total- revenue for fiscal year 2005 increased 20.5% to approximately $109.9 million from approximately
$91.2 million in fiscal year 2004. The overall.growth in revenue was mainly due to the full year impact of the
revenue resulting from our fiscal year 2004 acquisition of Surebridge which contributed approximately $37.8 mil-
lion in revenue during the year ended July 31, 2005, The increased revenue during fiscal year 2005 was partially
offset by net lost customer revenue of approximately $13.0 million: Revenue from related parties during the year
ended July 31, 2005 vlvas relatively flat as a percentage of revenue compared with the year erlded July 31, 2004,

I

One unrelated customer accounted for 9%, 8% and 12% of our consolidated revenue in fiscal years 2006, 2005
and 2004, respecuvely

Gross Profit

Cost of revenue clonsists primarily of salaries and benefits for operations personnel, bandwidth fees and related
Internet connectivity charges, equipment costs and related depreciation and costs to run our data centers, such as

rent and utilities, -

" Gross profit of $34 0 million for the year ended July 31, 2006 increased approximately $4.7 million, or 16%,
from a gross profit of,approxlmately $29.3 million for the year ended July 31, 2005. Gross profit for fiscal year 2006
represented 31,29 of, total revenue, as compared to 26.6% of total revenue for fiscal year 2005. Total cost of revenue
decreased approximately 6.9% to approximately $75.1 million in fiscal year 2006 from approximatel)} $80.6 million

“'in fiscal year 2005. As a percentage of revenue, total cost of revenue decreased from 73.4% of revenue in fiscal year

2005 to 68.8% of revénue in fiscal year 2006. The decrease in cost of revenue of approximately $5.5 million resulted
primanly from decreased salary and related expense of approximately $1.6 million as a result of lower U.S. based
employees due to ourI increased reliance on the use of our India network center, a decrease in hardware and software
maintenance costs of; japproximately $1.8 million as a result of continued efforts to control costs, costs related to the
MBS practice sold lll'] July 2005 of approximately $1.9 million, a reduction of depreciation and amortization
expense of approximately $1.1 million partially offset by the effect of implementing SFAS 123R in fi scal year 2006
of approximaiely $l .0 miltion. Included in total cost of revenue for fiscal year 2005, are impairment and
restructuring charges totaling $0.4 million related to certain data center leases as a component of total cost of

* revenue.'No such cHdrge was recorded during the same period of fiscal year 2006. '

Gross profit of $29.3 million for the year ended July 31, 2005 increased approximately $7.4 miilion, or33.7%,
from a gross proﬁt of approximately $21.9 million for the year ended July 31, 2004. Gross profit for fiscal year 2005

‘represented 26.6% of total revenue, as compared to 24.0% of total revenue for fiscal year 2004. Total cost of revenue

increased approxxmelltely 16.3% to $80.6 million in fiscal year 2005 from approximately $69.3 million in fiscal year
2004. As a percentage of revenue, total cost of revenue decreased from 76.0% of revenue in fiscal year 2004 to
73.4% of revenue in fiscal year 2005. The percentage decrease resulted primarily from cost reductions relating to

|
the scaling of our ﬁxed infrastructure costs over a larger revenue/customer base and costs reductions resulting from

- a company-wide effort to rationalize our cost structure related to equipment rental, hardware maintenance and

bandwidth, parually, offset by an increase in amortization of intangible assets related to our fiscal 2004 acquisition.

Included in total coslt of revenue for fiscal year 2005 are lmpalrment and restructunng charges totaling $0.4 million.
{ .

Operating Expenses

Selling and Markermg Selling and marketing expense consists primarily of salaries-and related benefits,
commissions and marketmg expenses such as advertising, product literature, trade show, and marketing and dlrf:Ct
mail programs. | - - ¥ -

Selling and mz}rketing'expense increased 13.6% to approximately $14.8 million, or 13.6% of total revenue, in
fiscal year 2006 from approximately $13.0 million, or 11.8% of total revenue, in fiscal year 2005. The increase of
approximately $1. 8 million resulted -primarily from approximately.$1.3 million of increased salary expense
resulting from an increased headcount of selling personnel, $0.3 million due to the effect of implementing
SFAS'123R, as well as increases of $0.4 million in travel costs and $0.! miilion in marketing program costs,
partially offset by ? decrease of $0.3 million in partner referral fees. .

|
|
|
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ZSelling and'marketing expense increased 22.6% to approximately $13.0 million, or 11.8% of total revenue, in
fiscal year 2005 from approximately $10.6 million, or:11.7% of total.revenue,'in fiscal year 2004. The increase of
approximately $2.4 million resulted primarily from approximately $1.2 million of increased salary expense
resulting from an increased headcount of selling personnel, as well as increases of $0.3 million in travel costs,
$0.4 million in partner referral fees, $0.2 million in recruitment fees and $0.3 million in marketing program costs.

ot Ity . A : e L
" General and Administrative. General and administrative.expense includes the costs of financial, human
résources,; IT!and :administrative'personnel, professional services, bad debt and corporate overhead. . .

» ‘ . ., i . t

General and administrative expense decreased 7, 6% to approxnmately $2| 8 lTlllllOl‘l or 20 0% of total revenue,
in fiscal ear 2006 from approximately $23.6 million, or 21.5% of total revenue, in fiscal year 2003. The decrease of
approximately $1.8 million was primarily the result of a $2.2 million decrease in bad debt éxpense due to successful
efforts to improve our accounts receivable collectibility, $0.7 million decrease’in litigation expense as we resolved
certain outstanding matters, $0.6 million decrease in salary related expense and a $0.8 million decrease in
depreciation expense, as well as decreases in property, sales taxes and consulting and insurance expenses, partially
offset. by an approximate, $3 0, million increase from the eﬂ’"ect of implementing SFAS 123R

General and admmlslra[lve expense decreased 4.5% to approximately $23.6 million, or'21. 5% of total revenue,
in fiscal year 2005 from approxrmately $24:7 million, or 27.1% of total revenue; in fis¢al year 2004. ‘The decrease of
approxlmale]y $1.1 million was ‘primarily the result of a '$1.6 million decrease in* litigaticn expense and a
$1.2 m1]llon decrease in rent expense offset by an approxlmate $1.0 m;lhon increase’ m salary related expense

oo d ot 1 . f LI . _H,J T '3 Lt PERTRERIN 3
Operaiing Expenses —'lmpalrrnent Restructurin'g and Other ‘ ) N R . . o
The Company recorded $1.4 million of ‘net lease 1mpa1rmem charges durmg fiscal year 2006 resulting
pr1manly from an adjustment to a lease ‘modification for our impaired Chicagd fac:llty and revisions in assumptions
associated with impaired facilities in Houston, Syracuse and San Jose, partially offset by 4 $0.2 million 1mpa1rmenl
credit to operating expense, resulting from a settlement with the landlord of the Company’s abandoned property in -

Lexmgton ;Massachusetts, , + . o R ‘ Coh o

L4}

COSl assocmled with impairment, restructuring and abandonment of ]eased facﬂllles 1ncluded in operatmg
expenses was approx1mately $2 7 mrlllon in fiscal year 2005, as compared to costs assoc1aled with impairment,
restructunng and abandonment of lease facilities of approxrmately $5.3 I'nllllOﬂ in fiscal year 2004, The costs
incurred during fiscal year 2005 relate primarily to the abandonmient of ‘administrative space at ‘our Lexington,
Massachusetts facility and a $1.1 million impairment charge related to our investment:in Interliant debt securities.

P [ . . . A P

Interest Income ' ‘ .
i PR L [ . r . [ . .

-+ «'Interest income increased 363.9% to approximately $283,000, or 0.3%-0f total revenue, in fiscal year 2006
from approximately $61,000, or 0.1% of total revenue, in'fiscal year 2005. The increase of $222,000 is mainly due
to an increase in the rate of interest on our security deposits, mterest earned on our escrow account and interest on a

seu]emem awarded: by the court in favor of the Company ' S Y ‘.

- " »

lnleresl income decreased 5] 6% o approx1malely $61 000 or O 1% of total revenue, in ﬁscal year 2005 from
approxrmately $126,000, or 0.1% of total revenue, in fiscal year 2004 The decrease was due prlmanly 10 the
reduced levels of average cash on hand. e LA

[}
. .

)

v -l. . o ! i« -t o te

Interest Expense

' lnterest expense increased 26.3% to -approy'clmately $9.6 million, or 8.8% of ‘tlolal ‘rlelvenue. irl'ﬁscal"year 2_006
from approximately $7.6 million, or 6.9% of total revenue, in fiscal year 2005. The increase of $2.0 million is

primarily.related to amounts drawn during the third quarter on our term loan with Silver Poing Finance, the addition
of capital leases and an increase in the rate of interest on our financing line with Silicon Valley Bank. .-
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Interest expense increased 138.6% to approxlmately $7.6 million, or 6.9% of total revenue, in fiscal year 2005
from approximately $3 2 million, or 3.4% of total revenue, in fiscal year 2004, The increase of $4.4 million was due

mainly to the accrued interest related to our notes payable to Waythere, Inc.
r , ) ,

Other lncome (Expense), Net

Other income was approximately $0.4 ‘miltion in fiscal year 2006 as compared to other i income of approx-
imately $2.8 million in fiscal year 2005. The other income recorded during fiscal year 2006 is primarily attributable
to $0.3 million rent from sublease of our facility at Las Vegas with a third party.

Other income vlvas approximately $2.8 million in fiscal year 2005, as compared to other expense of
approxrmately $0.5 mrlhon in fiscal year 2004, The other income recorded during fiscal year 2005 includes a
$2.5 million gain on the MBS transaction during the fourth quarter..

|
Income, Tax Expense

The Company recorded $1.2 million of deferred income tax expense during fiscal year 2006 as compared to
$1.3 million in fiscal year 2005 and no deferred income tax expense in fiscal year 2004. No income tax benefit was
recorded for the losses incurred due to a valuation allowance recognized against deferred tax assets. The deferred
tax expense resulied from tax goodwiil amortization related to the Surebridge asset acquisition in June 2004 and the
acquisition of certainI Applied Theory assets by Clearblue Technologies Management, Inc. prior to the pooling of
interest in December 2002. Accordingly, the acquired goodwill and intangible assets for both acquisitions are
amortizable for income tax purposes over fifteen years, For financial statement purposes, goodwill is not amortized
for either acquisition but is tested for impairment annually, Tax amortization of goodwill results in a taxable
temporary difference, which.will not reverse until the goodwill is impaired or written off for book purposes. The
resulting taxable temporary difference may not be offset by deductible temporary differences currently available,
such as net operating loss canyforwards whlch expire within a definite period.

i

Liquidity and Ca'pital Resources '

As of July 31, 20006, our principal sources of liquidity included cash and cash equivalents, a revolving credit
facility of $3 million provided by Silver Point Finance and a revolving credit facility with Atlantic Investors LLC, to
borrow a maximum amount of $5 million. We had a working capital deficit of $9.1 million, including cash and cash
cquivalents of $3.4 million at July 31, 2006, as compared to a working caprtal deficit of $77.6 million, mcludlng
cash and cash equwalems of $6.8 mrlhon at July 31, 2005. 4

- The total net Change in cash and cash equivalents for the fiscal year ended July 31, 2006 was a decrease of
$3.5 million. The prlmary uses of cash during fiscal year 2006 included $3.4 million of cash used for operating
activities, $5.8 mllhpn for purchases of property and equipment, approximately $59.4 million in repayments on
notes payable and capital lease obligations, and a $6.4 million increase in restricted cash. Our financing activities
during the fiscal year ended July 31, 2006 provided approximately $71.5 million of cash consisting primarily of
$70.0 million in proceeds from a term loan from Silver Point Finance, $1.1 million in proceeds received from
exercise of stock opuons and $0.4 million in proceeds from notes payable. Net cash used for operating activities of
$3.4 million during t the fiscal year ended July 31, 2006, resulted primarily from funding our $13.9 million net loss
and $10.0 million of net changes in operanng assets and liabilities, which was partially offset by non-cash charges
of apprommately $20 5 million.

Our revolvmg credlt facility with Sllver Point allows for maximum borrowing of $3.0 million and explres on
April 11, 2011. Ou{‘lstandmg amounts will bear interest at either: (a) 7% per annum plus, the greater of (i) Prime
Rate, and (ii) the Federal Funds Effective Rate plus 3%, or (b) 8% plus the floating rate of LIBOR. Interest is
payable in arrears on the last day of the month for Base Rate loans, and the last day of the chosen interest period
(one, two or three m'omhs) for LIBOR Rate loans. As of July 31, 2006, we had not started b0rr0w1ng from our credit

facility with Sllver P(nnt .
. Our revolvmg credll facility with Atlantic lnvestors LLC altows for maximum borrowing of $5:0 million. All
outstanding amoums under the Atlantic facility shall be paid in full no later than the date that is 90 days after the

I
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earlier of: (a) April 11, 2011; and (b) the date all obligations under the Silver Point Credit Facility have been'paid in
full. Credit advances under the Atlantic facility shall bear interest at either:.(a) 7% per annum plus the greater of
(i) Prime Rate, and (ii} the Federal Funds Effective Rate plus 3%, or (b) 8% plus the floating rate of LIBOR. Interest
may, at our option, be paid in cash or promissory notes. As of July 31, 2006, we had not started borrowing from our
facility with Atlantic Investors LLC. Given the Company’s cash resources as of July 31, 2006 and committed lines
of credit, the Company believes that it has sufﬁcrem liguidity 10 support its operauons over the next ﬁscal year and
for lhe foreseeable futurc y

Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments

i We are obllgaled under various capital and operating leases for fac1]1ues and equipment. Future minimum
annual rental commitments under capital and operating leases and other commitments, as of July 31, 2006 are as
follows: -

: : Less than . ‘ After
Description Total 1 Year ~ 1-3 Years 4-5 Years Year § -

S ) i C ) . (In thousands) ) -
Short/Long-term debt (a}. ............. $ 80,i03 § 8 115 $15,134 ,$56,854 5 —
Interest on debt(b) . ... ....... e 40,741 . 8449 16,761, 15,531 —
Capital‘ leases . ... ot . 3,068 - 2,302 766 — —
Bandwidth commitments . . . . . . Ll . . 2,039 ‘1,388 ° 651 _ C—_
Mainienance for hardware/software .. . . . . " 631 615 16 — —

'-Propcrtyrlea_s_es (cf)(d)(e) B o 42923 - 9465 14,688' 5,603 13,167

$169,505 $30,334 '$48,0l6' $77,988  $13,167 .

‘(a) Short/Long-term debt does not tie to the Conisolidate Balance Sheets due to recorded dlscoums for warrants and
embedded derivative

(b) Interest on Term Loan assumes Libor is fixed at 5.51% -

(c) Amoums exclude certain common area maintenance and other property charges that are not included within the
Iease payment, :

{d) On February 9, 2005, the Company entered into an Assrgnmem and Assumpuon Agreement with a Las Vegas-
based company, whereby this company purchased from us the right to use 29,000 square feet in our Las Vegas
data center, along with the infrastructure and equipment associated with this space. In exchange, we received an
initial payment of $600,000 and were to receive $55,682 per month over two years. On May 31, 2006, we

- received full payment for the remaining unpaid -balance. This agreement shifts the responsibility for man-
agement of the data center and its employees, along with the maintenance of the facility’s infrastructure, to this
Las Vegas-based company. Pursuant to this Agreement, we have subleased back 2,000 square feet-of space,
allowing us to continue servicing our existing customer base in this market. Commnmems related to property
leases include an amount related to the 2,000 square féet sublease.

(e} In September 2006, we extended our San Jose data center lease for this facility until Novémber 2016. The
: commumem amounts for the new lease not mcluded in commltment schedule are $16.9 mrllron

Off—Balance Sheet Financing Arrangements

We do not have any off-balance sheet financing arrangéments other than operatmg Icases whrch are recorded
in accordance with gencrally accepted accountmg principles. * :
Critical Accounting Policies

We pfepare our consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting principies generally accepted
in the United States of America. As such, management is requ1r9d 0 make certain estimates, judgments and
assumptions that it believes are reasonable based on the information available. These estimates and assumptions
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts
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of revenues and expenses for the periods presented. The significantaccounting policies which management believes
are the most critical to aid in fully understanding and evaluating our reported financial results include revenue
recognition, ailowanc:e for doubtful accounts 'and- impairment of long-lived assets. Management reviews the
estimates on a,regular| basis and makes adjustments based on historical experiences, current conditions and future
expectations. The reviews are performed regularly and adjustments are made ‘as required by current available
information. We behe’ve these .estimates are.reasonable, but acluai results could differ from these estimates.

Revenue Recogmnon Revenue consists of monthly fees for Web site and Internet dpphcauon management,
hostmg, colocation alnd professional services. We also derive revenue from the sale of software and reiated
mainienance contracts Reimbursable expenses charged to customers are included in revenue and cost of revenue.
Application management hosting and colocation revenue is billed and recognized over the term' of the contract,
generally one to three years, based on actual usage. Installation fees associated with application, management,
hosting and colocauop revenue are billed at the time the installation service is provided and recognized over the
term of the related contract. Payments received in advance of providing services are deferred until the period such
services are providedf Revenue from professional services is recognized on either a time and material basis as the
services are performed or under the percentage of completion method for fixed price contracts. When current
contract estimates mdlcate that a loss is probable, a provision is made for the total anticipated loss in the current
period. Contract losses are determined to be the amount by which the estimated service costs of the contract exceed
the estimated revenue that will be generated by the contract. Unbilled accounts receivable represents revenue for
services performed thal have not been billed. Billings in excess of revenue recogmzed are recorded as deferred
revenue until the apphcable revenue recognition criteria are met. Revenue from the sale of software is recognized
when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, the product has been delivered, the fees are fixed and
determinable and collection of the resulting receivable is reasonably assured. In instances where we also provide
application managerr;ent and hosting services in conjunction with the sale of software, software revenue is deferred
and recognized ratably over the expected customer relationship period. If we determine that collection of a fee is not
reasonably assured, we defer the'fee and recognize revenue al the time collection becomes reasonably assured,
which is generally ulpon receipt of cash.

Existing cusmmrers are subject to ongoing credit evaluations based on payment history,and other factors. If it is
determined subsequenl to our initial evaluation and at any time during the arrangement that collectability is not
reasonably assured, {'evenue is recognized as cash is received. Due to the nature of our service arrangements, we
prov1de written nouice of termination of services, typically 10 days in advance of disconnecting a customer.
Revenue for services rendered during this nouﬁcanon period is génerally recognized on a cash basis as
collectablllty is not ’conmdered probable at the time the services are. prov1ded

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts. We perform penodlc credit evaluat10ns of our customers’ financial
conditions and- genexlally do not require collateral or other security against trade receivables. We make estimates of
the collectability-of our accounts receivables and maintain an allowance for doubtful accounts for potential credit
losses. We. specifi cally analyze accounts receivable and consider historical bad debts, customer and industry
concentrations, customer credit-worthiness, current economic trends and changes in our customer payment patterns
when evaluating theI adequacy of the allowance for.doubtful accounts. We specifically reserve for 100% of the
balance of customer accounts deemed uncollectible. For all other customer accounts, we reserve for 20% of the
balance over 90 days old and 2% of all other customer balances. Changes in economic conditions or the financial
viability of our customers may result in additional provisions for doubtful accounts in excess of our curreni
estimate. .

- Impairment of Long-lived Assets. . We review our long:lived assets, subject to amortization and depreciation
including customer lists and property and equlpment for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of these assets may not be recoverable. Factors we consider important that couid
trigger an interim impairment review include:

» significant underperformance relative to expected historical or projected future operating results; -
* significant changes in the manner of our use of the acqulred assets or the strategy of our overall business;

« significant negative mdustry or economic trends; ‘ SO oo
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1.+ significant declines in our' stock price for a-sustained period; and - - 1 : U

+ our market Capltallzatlon relattve to net book va]ue

. R

Recoverabrlrty is measured bya companson of the carrymg amount of an asset to future undrscounted cash
flows expected to be generated by the asset. If the assets were considered to be impaired, the impairment- to be
recogmzed would be measured by the amiount by which the carrying value of the assets exceeds their fair value. Fair
value is determined based on discounted cash flows or appraised.values, depending on the nature of the asset. Assets
to be disposed of are valued at the lower of the carrying amount or their fair value less disposal costs. Property and
equipment is primarily comprised of leasehold improvements, computer and office equipment and software
licenses, Intangible assets consist of customer lists.- ., - : o g

1 * °
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" We review the valuation of our goodwill in the fourth quarter of each fiscal year. If an event or circumstance
indicates that it is more likely than not an impairment loss has been incurred, we review the valuation of goodwill on
an interim basis. An impairment loss is recognized to the extent that the carrying amount of goodw1ll exceeds its
implied: fair value. Impairment losses are recognized in operations. | : C e
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+ . . .
Recent Accountmg Pronouncements’ ! R . ) St

On 'September. 13, 2006, the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC™} issued Staff Accountinngul-
letin No. (“SAB 108”) which provides interpretive guidance on how the effects of the carryover or reversal of. prior
year misstatements should be considered in quantifying a current year, misstatement. SAB 108 is effective for fiscal
years ending after November 15, 2006. We are currently evaluating the effect, if any, that this pronouncement, will
have on our financial results. '

In September 2006, the Financial Accoufiting Standards Board' (“FASB”)-issued Statemieni of Finaicial
Accounting Standard (“SFAS”) No. 157, “Fair Value-Measurements™ (“FAS 157”). FAS 157 defines fair value,
establishes a framework for measuring fair value in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and
expands disclosures about fair value measurements. The provisions of FAS 157 are effective for the fiscal year
beginning June 1, 2008. We are currently evaluating the impact of the provisions of FAS 157.

ln June 2006, the Emergmg Issues Task Force (“EITF) reached a consensus on EITF 06-3, “How Taxes
Collected from Customers and Rémitted to Govemmental Authorities Should Be Presented in the Income
Statement EITF 06-3 provides that taxes imposed by a govemmental authority on a revenue producmg transaction
bétween a seller and a customer should be shown in the income statement on either a gross or a net basis, based on
the £entity’s accounting pollcy. which should bé drsclosed pursuant to APB Opinion No. 22, “Disclosure of
Accountmg Policies.” If such taxes are srgmﬁcant and are presented on a gross basis, the amounts of those taxes
shnuld be disclosed. EITF 06-3 must be appl:ed to. financial reports for interim and’ annual reporting pertods
begtnnlng ‘after December 15, 2006. We are currently evaluatmg the iimpact EITF 06-3 will have on the presentation
of our consolidated financial statements.

In June 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes”
(“FIN 48"). FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for uncertarnty, in income taxes recognized in the Company’s financial
statements in accordance with FASB Statement No. 109, “Aecountmg for Income Taxes.” The provisions of FIN 48
are effective for the fiscal year begmmng June 1,2007. We are currently evaluatmg the impact of the provisions of
FIN 48 will have on our ﬁnancral results

e e ek o, [

In February 2006, the FASB rssued SFAS No. 155, “Accountmg for Certam Hybrid Financial Instruments —
an amendment of FASB Statements No. 133 and 140", SFAS No. 155 (1) permits fair value re-measurement for any
hybrid financial instrument that contains an embedded derivative that would otherwise require bifurcation,
(2) clarifies which interest-only strips and principal-only strips are not subject to the requirements of FASB
Statement: No. 133, (3) establishes a requiremeént to evaluate interests in securitized financial assets to identify
interests that are freestanding-derivatives or. that are hybrid financial instruments that contain an imbedded
derivative requiring bifurcation, {4) clarifies that concentrations of credit risk in the form of subordination are not
embedded derivatives, and (5) amends FASB Statement No. 140 to eliminate the prohibition on a qualifying special-
purpose entity from holding a derivative financial instrument that pertains to.a beneficial interest in other than
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another derivative ﬁnéncial instrument. SFAS No. 155 is effective January 1, 2007 and we are currently evaluating
the effect, if any, that this pronouncement will have on our future financial results.

In May 2005, the FASB issued SFAS No. 154, “Accountmg Changes and Error Correctlons A Replacement of
APB Opinion No. 20 and SFAS No. 3" This statement changes the: requirements“for the accounting for and
reporting 'of a voluntary change in accounting principle, and also applies to instances when.an accounting
pronouncement does not include specific transition ‘provisions. Thé statement replace$ the previous requirernent
that voluntary changes be recognized by includihg the cumulative effect of the change in net income of the period of
the change. The slatemem requires retrospective application of a new accounting principle to prior periods’
financial statements; unless it is impracticable to determine either the period-specific effects'or the cumulative
effect of the change, The statement is effective for changes and corrections made’ in fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2005. The Company does not expect the adopuon of the statement to have a material effect on its
financ:lal condltlon results of operations or cash flows . : 3

In November 2005, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position (“FSP") FAS 123(R)-3, “Transition Elecuon to
Accounting for the Ta;x Effects of Share-Based Payment Awards”. This FSP requires an entity to follow either the
transition guidance Ifor the additional-paid-in-capital pool as prescribed in SFAS No. 123(R), Share-Based
Payment, or the altell'native transition method as described in the FSP. An entity that adopts SFAS No. 123(R)
using the modified prospective application may make a one-time election to adopt the transition method described
in this FSP. An entity may take up to one year from the later of its initial adoption of SFAS No. 123(R) or the
effective date of this FSP to evaluate its available transition alternatives and make its one-time election. This FSP
became effective in November 2005. We do not believe the adoption of FSP FAS 123(R)-3 will have a material
impact on our conso]rdaled financial statements or the results of operations.

|

Item 7A. Quantirq'tive and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk
: o :

"~ We do not enter into- financial instruments for trading ‘purposes. We have not used derivative financial
instruments or denvanve commodity instruments in our investment portfolic or entered into hedging transactions.
However; under our senior secured term loan facility with Silver Point Finance, we are required to have interest rate
protection which shall effectively limit the unadjusted LIBOR component of the interest costs of our loan with
respect to not less thz}n 70% of the principal amount at a rate not more than 6.5% per annum. Our exposure to market
risk associated with risk-sensitive instruments entered into for purposes other than trading purposes is not matenal
to us. We’ currenlly have no significant foreign operations and therefore face no material foreign currency exchange
rate risk. Our mlerest rate risk at July 31, 2006 was limited mamly to the London Inter Bank Offered Rate (LIBOR)
on our outstanding loan with our senior secured term loan facility with Silver Point Finance. At July 31, 2006 we
had no open denvatlve positions with respect to our borrowing arrangements, Had our senior secured term loan
facility with Silver Pomt Finance been outslandmg for the full fiscal year, a hypothctrcal 100 basis point increlase in
the LIBOR rate would have resulted in an apprommate $0 7 million i increase in our mlerest expense for the fiscal
year ended July 31 FZOOG

l
Item 8. I"'imu'u'.t'al1 Statements and Supplementary Data

Our consolidated Financial Statements and Schedule and the Reports of the Independent Registered Pubhc
Accounting Firm appear begmnmg on page F- I of thlS report and are mcorporated herein by reference

Item 9. Changes lin and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
!

None. j o ) ' - .

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures ‘_ o " o ot
Evaluation of \Disclosure Controls:and Procedures Based on managemem s evaluation (wuh the paruc-

ipation of NaviSite's principal executive officer and principal financial officer) as of the end of the period covered

by this report, NEWI‘SI[G s principal executive officer and principal financial officer have concluded that NaviSite's

disclosure controls T'and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15{e} and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act

of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act™)) are effective to ensure that information required to be disclosed by
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NaviSite in reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported
within the time periods specified in Securities and Exchange Commission rules and forms, and that the information
is accuniulated and commuricated to its management, including to its pnnc1pal executive officer and principal
financial officer, as approprate to allow timely decisions rcgardmg required disclosure.

Changes in Internal Control 0ver Financial Repamng There was no change in NaviSite's internal control
over financial reporting (as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) of the Exchange Act) during the fourth fiscal quarter that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, NaviSite’s internal control over financial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information

On October 24, 2006, we entered into Bonus Letters with each of Arthur Becker, John J. Gavin, Ir. and
Monique Cormier detailing our 2007 Executive Incentive Program (the “2007 Plan”). Under the 2007 Plan,
Mr. Becker's base salary for fiscal 2007 is $350,000, his target incentive bonus is $250,000 and his over-
achievement bonus opportunity is $120,000. Mr. Gavin's compensation under the 2007 Plan includes a fiscal 2007
base salary of $250,000, a target incentive bonus of $125,000 and an over-achievement bonus opportunity of
$80,000. Ms. Cormier's compensation under the 2007 Plan includes a fiscal 2007 base salary of $190,000, a target
incentive bonus of $535,000 and an over-achievement bonus opportunity of $25,000. Payment of the incentive
bonuses and the over-achievement bonuses is dependent on the Company achieving certain financial goals as
established by the Board of Directors. '

PART III

Certain information required by Part III of this Form 10-K is omitted because we will file a definitive Proxy
statement pursuant to Regulation 14 A (the “Proxy Statement”™) not later than 120 days after the end of the fiscal year
covered by this Form 10-K, and certain information to be included therein is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

Incorporated by reference to the portions of the Definitive Proxy Statement entitled “Proposal No. 1 —
Election of Directors,” “Additional Information — Management,” “Additiconal Information — Section 16(a) Ben-
eficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” and “Additional Information — Audit Committee Financial Expert.”

Code of Ethics. NaviSite has adopted a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics that applies to all directors,
officers and employees of NaviSite, including NaviSite’s principal executive officer, and its senior financial officers
(principal financial officer and controller or principal accounting officer, or persons performing similar functions).
A copy of NaviSite's Code of Business Conduct and Ethics is filed with or incorporated by reference in this report.

]

Item 11. Executive Compensation

Incorporated by reference to the portions of the Proxy Statemeni entitled “Additional Information —
Executive Compensation,” “Additional Information — Director Compensation,” “Additional Information - Com-
pensation Committee Report,” “Additional Information — Stock Performance Graph,” and “Additional Informa-
tion — Employment Agreements and Severance and Change of Control Arrangements.” The information specified
in [tem 402(k) and (1) of Regulation S-K and set forth in our Proxy Statement is not incorporated herein by
reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
Matters

Incorporated by reference to the portion of the Proxy Statement entitled “Security Ownership of Certain
Beneficial Owners and Management.”
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Equity Compensatlon Plan lnformatmn as of july 3,2006 . .- oy

The fol]owmg table sets forth certam information regardmg NavnSne ] equ1ty compensatmn plans as of

July 31, 2006. o - .
| . _ . . . 4 e ¥, .
| . (c)
) . @ . ()] Number of Securities
Number of Securities to - Weighted-average Available for Future [ssuance
. ¢+ be Issued Upon Exercise " Exercise Price of .,  Under Equity Compensation
. of Outstanding Options, Qutstanding Options, Plans (excluding securities
Plan Category . ’ " Warrants and Rights Warrants and Rights réflected in column (a))
!
Equity compensation plans approved
by security holders!. . .......... 6,590,793 $2.82 o0t 4,700,785
Egquity compensation blans not o ) . '
approved by security holders . . . . —_ " N/A —

Total. .......... e 6,590,793 o . 4700785

Item 13, Certam Rélatzonshtps and Related Transactwns

{ .
) lncorporated by reference to the portion of lhe Proxy Statement enmled “Addltlonal Informanon — Certam
Relationships and Related Transactions.” : .o _ s oy N

Item 14. Principal hccounting Fees and Services
Incorporated by reference to the portion of the Proxy Statement entitled “Additional Information — Inde-
pendent Auditors’ Fees and “Additional Informatiori — Audit Committee Policy on Pre-Approval of Services of
Independent Audnom
1

i ; L, . PARTIV

Ttem 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules

1. Financial Sta{ements

The financial slalementq listed in the Index to Consohdated Fmancm] Statements are ﬁled as part of this report.

2. Financial Statement Schedule. - - c TR
1

Financial Statement Schedule I of NaviSite and the corresponding.Report of Independent Registered Pubtic
Accounting Firm on Financial Statement Schedule are filed as part of this report. All other financial statement
schedules have been omitted as they are either not required, not applicable, or the information is otherwise included.

3. Exhibits. ! S
The Exhibits listed in the Exhibit Index immediately preceding such Exhlbus are ﬁted with or mcorporated by

reference in this report.

!
!' N -
l

j
|
!
I
!
%
|
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-+ SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has
duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.
. " . . . L. .

e T .. Navisitg, Inc.
By: /s/ ARTHUR P. BECKER ¢

B : e T : " Arthur P. Becker
Lo C " Chief Executive Officer

October, 26, 2006

Pursuant to the requirérﬁents of the Securities Exchange Actof 1934, this report has been du]y signed below by
the following persons on behalf of the registrant.and in the’ capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signatures i . Title ' Date
ar v, . - . [N L ! b
' f . B ok ,‘ . 4 " . .
' /s/ .ANDREW RUHAN . ~ Chairman of the Board | - October 26, 2006
Andrew Ruhan " ‘ '
_/s/_ ARTHUR P. BECKER ' President, Chief Executive ~  October 26, 2006
_ Arthur P. Becker . - Officer and Director .
' -« (Principal Executive Officer)
s/ Joun J. Gavin, JR. B Chief Financial Officer ' Ociober 26, 2006
John J. Gavin, Jr. “(Principal Financial and

Principal Accounting Officer)

/s/ _GaBRiEL Runax Director = | October 26, 2006
'Gabriel Ruhan ’ ' _
s/ James H. DEnNEDY ’ ' ~ Director """ October 26, 2006

]

James H. Dennedy | \

./sl LarRrY W. SCHWARTZ e Director " October 26, 2006
' Larry W. Schwartz ‘

-

/s Thomas R. Evans - Director . October 26, 2006
‘ _ Thomas R. Evans o
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Exhibit No.

2.1

22

23

2.4

25

26

27
28
29
31
32
33

3.4
4.1

10.1

‘ INDEX TO EXHIBITS
Description of Exhibit

Stock Purchase Agreement dated as of December 31, 2002, by and between C]earB]ue Technologies,
Inc. and t_he Registrant, is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibits to the Registrant’s Current
Report on‘ Form 8-K dated December 31, 2002 (File No. 000-27597).

Agreement and Plan of Merger and Reorgamzatton dated as of January 29, 2003, among Avasta
Acqutsmon Corp., Avasta, Inc. and the Registrant, is incorporated herein by reference to'Exhibits 1o the
Reglstrant s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended January 31, 2003 (File
No. 000-27597).

Agreemerln and Plan of Merger, dated as of March 26, 2003, by and between the Registrant and
Conxion Corporation and Union Acquisition, Corp., a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Registrant, is
mcorporated herein by reference to Exhibits to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated
April 2, 2003 (File No. 000-27597).

Sale Order pursuant to 11 U.S.C. Sections 105, 363, and 1146(c) and Bankruptcy Rules 2002, 6004 and
6006 approvmg (i) Asset Purchase Agreement, (ii) Sale of Substantially:- All of Debtors’” Assets Free
and Clear of All Liens, Claims, Encumbrances and Interests, {iii) Waiver of Stay Provisions under
Bankruptcy Rule Section 6004 and 6006 and (iv) Granting Related Relief entered by the Bankruptcy
Court fori the Southern District of New York (White Piains) on May 15, 2003; together with the Asset
Purchase’Agreement dated as of May 15, 2003, by and among Interliant, Inc. and certain of its
qubSldlanes and Intrepid Acquisition Corp., a Delaware corporation and wholly- -owned subsidiary of
the Reglstrant annexed thereto, is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibiis to the Registrant’s
Current Illeport on Form 8-K dated May 16, 2003 (File No. 000-27597).

" Stock and Asset Acquisition Agreement, dated as of August §, 2003, by and between the Registrant and

ClearBlue Technologies, Inc’, is incorporated herein by reference to the Registrant’s Current Report on
Form 8-K dated August 8, 2003 (File No. 000-27597).

Amendn{ent to Stock and Asset Acquisition Agreement dated as of February 6, 2004 by and among the

' Regtstrant ClearBlue Technologies, Inc., ClearBlue Technologies/New York, Inc., ClearBlue

Technolclygtes/ Santa Clara, Inc., ClearBlue Technologies/ Dallas, Inc. and ClearBlue Technologies/
San Francisco, Inc. is mcorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report

on Form' 8-K dated February 6, 2004 (File No. 000-27597).

Asset Pétrchase Agreement, dated as of May 6, 2004, by and among the Registrant, Lexington
Acqmsmon Corp. and Surebridge, Inc.. is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the
Regtstrant s Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 6, 2004 (Fite No. 000-27597).

First Amendmem to Asset Purchase Agreement, dated as of June 10, 2004, by and among the
Reglstmnt Lexington Acquisition Corp. and Surebridge, Inc. is incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 2.2 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated June 10, 2004 (File No. 000-27597).

Asset Purchase Agreement, dated as of July 29, 2005, by and among the Registrant, Lexington
Acqmsmon Corp. and Navint Consulting, LLC. is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 99.1 of
the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on August 3, 2005 (File No, 000-27597).

'Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibits to

the Reg:istrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended October 31, 1999 (File
No. 000-27597).

Cemﬁcate of Amendment of Amended and Restated Centificate of Incorporation, dated as of January 4,
2003, is mcorporated herein by reference to Exhibits to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
for the fiscal quarter ended January 31, 2003 (File No. 000-27597).

Cemﬁcale of Amendment of Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, dated as of January 7,
2003, is mcorporated herein by reference 1o Exhibits to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
for the ﬁscal quarter ended January 31, 2003 (File No. 000-27597).

Amendjed and Restated By-Laws is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibits to the Registrant’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended October 31, 1999 (File No. 000-27597).
Spec:men certificate representing shares of common stock is incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibits to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1/ A (File No. 333-83501).

|
Lease, dated as of May 14, 1999, by and between 400 River Limited Partnership and the Registrant is
meorporated herein by reference to Exhibits to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1
(File No. 333-83501).
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10.3 ¢
104 o
10:5
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10.10*
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1015
10.16
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- Report on Fofm 10-K/. A for the ﬁscai year ended July 31, 2002 (Flle No. 000-27597).

Description of Exhibit

-Amendment No. | to Lease, by and between 400 River Limited Partnership and ‘the Registrant is
incorporated by reference to Exhibits to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Fonn 10-Q for the fiscal
quarter ended October 31, 2003 (File No. 000-27597).

‘Amendment No. 2 to Lease, dated'December 1, 2003, by and between'400 River Limited Partnership
and the  Registrant is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibits to the Regislrant s Repistration
Statement on Form S-2 filed January 22, 2004 (File No. 333-112087). . :

Amendment No. 3 to Lease, by and between 400 Rivér Limited Parmershlp and the Registrant, is
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to the Registrant’s Current Reporl on Form 8-K dated
September 21, 2004 (File No. 000-27597). ‘ H

Lease, made as of April 30, 1999, by and between CarrAmerica Realty Corporation and the Registrant
is incorporated herein by referénce to Exhibits to the Registrant’s Reglstratlon Statement on Form S-1
(File No. 333-83501). a : T 1

First Amendment to Lease, dated as of August:9,' 2006, by and between the Registrant and Carr NP
Properties L'L.C. is incorporated-herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 1o the Registrant’s Currem Report
on Form 8-K dated September 11, 2006 (File No."000-27597).: .~ S

Amended and Restated- 1998 Equity Incentive Plan'is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibits to

. the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the ‘fiscal quarter ended Oclober 31 1999 (File

No. 000-27597).

1999 Employee Stock Purchase Plan is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibits to the Registrant’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended October 31; 1999 (File No. 000-27597).

Letter Agreement, dated Octobér 10, 2002, between ClearBlue Technologies, Inc. and the Registrant, is
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibits to the Reglstrant s rAnnual Reporl on Form 10-K for the
fiscal year.ended July 31;.2002 (File No. 000-27597)..

2000 Stock Option Plan is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibits to the Registrant’s Annual

Assignment Agreement ‘dated Oclober i1,2002 by and between the Reglstram and Fir Tree Recovery

" Master Fund, LP and Fir Tree Value* Bartners, LDC is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4 to

the Schedule 13D filed by the ‘Registrant on November'12, 2002 (File No. 005- 56549).

Renuncnat:on Létter dated October 11, 2002 from the Reglstrant to Interliant, Inc. is incorporated by
refétence to Exhlblt 4 to the Schedule 13D filéd by the- Reglslram on November 12, 2002 (File
No. 005-56549). -

Statement of Work, dated as of January ] 2003, desenbmg the services to be prov1ded to ClearBlue
Technologies,' Inc. by the Registrant under the Outsourcing Agreemem 'dated as of January 1, 2003, by
and between ClearBlue Technoiogles Inc. and the Registrant, is incorporated herein by reference 10
Exhibits to the Régistrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10- Q for the flscal quarter ended January 31,
2003 (File No. 000-27597).

Loan and Security Agreement, dated as of January 3, 2003, by and belween ClearBlue Technologies,
Inc. as Lender and the Reg:ﬂ:tram as Borrower, is mcorporaled herein by reference to Exhibits to the
Reglstrant s Quarterly Report of Form 10- Q for the fiscal quaner ended January 31, 2003 (Flle
No. 000-27597)." - % e

Loan and Security Agreement, dated’as of January 3, 2003, by and between ClearBlue’ Technologies,
Inc. as Borrower and the Registrant as Lender, is incorporated herein by reéference to Exhibits to the

-+ Registrant’s Quarterly Report of Form 10 Q for the fiscal quaner ended January' 31, 2003 (File

No. 000-27597). o g
First Amendment to Loan and Secunty Agreement, dated June 2,72003, by and between ClearBlue

‘Technologies, Inc. and the'Registrant, is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibits to the Registrant’s
- Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended April 30, 2003 (File No. 000-27597).

Loan and Security Agreement, dated'as of January 29, 2003, by and between Atlantic Investors. LLC as
Lender and the Registrant as Borrower, is incorporated herein. by reference to Exhibits to the
Registrant’s Quarterly Report of Form IO-Q for the fiscal quarter ended -January 31, 2003 (File
Ne. 000-27597), .

. “Letter, dated as of January 16, 2004, from Atlantic Investors, LLC as Lender to the Registrant as

Borrower is incorporated. by reference to Exhibits to the Registrant’s Reglstrauon Statement on

* ' . W Form §-2 filed on January 22, 2004 (File No. 333-112087). o I
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Exhibit No. E Descnplmn of Exhibit

10.19 - Letter dated as of July 13, 2004, from Atlantic Investors, LLC, as Lender, 1o the Reglstrant as
Borrower,! is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to the Registrant’s Current Report on
Form 8-K: dated QOctober 12, 2004 (File No. 000-27597).

f
10.20 Letter, dated as of October 12, 2004, from Atlantic Investors, LLC as Lender to the Registrant as
iy Borrower is incorporated herein by reference to. Exhibit 99.1 to the Reglqtrant s Current Report on
1 Form 8-1( dated October 12, 2004 (File No. 000-27597).

10.21 Letter, dated as of January t4, 2003, from Atlantic Investors, LLC, as lender, to the Registrant, as
. borrower,| is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on
Form 8-K filed on January 19, 2005 (File No.-000-27597).

10.22 Letter, dated as of April 30,2005, from Atlantic Investors, LLC, as lender, to the Registrant, as
C borrower, is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on
Form 8-K filed on May 10, 2005 (File No. 000-27597).

10.23 Letter, dated as of July 26, 2005, from Atlantic Investors, LLC, as lender, to the Registrant, as borrower,
is mcorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed
on July 27, 2005 (File No. 000-27597).

10.24 Letter frolm Atlantic Investors, LLC dated as of January 31, 2006 is incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 991 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 10, 2006 (File
No. 000-27597).

10.25*  Employment Agreement, dated as of February 21, 2003, by and between Arthur Becker and the
Registrant, is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibits to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report’of
Form lO-Q for the fiscal quarter ended January 31, 2003 (File No. 000-27597).

10.26*  Separation Agreement dated as of April 3, 2006, by and between the Registrant and Arthur P. Becker is
incorporated herein by reference to exhibit-99.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated
April 6, 2006 (File No. 000-27597). v

10.27 Credit and Guaranty Agreement, dated as of Apnl 11, 2006, by and among the Registrant, certain of its
subsndlanes SilverPoint Finance, LL.C, Field Point I, Lid., Field Point III, Ltd. and SPFCDO, LLCis
mcorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Reglstrant s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for
the fiscal quarter ended April 30, 2006 (File No. 000-27597). .

10.28 Amendment No. 1 to Credit and Guaranty Agreement, dated as of June 2, 2006, by and among the
Regtstrant certain of its subsidiaries, Silver Point Finance, LLC, Fleld Point I, Ltd., Field Point I1, Ltd.
and SPECDO I, LLC is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended April 30, 2006 (File No. 000-27597).

10.29 Pledge and Security Agreement dated as of April 11, 2006, by and among the Registrant, certain of its
subsndlanes SilverPoint Finance, LLC, Field Point I, Ltd., Field Point III, Ltd. and SPFCDOL, LLC is
mcorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for
the fiscal quarter ended April 30, 2006 (File No. 000-27597).,

10.30 Warrant Purchase Agreement, dated as of April 11, 2006, by and among the Registrant, SPCP Group,
LLC. and SPCP Group Il1 LLCis incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Registrant’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended April 30, 2006 (File No. 000-27597).

10.31 Warrant dated as of April 11, 2006, issued by the Registrant to SPCP Group, L.L.C. is incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal
quarter ended April 30, 2006 (File No. 000-27597).

10.32 Warrant, dated as of April 11, 2006, issued by the Reglstram to SPCP Group III LLC is incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal
quarter ‘ended April 30, 2006 (File No. 000-27597).

"10.33 Amended and Restated Loan Agreement, dated as of April 10, 2006, by and between the Registrant and
- Attantic Investors, LLC is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the Registrant’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended April 30, 2006 (File Ne. 000-27597).

10.34 Loan Agreement dated as of April 10, 2006, by and between the Registrant and Atlantic Investors,

LLC is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended April 30, 2006 (File No. 000-27597).

10.35 Atlantic Fund Guaranty, dated as of April 11, 2006, delivered by Unicorn Worldwide Holdings Limited
in favor of the Registrant is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to the Registrant’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended April 30, 2006 (File No. 000-27597).
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10.36 Subordination. Agreement, dated as.of April 11, 2006, by and among the Registrant, certain of its
T subsidiaries, Silver Point Finance, LLC; Atlantic Investors. LL.C and Unicorn Worldwide Holdings
Limited is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to the Registrant’s Qu.u‘terly Report on

Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended Aprit 30, 2006 (File No. 000-27597), 1

10.37 Registration Rights Agreement, dated May 27, 2003, by and between the Registrant and Silicon Valley
: Bank, is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibits to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
.~ for the fiscal quarter ended April 30, 2003 (File No. 000-27597). . :

10.38 - Reglslratton Rights Agreement, dated as of Janudary 30, 2004, by and between the Registrant and
‘ -1 Silicon Valley Bank is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’s Current
Report on Form 8-K dated January 30, 2004 (File No. 000-27597).

10.39°  Warrant to Purchase Stock, dated January 30, 2004, issued by the Registrant to Silicon Valley Bank is
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Reglstranl § Current Report on Form 8-K dated
January 30, 2004 (File No. 000-27597). - -

"10.40 Létter Agreement dated December 11," 2002, between ClearBlue Technologies, Inc. and the
Registrant, is incorporated by reference to Exhibits to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the fiscal quaner ended October 31, 2002:(File No. 000-27597). .

- 10.41* " Offer of Employment Letter to Kenneth Drake dated July 15, 2003 is incorporated by reference to
Exhibits to the Regtstrant ] Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended July 31, 2003 (File
No. 000-27597). S oo

10.42 :  Form of Indemnification Agreement, as executed by Messrs. Andrew Ruhan, Arthur P. Becker, Gabriel
Ruhidn, James H. Dennedy, Larry W, Schwartz, Thomas R. Evans, John J. Gavin, Jr. and Monique

© .« Cormier is incorporated by reference to Exhibits to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for
*+ the fiscal year ended July 31, 2003 (File No. 000-27597).

10.43 Professional Services Agreement between the 'New York State Department” of Labor and

- AppliedTheory Corporation dated November. 2, 200{), is incorporated herein by reference ‘to

. Exhibit 10.56 of AppliedTheory’s' Annual Report on .Form 10-K for the. fiscal year ended
December 31, 2000 (File No. 000-25759).

10:44 Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services Agreement, dated as of May 2, 2001, by.and between the
: New York State Department of Labor and AppliedTheory Corporation is incorporated by reference to
Exhibits to the Registrant’s Registration Statemenl on Form S-2 filed on January 22, 2004 (File

..y - No. 333-112087). .. R

10.45 - Amendment No. 2 to Professional Services Agreement, dated as of October 5, 2001, by and between
the New York State Department of Labor and AppliedTheory Corporation is incorporated by reference
- to Exhibits to the Registrant’s Regtstratton Statement on Form S5-2 filed on January. 22, 2004 (File

No. 333-112087). .

10.46 Amendment No. 3 to Professional Serwces Agreement, dated as of July 24, 2002 by and between the

: n New York State Department of Labor and AppliedTheory Corporation is incorporated by reference:to

+ , - Exhibits to the,Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form $-2 filed on January 22, 2004 (File
No. 333-112087),

10.47 - Amendment No. 4 o Professmnal Servwes Agreement, dated as of November 12, 2002, by and
between the New York State Department of Labor and ClearBlue Technologies Management, Inc. (as

«, assignee of ApplicdTheory Corporation) is incorporated by reference to Exhibits to the Registrant’s
-+, Registration: Statement on Form §-2 fi led on January 22, 2004 (F1]e No. 333-112087).

1048 | Amendment No. 5 to Professional Services Agreement, dated as of March 25, 2003, by and between the

' : New York State Department of Labor and ClearBlue Technologies Management, Inc. (as assignee of
AppliedTheory Corporation) is incorporated by reference to Exhibits to the Registrant’s Registration
Statement on Form S-2 filed on January 22, 2004 (File No 333- ]12087)

. 10.49  Amendment No. 6 to Professional Services Agreement dated as'of September 24, 2003, by and
between the New York State Department of Labor and ClearBlue Techno]ogles Management, Inc. (as
assignee of AppliedTheory Corporation) is incorporated by reference to Exhibits to the Registrant’s
Quarterly Repon on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended October 31, 00L3 (File No, 000-27597).
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Description of Exhibit

Amendment No. 7 10 Professional Services Agreement, dated as of January 5, 2004, by and between the
New YorkiState Department of Labor and ClearBlue Technologies Management, Inc. (as assignee of
ApplledTheory Corporation) is incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Registrant’s Quarterly
Report on I Form 10- Q for the fiscal quarter ended Janvary 31, 2004 (File No. 000-27597}.

Amendmént No. 8 to Professional Services Agreement, dated as of July 1, 2005, by and between the
New York State Department of Labor and ClearBlue Technologies Management, Inc. (as assignee of
AppltedTheory Corporation) is incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended January 31, 2005 (File No. 000-27597).

Professional Services: Agreement, dated as of August 16, 2005, by and between the Néw York State
Department of Labor and ClearBlue Technologies Management, Inc. is incorporated herein by
reference! to Exhibit 99.1 of the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed op August 18,
2005 (Frle No. 000-27597). :

Negottable Promissory Note dated December 1, 2003 issued by the Registrant to U.S. Managers Realty,
Inc. is incorporated by reference to Exhibits to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-2
filed on January 22, 2004 (File No. 333-112087).

Negottable Promtssory Note dated December 23, 2003 issued. by the Registrant to U.S. Managers
Realty, Inc is incorporated by reference to Exhibits to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on
Form S- 2 filed on January 22, 2004 (File No. 333- 112087)

Prom1ssory Note dated June 13, 2002 issued by ClearBlue Technologies Management Inc. to
AppliedTheory Corporation . is incorporated by reference to Exhibits to the Registrant’s
Regtstranon Statement on Form S-2 filed on January 22, 2004 (File No. 333-112087).

Lease and Services Agreement by and between NaviSite Europe Limited and Global Switch (London)
Ltm1tedlts incorporated by reference to Exhibits to the Registrant’s Reg1stratlon Statement on
Form S- 2/ A filed on March 8, 2004 (File No. 333-12087).

Offer Letter dated-June 9, 2004 by and between the Registrant and Stephen Pace is incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 99.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K ﬁled on December 15, 2004
{File No 000-27597).

Regtstratton Rights Agreement, dated June 10, 2004, by and between the Registrant and Surebridge,
Inc. is mcorporaled herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Regtstrant s Current Report on Form 8-K

.dated June 10, 2004 (File No. 000-27597}.

Employment Agreement, dated as of May 6, 2004, by and between the Registrant and John J. Gavin, Jr.
is mcorporated by reference to Exhibits to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form 5-2/ A filed
on June 29, 2004 (File No. 333-12087).

Separatton Agreement, dated as of April 6, 2006, by and between the Reg1strant and John J. Gavin Jr. is
mcorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated

- April 6' 2006 (File No. 000-27597).

Settlement Agreement and Mutval General Release, dated as of January 13, 2005, by and among the
Reglstrant Atlantic Investors, L1.C, Arthur P. Becker, Andrew Ruhan, Gabriel Ruhan and Convergence
Assoc1ates Inc., as agent for substantially all of the former Avasta shareholders, is iricorporated herein
by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form §-K ﬁled on February 10, 2005
(File No. 000-27597).

" NaviSite, Inc. Amended and Restated 2003 Stock Incentive Plan is incorporated herein'by reference to

Appendtx 11 to the Registrant’s Definitive Schedule 14C filed January 5, 2005 (File No. 000-27597).

'Amendment No. | to the NaviSite, Inc. Amended and Restated -2003 Stock Incentive Plan'is

mcorporated herein by reference to Appendix II to the Registrant’s Definitive Schedule 14C filed
January 5, 2005 (File No. 000-27597).

Amendmem No. 2 ta the Amended and Restated 2003 Stock Irtcenttve Plan is 1ncorp0rated herein by
reference to Appendix II to the Registrant’s Definitive Schedule 14C ﬁled March 14, 2006 (File
No. 000-27597)

Compensatton Plan for Senior Vice President, Sales and Marketmg, Stephen Pice — Fiscal Year 2005,
is mcorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 99.2 1o the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed
on May 10, 2005 (File No. 000-27597).
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Amended Compensation Plan for Senior Vice President, Sales and Marketing, Stephen Pace — April 1,
2005 — July 31, 2005, is incorporated herein by reference to-Exhibit 99.3 to the Reglstram s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on May 10, 2005 (File No. 000-27597). .

Agreemeént and Acknowledgement, dated October 19, 2005, by and among the Registrant, Waythere,
Inc., ClearBlue Technologies Management, Inc., Avasta, Inc., Conxion Corporation, Intfepid
Acquisition Corp. and Lexington Acquisition Corp. is .incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.63 to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended July 31,
2005 (Fite No. 000-27597). :

Employment-Offer Letter, dated August 12, 2005, between the Registrant and Monique Cormier is
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.64 to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the fiscal year ended July 31, 2005 (File No. 000-27597).

Separanon Agreement, dated as of April 3, 2006, by and between the Registram and Monique Cormier
is incorporated-herein by reference to Exhibit 99.3 to the Reglstrant s-Current Report on Form 8-K
dated April 6, 2006 (File No. 000-27597).

Summary Regarding Director Compensation is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the
Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form lO (3 for the fiscal quarter ended October 31, 2005 (File
No. 000-27597).

2007 Bonus Letter, dated October 24, 2006, by and between the Registrant and Arthur Becker.
2007 Bonus Letter, dated October 24, 2006, by and between the Registrant and John Gavin.

2007 Bonus Letter, dated October 24, 2006, by and between the Registrant and Monique Cormier.

Code of Business Conduct and Ethics is incorporated herein by reference 1o Exhibit 14 0 the
Reglstrant s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended.luly31 2005 (File No. 000-27597).

Subsidiaries of the Registrant.

Consent of KPMG LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm,

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant
to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,

Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,

(*) Mariagement contract or compensatory plan or arrangement required to be filed as an Exhibit to this Annual
Report on Form 10-K.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Dlrectofs and Stockholders
NaviSite, Inc. and SUbSIdlﬂl‘lBS

~ We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of NaviSite, Inc. and siibsidiaries as of July 31;
2006 and 2005, and the related consolidated statements of operations, changes in stockholders’ equity (deficit), and
cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended July 31,-2006. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company $ managemenl Our responsibility is to express an opiniof on.thesé financial

statements based on our audits.” ooy ) - X - <,

-* We conducted our audus in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accdunting Oversight Board
(United States). Thosé standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial rstatements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

g 4

!
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of NaviSite, ]nc and subsidiaries as of July 31, 2006 and 2005, and the results of their operations and their
cash flows for cach of the years in the three-year period ended July 31, 2006, in conformity with U.S. generally

accepted accounting prmc1ples

As discussed in’ Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, effective August 1, 2005, the Company
adopted the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123(R), Share-Based Payment.

.E
¢
/s/ KPMG LLP l*

Boston, Massachusetts
Qctober 11, 2006
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NAVISITE, INC.
-+ ¥ CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

[ July 31,
LA 2006 2005
' ) ) v (In thousands, except par
‘ ‘ . . value) T
ASSETS o C
Current assets; .. . N
Cash and cash equivalenis . . . ... .. ... . . o $ 3360 § 63816
Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtful accounts of $1,944 and $2 887 at ' e
July 31, 2006 and 2003, respecuvely ..... PR S e 11,872, -. +10,688
Due from related party . . ..........c.. . e e D T PRI I 1)
Unbilled accounts receivable- . .. ... ... ... .o o - 430 . ,, .. .363
Prepaid expenses and other current assets . ....... e FE L. 8,804 2,806
-Total current assets. . . . ... e e e LT W 4406 1 120,774

Property and,equUIpMENt, Nebu. ru oo v e e e e e e e e e e e . 14914 . 15,199
Customer lists, 1éss-accumulated’ amortization of $18,104 and $13,228 at July 31, 2006
and 2005, TeSPECHIVEIY 1l L ot ot ettt e e e e o 11,687 -16,16,563
GoodWill .. .\ e 43,159 43,159
OUBET BSSELS . .+ o v v e et ettt ettt e e e e e e PR 7214 4383
Restricted cash . .. .......... ... ...... T R L U TR AT DRI :939  £1,099
Total assets .. ..oy PRI SRR LS Ve 8 102,409 0 $7101,177
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIT) s ANE o
Current liabilities: ERA C i P ity :
Accounts reccivable financing ling, nét . .0 ... ... ... I U e § 8 20,347
+ Notes payable to the ApphiedTheory Estate . . . ................... oo oot 6,000 - 6,000
.. Notes payable, current portion . .. ... ... e e o415 1,145
Convertible notes payable 1o Waythére, Inc. (formerly Surebridge) .......... ... .. = 35,361
Note payable 1o related party . ......... ... e e e e cLonne— 013,000
Capital lease obligdtions, current portion. . .. ... ... .ottt 2,081 1,259
ACCOUNES PaYAble . . . L. o i e i - 5338 - 8,122
ACCTUE X OIS S .« .\ ittt e e e e e 11,459 12,865

Accrued interest

Accrued lease abandonmeént costs, current portion

913 549
1,360 2,435

Deferred revenue and deferred other income . ... ... .. 0. craoL L e s b 206320 - 1,923
Customer deposits . . . .. . L e e e . 1,670 4 383
“Total current liabilities . ... .7. ... ... ... © 33,568 98,334
Capital lease obligations, 155 CUrrent POTtON . .- .. ..ot uvurvienencine. .z, Vv o T4 41,105
Accrued lease abandonment costs, less current portion. . . ..., ... ... ..., S 1,628 . 1,359
Deferred tax liabilities. . . . .. e e e e e 2,512 1,338
Other long-term liabilities .-, [+, .7........ e e e 3,258 - 1,304
Note payable to rcldlcd paﬂy ............................................. 3,000 —
Nolés payable, lese current pomon .............................. LI oo T 596787 - 409
Total llabllmcs ....................... ey PP setue e eeeay, 104,385, 103,849
Commitments and contingencies {Note 12) TR
Stockholders’ equity {deficit):
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value; Authorized 5,000 shares; Issued and oulstandmg no
shares at July 31,2006 and 2005 . .. . ... ... L — —
Commeon stock, $0.01 par value; Authorized 395,000 shares; Issued and outstanding:
28,959 and 28,487 at July 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively .. . ... ................ 290 285
Deferred compensation . . ... .. ... . it e e e e - (633)
Accumulated other comprehensive Income . .. ... . . i . 203 . 156

Additional patd-in capital
Accumulated deficit

See -accompanying notes to consolidated firancial statements,

Total stockholders’ equity (deficit)
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity (deficit)

F-3

467,400 453,458
(469,869)  (455,938)

(1,976) (2,672)
$ 102,409 $101,177




NAVISITE, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Years Ended July 31,

1
I See accompanying notes:to consolidated financial statements.
i

| F-4

|
adh : _ o 2006 2005 2004
SRERE R I } . . (In thousands, except per share data)
Revenue . ........ L e L $108,844  $109,731  $ 91,126
Revenue, related parties. . . ... ..ot et 243 132 46
1 .
Total revenue. . . ........... e e 109,087 ° 109,863 91,172
Cost of revenue (iﬂClllldeS stock-based compensation expense under
SFAS 123R of $1,024, $0, $0 for financial years ended July 31, 2006, ) -
2005 and 2004, respecuvely) ................................ 75,064 ' 80,227 68,379
Impairment, restructuring and other, met. . .. ...................... — 383 917
Total Cost Of TEVENUE .« o o oottt e et et e e e et e et e 75,064 80,610 69,296
Gross profit. . . .. .. e 34023 . 29253 21876
Operating expenses: 3 '
Selling and marketing (mcludes stock-based compensation expense
under SFAS 123R of $346, $0, $0 for financial years ended July 31,
2006, 2005 and 2004 respectively.) ....... ... ... .t 14,756 12,_?93 1Q,642
General and admlmstranve (includes stock-based compensation expense' o '
under SFAS 123R of $2,988, $0, $0 for financial years ended July 31, e
2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.) .. ... .. ... ... . L 21,787, 23,600 24,714
Impairment, restructuring and other, net . ... ........ e 1,373 + 2,662 _ 5,286
Total Operating eXPENSES . .. ..o oo v ennreeenenrenneannn. 37,916 - 39,255 40,642
Loss from operations). . .. ... ... .. ... ... L i e ' (3','{393) (10,002) .. (18,766)
Other income (expense): ' -
Interestincome . .% . ..... ..., R, P ' 283 . 61 126
Interest expense and amortization of debt discount . ... ............ (9.585y . (7.590) (3;181)
Other i income (expense) ML vt et e e e e e 437 2,785 - ' 468
Loss before income tax EXPENSE. . . . ... PR —_— _(]2,758) - (14, 746) (21,353)
Income tax expense. | ........................................ T (1,173) (1,338) (1)
Netloss ......... IR R L L LR OO $(13,931) $(16,084) 3$(21,354)
Basic and diluted neliloss per common share . . ........... [ 3 049 § (0.57) 3 (0.85)
Basic and diluted welghted average number of common shares -
outstanding .. ... ; ........................................ 28,601 28,202° 25:160
i
i '
f
|
i
" 1




NAVISITE, INC,

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS” EQUITY (DEFICIT)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

F-5

II

‘.\:j

. I,; AT " Accumulated
we o T Other
= Comprehensive Additional Stockholders’
. ” _Common Stock peferred Incorme Paid-in  Accumulated  Equity
v Shares Amount Compensation (Loss} . Capital Deficit (Deficit)
' ot ’ . R o o . (In thousands) . -
Balance at July 31,2003. .. .. .. 23,412 - 8235 n§L— e ag(16) $432, 399 $(415,73§) $ 16,87
Exercise df common stock : ot
OpLONS: . . ..o L 159 L — - - - e 403 e — © 404
Issuance of deferred stock-based Lo Sl v "
compensauon B, — - (1,987)- — -N1e87 e —
Amortization of deferred stock- - : : P
based compensauon ......... — — 473 - — — 473
Issuance of common slock — : ' ' ’ : ' ,
'Avasla eam—oul .......... . me 2 — : — 2] SR 743
Issuance of stock warrants to _ ‘ e
Silicon Valley Bénk . . . . .. L — — — — 213 LT 213
Exercise of Silicon Valley Bank ) e, ) L
stock warranls. J: ..., ..., 74 1 — — m o= =
Issuance of common stock — . o . g "
common control merger wuh : e :
«CBT..... T S 1,100 10 — — . 2,794 . (2.76]) _ 43
Issuance of common stock — .. : LR ) : ’
Surebridge acquisition . , . .. .o 3000 30 = e ws 136200 L. — 13,650
Currency translation adjuslmen[ — — .= 31 T = 3l
Net loss ... ol v = = — e — {21,354) (21,354)
Balance at July 31,2004, .. .... 27924 279 (1,514) 15 452,156 | ,(439,:854) . 11,082
Exercise of commen stock : T, CoL. T ) :
OPHORS . . . .. ...t ... 35 1 — — 88 — ' 89
Issuance of common stock related ! Coen i '
to Avasta arbitration settlement. . 522 5 — — 1,325 — 1,330
Issuance of restricted stock . . .. .. 7 0 = — — . 6 — "6
Forfeiture of testricted stock . . . . . ’ () — — — , ; L = =
Forfeiture of deferred stock-based L t ST
compensation T — — 122 — T(122) ’ T —
Stock compensation and - Co ' . vt '
amortization of deferred stock- ‘
+ based compensation . . .. ... .. e —_ 759 — 5 —_ 764
Currency transtation adjustment. . . — — — 141 o— e — --141
NetIoss .. .ooovnnnnn. e — — = = . 16084 (16,084)
Balance at July 31,2005, .. ... .. 28487 285 (633) 156 453,458. (455 938) (2,672)
.Exercise of common stock ] . 1 R - Co
.options ™. . . .. . c4n 5 — T - L116 —_ 1,121
-Issuance of stock warrants (o Sllver o .
Point Finance . . .. ......... — — — — 9,101 . — 9,101
Stock corﬁpensa’tmn and” ¢ : o ¢
aménization of deferred stock- : ot
+based compensation . . . . . O — o 633 — 3,725 — 4,358
Currency translation adjustment. ... =~ — — — 47 — — .47
Netloss ............... e — = — = — (1393 {13,931)
Balance at July 31,2006. . ... .. 28,959  §290 0 $203 3467400 $(469,869) $ (1,976

“



NAVISITE, INC, )
. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF - CASH FLOWS -

"

L [

Years Ended July 31,

L 2006 2005 - 2004 -
o i ) R (In thousands)
Cash flows from operatmg activities: b - e e
Netloss . ....... ‘ .......... L e 31393 5(16,084)  $(21,354)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash-provided by (used for) operating: - R .
activities: “
Depreciation and AMOTHZAGON. + & v o v e ettt s e e teeae e e 12,791 14,684 12,902
Mark to market for interestrate cap . .......... ... 110° C— =
Deferred 1ncmﬁe LaX EXPENSE . ...ttt i e e 1,174 1,338 . —
Impairment of ]ong—hved assets. . ... ... ...l e —_ 1,820 - 1,145
(Gain) loss on 1d1~;pcnsal Of @88€18 . .. it e an (I, 6
Avasta settlement in common stock . . .. ... . L o oL — . 4% —
Gain On SEHLIEMENLS . . . ..\ttt e e et et 38y *+ (65) e
Gainonsale of MBS practice . .. ... ... .. ... .. ..., e e (2,499) - —
. . Impairment coéts associated with abandoned 1eaqe€ ................ 1,373 1,226 5,058
Amortization of WATTAINES . . v et it e e e e e 657 . 107 358
Non-cash stock COmMPENsSation . .. ... 4,358 - ©769 ¢ 473
Provision for 5ad debis. . . . oo oottt 51 - 2,288 2,568
Changes in operatlng assets and liabilities, net of impact of acquisitions : : T
Accountsreceivable .. ... ... ... SR .. (1,235) 3,364 - 586
Due fromrelated parties . . .. ... ..o 1- — (101
Unbilled acdounts receivable . . .. L e e 6N 1,491 (360)
+ Prepaid expenses and other current assets, net. . .. ........ [, (2,026) 1,404 . (79)
Long-term ag.sets ....................................... 957)-. . 369 ... 498
Accounts payable . .. ... . (1,949) 1,399 (814)
Customer deposits ............ e e . 213 (289) (L
Long-term llabllltles e L 1,795 (45) (844)
Accrued expenses and deferred revenue . . .. ............ e (5,783) (5,146) (4,687)
"Net cash prowded by (used for} operating activities. . . ... ....... (3.410) 6,604  (4,646)
Cash flows from mvestmg activities: .
Net cash acquired i m ACQUISILIONS . . ... vt e e — Lo .6
Purchase of property andequipment . . .. ... . i e (5,772 . (4,790) (4,269)
Proceeds from the sale of equipment . .......... ..ol 17 434 95
Proceeds from the sale of MBS practice . . ... ...... ... ... oo, f— 3,449 K
Net cash used for investing activities ... .................... (5,755) (907) (4,168)
Cash flows from ﬁnarfcing activities:
Release of (transfer) to restrictedcash . ............. ... ... ... . ... (6,370) 607 1,676
Proceeds from exercise of stock options .. ... ... . oo 1,121 89 404
Proceeds from sale Jeaseback. . ...... ..o — — 120
Proceeds from notes payable ........ ... 0.0 .. e ~ 70,436 1,003 450
Repayment of notes payable . .................... e (2,340) (1,614) - (2,055)
Repayment of accoﬁnts receivable line related to acquisition ............. — — (6,874}
Net proceeds from (repayment of) modified accounts receivable line .. ... . (20,400) — 20,400
Payments of notes to affiliates . ... e — — . (30
Payoff of Surebndge line of creditand termnote . ... .. ...... .. ... — —. (3,865
Payment under note payable to Waythere, Inc. (formerly Surebridge) . . ... . {34,611 {800) —
Payments on capital lease obligations . . . ....... ... ... o oo 2,127y . (1,361) (2,079)
Net cash brovided by (used for) financing activities. . ........... 5,709 (2,076) - 8,147
Net increase (decrease) I CASH & vt it i i e e e e e e e (3,456) 3,621 66T
Cash and cash equival‘ents, beginning of year . ... ... ... L 6,816 3,185 3,862
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year. ... 1............. PP °$ 3360 § 6816 - $ 3,195
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash paid forinterest. .. .. ... .o $11,540 % 3,020 % 1,808

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements!
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NAVISITE, INC.
) NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(1) Description of Business

(3} “ !! %

NavxSne Inc. (“NaviSite”, “lhe Company us” or “our”) provides information technology (IT)
hostmg,. outsourcing and professional services for mld— to large-sized organizations. Leveraging our set of
technologles and subject matter expertise, we deliver cost-cffectlve flexible solutions that provide responsive
and predictable levels of service for our clients’ business. Over 940 companies across a variety of industries rely on
NaviSite to bl.llld implement and manage their mission-critical. systems and applications. NaviSite is a trusted
advisor commltted to ensuring the long-term success of our customers’ business applications and technology
strategles NaviSite has 14 state-of-the-art data centers and 8 major office locations across the U.S., , U.K. and India,
Substantially all revenue is generated from customers in the United States.

(2) Summary of Signiﬁcant Accounting Policies
‘(a) Bas:s of Presentanon and Background C ' :

NavnSne was formed in 1996 within CMGI lnc our former majority stockholder to support the networks and
host Web sites of CMGI, its subsidiaries and several of its affiliated companies. In 1997, we began offering and
supplying Web site hosting and management services to companies not affiliated with CMGI. We were incorporated
in Delaware in December 1998. In October 1999, we completed our initial public offering of common stock and
remained a majority-owned subsidiary of CMGI until September 2002, at which time ClearBlue Technologies, Inc.,
or CBT, became our majority stockholder.

« In December 2002, we acquired .all of the issued and .outstanding stock of ClearBlue Technologies
Management, Inc., or CBTM, a subsidiary of CBT, which previously had acquired assets from the bankrupt
.estate’ of AppliedTheory Corporation related to application management and application hosting services.
This acquisition added appllcauon management and developmenl capabﬂmes to our managed application
services. :

. _ ;
* In February 2003, we acquired Avasta, Inc., a provider of appllcauon management services, addmg
automated application and device momtormg soflware capabilities 1o our managed application services.

* In April 2003, we acquired Conxion Corporation, a provider of application hosting, content and electronic
software distribution and security services. This acquisition added proprietary content delivery software and
related network agreements to our managed application services and managed infrastruciure services.

« In May 2003, we acquired assets of Intertiant, Inc. related to managed messaging application hosting and
application development services. This acquisition added messaging-specifit c services and capabilities and
IBM Lotus Domino expemse and formed the core of our managed messaging serwces

« In August 2003, we acquired assets of CBT related to colocation, bandwidth, security and disaster recovery
services, enhancing our managed infrastructure services and adding physical plant assets. Specifically, we
acquired all of the'outstanding shares of six wholly-owned subsidiaries of CBT with data centers located in
Chicago, Illinois; Las Vegas, Nevada; Los Angeles, California; Milwaukee, Wisconsin; Oakbrook, Illinois;
and Vienna, Virginia and assumed the revenue and expenses of four additional wholly-owned subsidiaries of
CBT with data centers located 'in Dallas, Texas; New York, New York; San Francisco, Cahforma and
Santa Clara, California, which four ennnes we later acquired. - '

. In June 2004, we completed the acqmsmon of substantiaily all of the assets and liabilities of Surebridge, Inc.,
a privately held provider of managed application services for mid-market companies. This acquisition
broadened our managed application services, particularly in the areas of financial management, supply chain
management, human rescurces management and customer relationship management. :
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NOT]*!:S TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)
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(b) Principles of Consoladatmn

LT

Bk The accompanymg consolidated financial statements include the accounts of NaviSite, Inc. and our wholly-
owned subsidiaries, ChckHear Inc., NaviSite Acqu151t10n Corp., ClearBlue Technologies Management, Inc.,
Avasta, Inc., Conx:on Corporation, Intrepid Acquisition 'Corp., ClearBlue Technologies/Chicdgo-Wells, Inc.,
ClearBlue Technotogles/Las Vegas, Inc., ClearBlue Techno]oglestos Angeles, Inc:, ClearBlue Technologies/
Milwaukee, Inc., ClearBlue Technologlesl Oak Brook, Inc., and ClearBlue Technologies/Vienna, Inc:, ClearBlue
Technologies/New York Inc., ClearBlue TechnologtestalIaq Inc., ClearBlue Technologles/Santa Clara, Inc.,
ClearBlue Technologies/San Francrsco Inc., Lexington Acqu1smon Corp and NaviSite India Private Limited after
elimination of all sxgmf icant intercompany balances and transactions. . . '

i
{c) Use of Estrmatfs

The preparation 'of financial statements in conformity wnh accoummg prmcnp]es generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management (o make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets and 1lﬂblllileIS and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date ‘of the financial statements and
the reported amountslof revenue and expenses during the reported period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates. Significant estimates made by management include.the useful lives of fixed assets and intangible assets,
recoverability of Iong lived assets, the collectability of receivables, the deferred tax valuation allowance and other
assumptions for sublease and lease abandonment reserves.

' . 1 . . A

(d) Cash and Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash

The Company con51ders all highly.liquid securities with original matunues of three months or less to be cash
equwalems The Company had restricted cash of $7.4 million and $1.2 million as of July 31, 2006 and July 31, 2005,
including $6.5 million and $0.1 million which is classified as short-term on the Consolidated Balance Sheet as of
July 31, 2006 and July 31, 2005, respectively and is included in “Prepaid expenses and other current assets”. The
July 31, 2006 balance primarily represents cash held in escrow for payment to the AppliedTheory Estate against the
Note Payable and cash collateral requirements for standby letters of credit associated with several of the Company’s
fac11ﬂy and equ1pmerlrl jeases. The July 31, 2005 balance represents cash collateral requirements for standby letters
of credit associated w1th several of the Company’s facility and equipment leases.

r
. o “

B (e) Rgvenue Recagnitiun ' e . )

Revenue COnsisl!'s of monthly fees for Web site and Internet application management, hosting, colocation and
professional services. The Company also derives revenue from the sale of software and related maintenance
contracts. Reimbursable expenses charged to clients aré included in revenue and cost of revenue. Application
management hosting and colocation revenue i§ billed and recognized over the term of [he contract, generally one 1o
three years, based on actual usage. Installation fees associated with appllcanon managemem hosting and colocation
revenue is billed at Lhe time the installation service is provided and recognized over the term of the related contract.
Payments received 1n advance of providing services are deferred until the period such services are provided.
Revenue from professmnal services is recognized on either a time and material basis as the services are performed
or under the percemalge of complenon method for fixed price contracts. When current contract estimates indicate
that a loss is probable a provision is made for the total anticipated loss in the current period. Contract losses are
determined to be rhe!amoum by which the estimated service costs of the contract exceed the estimated revenue that
will be generated by the contract. Unbilled accounts receivable represents revenue for services performed that have
not been billed. Bllllmgs in excess of revenue recogmzed are recorded as deferred revenue until the applicable
revenue recognition criteria are met. Revenue from the sale of software is recognized when persuasive evidence of
an arrangement exists, the product has been delivered, the fees are fixed and determinable and collection of the
resulting receivable i 1s reasonably assured. In instances where the Company also provides application management
and hosting serv1ces! in conjunction with the sale of software, software revenue is deferred and recognized ratably

[
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NAVISITE, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

over the expected customer relationship period. If we determine that collection of a fee is not reasonably assured, we
defer the fee and recogmze revenue at the time collecuon becomes reasonably assured, which is generally upon
receipt of cash. . A . -

(P Concentration of Credit Risk

*- Qur finaricial instruments include cash, accounts receivable, obligations under capital leases, debt agreements,
derivative instruments, accounts payable, and. accrued expenses. As of July 31, 2006, the carrying cost of these
instruments approximated their fair vatue. The financial instruments that potentially subject us to concentration of
credit risk consist primarily-of accounts receivable. Concentration of credit risk with respect to trade receivables is
limited due to the large number of customers across many industries that comprise our customer base. One third-
party government customer accounted for 9%, 8% and .12% of our total revenue for the fiscal year ended July 31,
2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Accounts receivable included approximately $0.9 million, $1.0 million and
$1.5 million due from this third-party customer at July 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

)

() Corriprehensive Income (Loss)

oo : :
Comprehensive income (loss) is defined as the change in equity of a business enterprise during a period of time
from transactions and other events and circumstances from non-owner sources. The Company reports accumulated
other comprehensive income (loss), resulting from foreign currency translation adjustments, on the Consolidated
Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity (Deficit). : )
Al

(k) Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of the assets, which range from three to five years. Leasehold improvements and assets
acquired under capital leases are amortized using the straight:line method over, the shorter of the lease term or
estimated useful life of the asset. Assets acquired under capital leases in which title transfers to us at the end of the
agreement are amortized over the useful life of the asset. Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged to
expense as incurred. : ’

Renewals and betterments, which materially extend the life of assets, are capitalized and depreciated. Upon
disposal, the asset cost and related accumulated depreciation are removed from their respective accounts and any
gain or loss is reflected within “Other income (expenge), net” in our Consolidated Statements of Operations.

(i} Long-lived As’sets, Goodwil!'ang' Other Intangibles

“ L. ]

The Company follows the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS™) No. 144,
“Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.” This statement requires that long-lived assets
and certain identifiable intangibles be reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicaté that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held and used is
measured by a companson of the carrying amount of an asset to undtscounted future net cash flows expected to be
generated by the asset. If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized is measured by
the amount by Wthh the carrying amount of the assets exceeds the fair value of the assets. Assels to be disposed of
are reported at the lower of the carrying amount or falr value less cost to sell. '

The Company reviews the valuation of goodwill in accordance with SFAS No. 142 “Goodwﬂl and Other
Intangiblé Assets.” Under the provisions of SFAS No. 142, goodwill is required to be tested for impairment annually
in lieu of being amortized. This testing is done in the fourth fiscal quarter of each year. Furthermore, goodwill is
required to be tested for impairment on an interim basis if an event or circumstance indicates that it is more likely
than not an impairment loss has been incurred. An impairment loss shall be recognized to the extent that the carrying
amount of goodwill exceeds its implied fair value. Impairment losses shall ‘be recognized in operations. The

.
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i
NOTE;)S TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)
Company’s valuation' methodology for assessing impairment requires management to make judgments and
assumptions based on'historical experience and projections of future operating performance. If these assumpuons
differ materially from future results, the Company may record impairment charges in the future.

() Income Taxes - .

|
We account for|income taxes under the. asset and liability method in accordance with SFAS No. 109,

“Accounting for Income Taxes”. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences
attributable to differe'nces between the financial staterment carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and
their respective tax- bases and operating loss and tax credit carryforwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
measured using enacled tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary
differencesare expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred 1ax assets and liabilities of a change in tax
rates is recognized i in. income in the period that includes ‘the enactment date. "o

N . - e '

(k) Derivative Financial Instruments
1)

Derivative instruments are recorded in the balance sheet as either assets or liabifities, measured at fair vél‘ue.
Changes in fair valuelare recognized currently in earnings. The Company utilizes interest rate derivatives to protect
hgainst rising interest rates on a portion of its floating rate debt and did not qualify to apply hedge accounting. The
interest rate differentjals to be received under such derivatives and the changes in the fair value of the instruments
are recognized over the life of the agreements as adjustments to interest expense. The principal objectives of the
derivative instruments are to minimize the risks and reduce the expenses assoctated with financing activities. The
Company does not use financial instruments for trading purposes. P .

7 | .
Uy Lease Expense; .

. o : : ! o o

' - Lease expense for the Company’s real estate leases, which generally have escalating lease payments over the
term of the leases, is recorded-on a straight-line basis over the lease term, as defined in SFAS No. 13, Accounting for
Leases. The dlfferenée between-the expense recorded in the consolidated statements'of operations and the amount
paid is recorded as deferred rent and is included in the consolidated balance sheets. K

(m) Advemsmg Cosrs - ‘._r ' ..

We recogmze advert:smg costs as incurred. Advertlsmg expeénse was approximately $0.1 million, $0 and
$20,000 for the fiscal years ended July 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively, and is included in the accompanymg
Consolidated Statemems of Operations as a component of selling and marketing expenses.

e 1 .- e N

. (n) Stock-Based. Compensauon Plans : : ) . e .

In December 2004 “the Financial Accountmg Standards*Board (FASB) issued a Statemem “Share Based
Payment an, amendment of FASB Statements Nos. 123 and 357 (SFAS 123R), that addresses the accoummg for
share-based paymem transactions in which a company receives employee services in exchange for either equity
meruments of the company or liabilities that are based on the fair value of the company ’s equity instruments or that
may ‘be settléd by lhe issuance of such equity instruments. The statement eliminates the abitity to account for share-
based compensation|transactions using the intrinsic value method and generally requires that such transactions bé
accounted for usmg a fair value based method and recognized as expense in the Consolidated Statement of
Operations. In. March 2005, the SEC issued Staff Accounting Bulletin (SAB) No. 107 regarding the Staff’s
interpretation of- SFAS 123R. This interpretation provides the Staff’s views regarding interpretations- between
SFAS 123R and ceritam SEC rutes and regulations and provides interpretations of. the valuation of share-based
payments for public companies. The interpretive guidance is intended to assist companies in applying the provisions
of SFAS 123R and investors and users of financial statements in analyzing;the information provided. "
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NAVISITE:.INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

. Following the guidance:prescribed in-SAB 107, on August 1,.2005, NaviSite adopted SFAS 123R using the
modified prospective method,,and-accordingly, we have not restated the consolidated results of operations from
prior interim periods and fiscal years. Under SFAS 23R, we are required to measure compensation cost for all stock
based awards-at fair valué.on"date of grant and recognize compensation expense: over the requisite service period
tharthe awards are expected to vest. For U.8. grants; the Company generally grants options under its equity plan that
vestas to-25% of the original number of shares on the six month anniversary of the option holder.and thereafter in
equal monthly amounts over the three year period commencing:on the six month anniversary of the option holder. In
February 2006; the Company issued its first option grants to its India employees. The options vest as to 33.33% of
the original number of shares on the ninth month following the date of the grant and thereafter in equal menthly
amoiunts over the-three year penod commencmg on the ninth month- followmg the date of grant. }

e [ L

Prior to the adoption of SFAS l23R we recogmzed compensation cost for stock options issued with exercise
prices set below market prices on the date of grant. We recorded stock compensation expense of approximately
$0.8 m:lllon and $0.5 million during the fiscal-years ended July 31, 2005,and 2004.respectively., The following table
ilustrates the effect on net loss and net loss per, common share if. we, had ,applied the falr value recognition

provisions of SFAS 123 to stock based compensation.
U N

i Fiscal Fiscal
o 2005 2004
: + (In thousands, except- - '(In thousands, except
e ) 3 per share data) ] per share data)
Net Loss,as reported .............. ... . ...oo.n. $(16,084) C$(21,354)

Add Stock based employee compensation expense From .,
the Amended and Restated 2003 Stock Incentive Plan
mcluded in reported net loss . ..., S 8,769 $ 473

Deduct Total stock based empioyee compensauon expense . T .
determined under falr value based method for all

awards ..ot $ (5,651) § (5,702)

" ? —_— —_—

Net Loss as adJu§[ed‘ ..... KRR e e $(20,966) $(26,583)
Net Loss per cofiion share:Z ' - : -

Basic and diluted —as reported. . . ... ... 2 L ... L8 (0.57) - § (0.85)

Basic and diluted — as adjlsted. . . . . .. B S (VI )] . (l .06)

-

The fair value of each stock optlon grant was esnmaled on the date of grant using the Black- Scholes option
pricing model, assummg no expected dividends and 1he followmg welghted average assumptions.

‘|l|

o e . : ‘ 2005 . 2004

Risk-free interestrate .. ....... ... ... ... .. .. 3.19% 2.68%
" Expected volatility S ...t L7 124.95% - 137.34%

Expected life (year$):" ... 000 o 2.08

Weighted average fair value of options granted during the period .. ... ...... $ 178 § 458

Upgn adoption of SFAS 123R, we recognized the compensation expense associated with awards granted after
August I, 2005'and the unvested portion &f previously granted awards that remain outstanding as of August 1, 2005,
in our Consolidated Statement of Operations for the first quarter of fiscal year 2006, During the year ended July 31,
2006, we recorded approximately $1.0 mitlion in cost of sales, $0.3 million in sales and marketing and $3.0 million
in general and adrrumstrauve expenses for stock-based compensation expense. In February 2006, the Company
granted optlons to certain senior managers as part of the FY(06 management bomis program. The options were
granted with the standard 42 months vesting schedule with the option to accelerate all vesting if certain performance
criteria were ‘achieved. Tt was.probable that the performance criteria.were achieved and the options were fully
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|
accelerated at July 31: 2006. The stock compensation costs relating to this acceleration was approximately $30,000
alld $0.2 million, mcluded in cost of sales and general and administrative expenses, respectively.

“ Consistent with ¢ our valuation method for the dlsclosure-only provisions of SFAS 123, we are using the Black—
Scholes option pncmg model to-value the compensation expense associated with our stock-based awards under
SFAS 123R. In addmlon we estimate forfeitures when recognizing compensation expense, and we will adjust our
estimate of forfeitures when they are expected to differ. For the three months ended July 31, 2006, we estimated that
5% of options granted will be forfeited before the first vesting tranche. Forfeitures afier the first vesting tranche are
estimated to not be m;alerial. Prior to the quarter ended April 30, 2006, we estimated that 15% of options granted
would be forfeited before the first vesting tranche. This change in accounting estimate was reflected by recognizing
a cumulative adjustmlent in compensation cost in the quarter ended April 30, 2006.

i
The fair value otL" each stock option grant was estimatéd on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option
pricing model, assuming no expected dividends and the following weighted average assumptmns The expected
volatility is based upon the historical volatility of the Company s stock pnce

’ Fiscal

| 2006
Risk-free interesft rate. .. ... e 4.55%
Expected volatility . ... ........ PP PP 107.04%
Expected iife(ye;ars) .......... PR R 2.51
Weighted average fair value of options granted .. ... ... e TR Lo 8127

I

The following table reflects stock option activity under the Company’ s €quity plans for the ﬁscal year ended
July 31, 2006. '

L5

| ' Weighted

i Weighted Average

! Number Average Remaining Aggregate

! T of Exercise Contractual Intrinsic

. | Shares Price Term Value

Options 'outstanrjling, beginning of year ........ 6,086,655 $3.26 . — R —
Granted; ......... 2,185,825  31.93 — —
Exercised. . ..:.............. e (471,342)  $2.38 — —
Forfeited or Expired ... ....... Lol (1210345 $3.62 C = —
Options Outstandmg, July 31, 2006........... 6,590,793  $2.82 8.36 9,608,473
Options Exerclsable July 31,2006 ........... 3,464,160 $3.33 7.81 4,002, 448

The total remamlng unrecognized compensation cost related to nonvested awards is $4.1 rmlhon The
weighted average penod over which the cost is expected to be recognized is 2.11 years.

The following table highlights the activity and value of ‘the nonvested shares during fiscal year 2006.

] -
! a v : o . Weighted Averagé
i Number of Shares Grant-Date Fair Value

Nonvested shares as of July 31, 2005........... Lioee o 35016200 $1.99 ~ 7

Granted . . . .. e P 2,185,825 © $127 '
Vested ...k e (1.856,034) " $2.09
Forfeited. . . . . e e , (04778 | $164
Nonvested shards as of July 31, 2006, ... ... . ... L - 3,126,633 . $1.51

;
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NAVISITE, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

(o) Historical and Unaudited Pro Forma Basic and Diluted Net Loss Per Common Share

Basic net loss per common share is computed by dwrdmg net loss by the weighted average number of common
shares outstanding during the period. Diluted net loss per common share is computed using the weighted average
number of common and diluted common eqmvalent shares oulslandmg during the period, using elther the “if-
converted” method for convertible preferred stock and notes or lhe treasury s[ock method for warrams and opnons
unless amounts are anti- dilutive,

For fiscal years ended July 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, net loss per basic and dllulcd share is based on weighted
average common shares and excludes any common stock equivalents, as they would be anti-dilutive due to the
reported’ losses. There were 2,050,240, 406,346 and 970,748 of diluted shares related to warrams employee stock
options and unissued shares related to the Avasta settlement that were excluded as lhey have an'anti-dilutive effect
due to lhc losses for fiscal years 2006, 2005 and 2004, respecuvely J

(p) Ségment Repdm’ng

We currently operate in one reponable segment, managed IT services. The Company ] chlef operanng
decision maker reviews financial information at a consolidated level.

. (q) Recent Accounting Pronouncements

On September 13, 2006, the Securilies and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) issued Staff Accounting Bul-
letin No. (“SAB 108") which provides interpretive guidance on how the effects of the carryover or reversal of prior
year misstatements should be considered in quantifying a current yeai misstatement. SAB 108 is effective for fiscal
years ending after November 15, 2006. We are currently evaluatmg the effect, if any, that this pronouncemem wrll
havc on our financial results.

In September 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB") issued SFAS No. 157 “Fair Value
Measurements” (*FAS 1577). FAS 157 defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and expands disclosures about fair value measurements.
The provisions of FAS 157 are effective for the fiscal vear beginning June 1, 2008. The Company is currently
evaluatmg the impact of the provisions of FAS 157.

In June 2006, the Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) reached a consensus on EITF 06-3, “How Taxes
Coltected from Customers and Remitted to Governmental Authorities Should Be Presented in the Income
Statement”. EITF 06-3 provides that taxes imposed by a governmental authority on a revenue producing transaction
between a seller and a customer should be shown in the income statement on either a gross or a net basis, based on
the entity’s accounting policy, which should be disclosed pursuant to APB Opinion No. 22, “Disclosure of
Accounting Policies.” If such taxes are significant, and are presented on a gross basis, the amounts of those taxes
should be disclosed. EITF 06-3 must be applied to financial reports for interim and annual reporting periods
beginning after December 15, 2006. We are currently evaluatmg the impact EITF 06-3 will have on the presentation
of our consolidated financial statements.

In June 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes”
(“FIN 487). FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in the Company’s financial
statements in accordance with FASB Statement No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes.” The provisions of FIN 48
are effective for the fiscal year beginning June 1, 2007. We are currently evaiuatmg the impact of the provisions of
FIN 48 will have on our financial results.

In February 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 155, “Accounting for Certain Hybrid Financial Instruments -
an amendment of FASB Statements No. 133 and-140”. SFAS No. 155 (1) permits fair value re-measurement for any
hybrid financial instrument that contains an embedded derivative that would otherwise require bifurcation,
(2) clarifies which interest-only strips and principal-only strips are not subject to the requirements of FASB
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i

Statement No. 133, (3) establishes a requirément to evaluate interests in securitized financial assets to identify
interests that are freestand:ng derivatives or that are hybrid financial instruments that contain an imbedded
denvatlve requmng blfurcatton (4) clarifies that concentrations of credit rigk in the form of subordination are not
embedded denvatlves and (5) amends FASB Statement No. 140 to eliminate the prohibition on a qualifying special-
purpose entity from holdlng a derivative ﬁnanc:al instrument that pertains to a beneficial interest in other than
another derivative fmlancm] instrument, SFAS No. 155 is effective January 1, 2007 and’ we are currently evaluating
the effect, if any, thaf this pronouncement will have on our future financial results.

In May 2005, the FASB |ssued SFAS No. 154, “Accounting Changes and Error Corrections: A Rep!acement of
APB Opinion No. 29 and SFAS No. 3. This statement changes the requirements for the accounting for and
repomng of a voluntary change in accounting principle, and also applies to instances when an accounting
pronouncement does not include specific transition provisions. The statement replaces the previous requirement
that voluntary change's be recognized by including the curmnulative effect of the change in net income of the period of
the change. The statement requires retrospective application of a new accounting principle to prior periods’
financial statements, unless it is impracticable to determine either the period-specific effects or the cumulative
effect of the change.;The statement is effective for changes and corrections made in fiscal years beginning after
December 13, 2005. The Company does not expect the adoption of the statement to have a material effect on its
financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.

In November 2005, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position (“FSP")'FAS 123(R)-3, “Transition Election to
Accounting for the_T%:x Effects of Share-Based Payment Awards”. This FSP requires an entity to follow either the
transition guidance 'for the additional-paid-in-capital pool as prescribed in SFAS No. 123(R), Share-Based
Payment, or the altematlve transition method as described in the FSP. An entity that adopts SFAS No. 123(R)
using the modified prospectwe application may make a one-time election to adopt the transition method described
in this FSP. An entity may take up to one year from the later of its initial adoption of SFAS No. 123(R) or the
effective date of this FSP to evaluate its available transition alternatives and make its one-time election. This FSP
became effective in November 2005. The adoption of FSP FAS 123(R)-3 will not have a material impact on our
consolidated ﬁnanciajtl statements or the results of operations.

o |
" '(r) Foreign Currency

The functional (::urrencies of our international subsidiaries are the local currencies. The financial statements of
the subsidiaries are trians]ated into U.S. dollars using period end exchange rates for assets and habilities and average
exchange rates during corresponding periods for revenue, cost of revenuve and expenses. Translation gains and
losses are deferred and accumulated as a separate component of stockholders’ equity (“Accumulated other
comprehenswe 1ncome (loss)’).

1
|

-

A s) Reclass:ﬁcatioins \

* Certain fiscal yelar 2005 and fiscal year 2004 dmounts have been reclaq.srﬂed to conform to the fiscal year 2006
financial statement presentation.

(3) Impairment of Long-Lwed Assets S

‘The Company recorded approxnmately $0.8 million of 1mpa1rment charges during fiscal year 2005, for
property and equipnient, consisting primarily of unamortized leasehold improvements, related to our facilities in
Lexington, MA; Santa Clara, CA and Vienna, VA, which we have abandoned. In addition, the Company recorded an
impairment charge elurmg the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2005 in the amount of $1.1 miilion related to its
invesiment in* debt securities as discussed in Note 8. The impairment charges are included in “Impairment,
restructuring and other” in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations (see Note 12). No such
charges were recorded during fiscal year 2006.
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During fiscal year 2004, the Company recorded a $1.1 million charge including a $0.6 million impairment
charge for furniture and fixtures related to abandoned leases in Houston, TX; Syracuse, NY and San Jose, CA, a
$0.2 million charge for capual mprovemems to our impaired space at 400 Minuteman Road in Andover, MA and a
$0.3 million charge Telated to the impairment of leasehold improvements in our facmry at 55 Francisco Street,
San Francisco, CA.

All impairment charges were recorded in the Consolidated Statements of Operations based upon the nature of
the asset being impaired and the nature of the asset’s use. The impairments recorded as a separate component of cost
of revenue related to assets that were either being utilized or had at some time been utilized to generate revenue. The
determination was based upon how the assets had h:stoncally been expensed, either as lease expense or depre-
cnauon/amoruzauon

(4) Property and Equnpment

. Property and equipment at July 31, 2006 and 2005 are. summanzed as follows

July 31,
2006 2005
(In thousands)

*  Office furniture and equipment . ........ e e % 3303 § 3,159
Computer eqUIPMENt . . ... ..ttt et 45,075 38,690
SOFIWAIE TICENSES . -+ v v v e e e e e e e e e e e e e 11,216 10,658
Leasehold improvements. . . . ... . ..ottt e e e - 9958 9,369

69,552 61,876
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization ..................... (54,638) (46,677) -
Property and equipment, net . .. ........... ... ..., e $14914 §15,199

The estimated useful lives of our fixed assets are as follows: office furniture and equipment, 5 years; computer
equipment, 3 years; software licenses, the shorter of 3 years or the life of the license; and leasehold improvements,
the shorter of the useful life or the lease term. ,. o - P '

The cost and related accumulated amortization of property and equipmens held under capital leases (classified
as computer equipment above} are as follows:

July 31,
K ‘ 2006 2005
(In thousands)
00T PR P $8505 $6,637
1

Accumulated depreciation and amortization ........ L e (7,082 (6,097
: $1423 § 540
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(5) Intangible Assets S

lntanglble assets consnsl of customer lists resultmg from our acquisitions of Avasta, lnterllant and Surebridge
and the “as if poolmgs of CBTM and CBT. The gross carryin g amount and accumulated amortization as of July 31,
2006 and 2005 for customer lists related to prior acquisitions are as follows:

; July 31,
Lo , : 2006 2005
' i . . (In thousands)
Gross carrying amount . . ...... e e e $29,791  $ 29,791
Less: Accumulated amortization .. ... ................ e (18,104)  (13,228)
Custorner lists, et . .. ... oovooee. .. AU $ 11,687 $ 16,563

I
During the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2005, the Company wrote off approximately $1.2 million of gross
carrying value and $0 3 million of related accumulated amortization, in conjunction with the MBS transaction.

Intangible assetjamortization expense for the years ended July 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 aggregated
$4.9 million, $5.6 rmlihon and $3.8 million, respectively. Customer lists are being amortized over estimated useful
lives ranging from ﬁve to eight years. The amortization expense related to mtanglble assets for the next five years is
as follows: :

Year Ending July 3], ‘ ' {In thousands)
2007 ........ e o $3932
2008........ U $3,044
2009 ........ R A $1,868
2000........ RS SRR $1,005
000 oo e '$ 988

(6') Goodwni]

" The following table presents details of the Company s carrying amount of goodwxll for the fiscal years ended
July 31: 4

Coa . Fiscal s+ Fiscal Fiscal

|
! ' 2006 2005 2004
: . (In thousands)
Goodwill asof August 1. ... ....... ... ... . ... ... ..... $43,159  $459520 § 3,206
Goodwill acquired . . . .. ... ... — — 42,714
Adjusuments to preliruinary purchase price allocation .. ... .. e — (2,761 —
Goodwill as of Jiuly 3 $43,159  $43,159  $45,920

During the fiscal year ended July 31, 2005, the changes in estimates used for fair value adjustments to assets
acquired and hablhtles assumed resulted primarily from $3.1 million in working capital adjustments associated
with the 2004 Surebndge asset purchase agreement (see Note 7), offset by $0.3 million of changes in estimates of
the fair value of certain Surebridge assets and liabilities recorded during the initial purchase price altocation, which
was finalized in fiscat 2005.

(7) Acquisition !

I
Surebridge. On June 10, 2004, we completed the acquisition of substantially all of the assets and liabilities of
Surebridge, Inc., or' Surebndge a privately held provider of managed application services for mid-market
companies (now knotwn as Waythere, Inc.), in exchange for two promissory notes, in the aggregate principal

| F-16
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amount of approximately $39.3 million, which were paid off in fiscal year 2006, three million shares of our common
stock and the assumption of certain liabilities of Surebridge at closiig. The primary reasons for the acquisition
included the addition of service offerings, specific contractual relationships with PeopleSoft and Microsoft, and
established contractual revenue base, as well as potential operational savings. As the primary reasons for the
acquisition were not related to the tangible net assets of Surebridge, the purchase price was significantly in excess of
the fair value of the net assets acquired. The acquisition was accounted for under the purchase method of
accounting. Upon final resolution of the net “worth calculation in the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2005, which
resulted in a reduction of approximately $3.1 million in the outstanding principal balance of the outstanding notes
payable and a corresponding reduction in goodwill (see Note 6), we completed the final purchase accounting for this
acquisition during the fourth quarter of 2005. We have included the ﬁnanc1al resu]ls of Surebridge in our

consohdated ﬁnan(:lal statement begmmng June 10, 2004, the date of acqu1snt10n
.

[ . .

) . . o . . : wll, s . s 7
(8) Investment in Debt Securities

In e privately negotiated transaction with Fir Tree Recovery Master Fund, LP and Fir Tree Value Partners,
LDC, pursuant to an Assignment Agreement dated October 11, 2002 and in a series of open market transactions
from certain other third-party holders, we acquired an aggregate pr1nc1pal amount of approximately $36.3 million
face value, 10% convertible senior notes (Interliant Notes} due in 2006 of Interliant, Inc. (Interhfim) for a total
consideration of approximately $2.0 million. Interliant was a provider of managed services, which filed a petition
under Chapter 11 of Title 11 of the United States Bankruptcy Code- in the.Southern District of New York (White
Plains) on August 5, 2002 and we made thls investment with the intention of paruc1patmg inthe reorgamzatlon/sale

1]

of Interllant oo o : . C el s

ot : - . . o . '
. o PRI 2

‘On May 16, 2003 the Bankruptcy Court conﬁrmecl us as the successful bldder for the purchase of the Interliant
Assets. We used $0.6 million’ of the first projected distributions to:be - made on our Interliant Notes as partial
payment for the assets acquired. As such, we have reduced the cdrtying value of the Interliant Notés by this athount.
On September 30, 2004, the Third Amended Plan: of Liquidation of Interiiant and its affiliated debtors became
effectivé. As a result of unfavorable facts and circumstarices occurring in the fourth’ qiiarter of fiscal year 2003, as
learned from bankruptcy counsel, which negatively impacted the recovérability ofour investment, the Company
recorded an impairment charge in the amount of $1-1 miilion, reducing the carrying value of the Interliant Notes to
approximately $0.2 million. The final amount and timing of any distributions we will receive on our Interliant Notes
will be determined when all claims against the estate have been settled. [t may be areater or less than the remammg
$0.2 m11hon carrymg value which is mcluded in “Other assets on our Consolidated'Balance Sheets.

.,u‘
-t

(9 Accfneii Expenses

B A o . . : A T
'Accruéd expenses consist of the following: * - ' . ) '
2 G AR P “July 31,
ChL . Coe v, 2006 o 2008
. . e TP G . s, o, (In thousands)
Accrued payroll, benefits and commissions ... . ... Lo a o n L S0 o 43315 5 3,846
Accruedlegal . ........................ e 412 1,361
Accrued accounts payable ... ... .. et e .,.2905 2,896
Accrued contract termination fees .. .......... TR S + 634+ . 429 -
Accrued sales/use, property and rmscellaneous taxes ... ... ... e 1,070 ' 1:075
Accruedother...'..'...-.:.'....-..‘.; ..... e e PV a0 V2107 . 3258
. . B cat (S i

s T T T T s11459 812,865
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(10) Debt ; T R Y S T T
i Debg coqsists of thelfollc‘)i\'ai'ir'lg: : *a . a oo . ‘, h IL . .. . ! :,7" _' . T. ‘.
: . o . .o ‘ " oo ;o L 1 ) Lo
N T STR e -, 2006 . 2005 .,
Lo Co ot P . ., e ol . (In thousands) r
.. Accounts receivable financing line, net .z . ... .. e s e & — 820,347,
.The Term Loan,/net of discount .1, . ... ... st ol 108, - 61, 345 Lt
« "Notes’ payable to the ‘AppliedTheory Estate . . . Je s ".;-'.-,‘ ..... R - 6,000 ' 6,000 -
Notes payable 10 the Allantlc Investors e e o ce S 3,000 | 3,000
Notes payable to landlord .. SRR .5.'. Sl - 319 1,157
- Convertible notes payable to Waythere, Inc. (formerly Surebridge) . ......... — 35,361
Other notes payé‘lble ....................................... a0 €129 0T 397
Total ... ... } e e e e e i 70,793, 66,262
:Less.current ponion S O A S P oL e 8,115 0 658530
| m‘ Lohg-term debi . .. "t L L 8626787 8 409
HEEETE A ' ‘4-7. -4 5 - e it gt e g e G
(a) Term Loan and Revolvmg Credtt Faczltty . ST S de

On Apnl 11, 2OQ6 we entered irito a senior secured Term L.oan and senior secured Revolvmg Credll Fac111ty
(the Credit Facility) with Silver Point Finance LLC, (the Lender) to répay certain maturing debt and increase
borrowing available for corporate purposes. The Term Loan consists of a five.year single-draw Term Loan in the
aggregate amount of $70 million.- Borrowings under the Term Loan are guaranteed,by the Company and-all of its
subsidiaries. During the first twelve months of the loan, we are requlred to make quarterly interest only payments to
the Lender and commencing’one,year.after.closing date of .the loan, we are also scheduled to make quarterly
repayments of. the, pl?nc:pal +The.maturity- date .of the Term Loan is April 11, 2011. The Lender is entitled 1o
prepayment of :the outstandmg batance under the Term-Loan, if any, upon.the occurrence.of, various events,
including among others if the-Company sells assets and does. not reinvest the proceeds in assets,. receives.cash
proceeds from the mcurrence of any.indebtedness, has. excess .cash, or closes an equity financing transaction,
provided that the ﬁrsf $10 million plus.50% of the remaining net proceeds from-an equity financing shall not be
subject to the mandatory prepayment requirement. Generally, prepayments are subject to a prepayment premium
ranging from §%- I%Wdependmg upon the timing of the prepayment (see Note 11 for discussion of the vatuation of
this prepayment premium). The unpaid amount of the Term Loan and accrued interest and all other obligations shall
become due and payable immediately upon occurrence and continuation of any event of default! Under the Term
Loan agreement, we!must comply with various financial and non-financial covenants. The financial covenants
include among others minimum fixed charge coverage ratio, maximum ‘consolidated leverage ratié, minimum
consolidated EBITDA ‘and maximum annval capital expenditures. The primary non- -financial covenants limit our
ablhty to pay dividends, make investments, engage in transactions with affiliates, sell assets, conduct mergers or
acquisitions, incur mdebtedness or liens, alter capital structure and sell stock. At July 31, 2006 we were not in -
compliance with the maximum annual capital expendlture covenant which.condition-was subsequently waived by
the Lender. r‘ ‘ ) . ‘ o e e

.

Outstandmg améunts of the Term Loan bear interest at either: (a) 7% per annuny’ p]us the ‘greater of (i) Prime
Rate, and (ii) the’ Federal Funds Effective Rate plus 3%, or (b) 8% plus the floating: rate 'of LIBOR. To the extent
interest payable on the Term Loan {(a) exceeds the LIBOR Rate plus 5% in year.one or (b) exceeds the LIBOR Rate
plus 7% for the years thereafter, such amounts exceeding the threshold will be capitalized and .added to the
outstanding principal| amount of the Term Loan and shall incur interest. Outstanding amounts under the Revolving
Credit Facility bea’r'in“téfest at either: (a) 7% per annum plus, the greater of (i) Prime Rate, and (ii) the Federal Funds
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Effective Rate plus 3%, or (b) 8% plus the floating rate of LIBOR; Interest is'payable in arrears on the-last day of the
month for Base Rate 10ans; and thé last day of the chosen interest period {one, two or three montlis) for LIBOR Rate
loans. We ‘are required to maintain Interest Rate Agreements constituting caps with respect to an aggregate notional
pr1nc1pal amount of a portion of the Loan, to hmrt the Unadjusted LIBOR Rate Component of the interest costs to
the Company (See Note ll) o ' S

L.

.. .

o L3 . . g

As of July 31, 2006 we had $707 mrlhon gross outstandmg under the Term . Loan and had accrued
approximately $0.4 million in interest related to this Term Loan. The amount borrowed was used to repay our
accounts receivable financing line with Silicon Valley Bank, convertible notes and interest payable to Waythere,
Inc. (formerly Surebridge, Inc.) and to pay transaction fees and expenses relating to the loan. In addition, we
borrowed $6.4: mrlhon which-isibeing held in an escrow .account 10 .payoff notes payable to the AppliedTheory

"

Estate. =’ : S TR S . : . © T

In connectlon w1th the Credrt Facrllty, the Company issued two warrants o purchase an aggregate of
3.5 14 933 shares of common stock of the Company at an exercise price of $0.01 per share These warrants were not
exercrsable until after 90 days followmg the closing date of the Credrt Facrhty and will expire on Apnl 11,2016. As
of I uly 3l 2006 we had ot borrowed under the Credrt Facrhty The warrants were fair valued usmg the Black-
Scholes opnon pncmg model and are recorded 1n our Consohdated Balance Sheets as adiscount 10 the loan amount
of $9 l mrlhon at mceptlon and $8 5 mrllron at July 31 2006 and w1ll be amornzed lnto 1nterest expense over the
five- year term of the Credit Facrltty g

(b) Note Payable to Atlantic Investors, LLC

On January 29 2003, we entered into a $10.0 million Loan and Security Agreement (Atlantrc Loan) with
Atlantic: Investors LLC (Atlantrc) a related party. The Atlantic Loan bears an intérest rate of 8% per annum. On
Aprrl 11,2006, the Company entered into an Amended and Restated Loan Agreement with Atlantic, in connection
with and as & condition precedent t6 the Credit Facility with Silver Pomt whicli amendeéd and restated the exrstmg
loan” agreement between the Company and Atlantic dated January 29, 2003, Under the Atlantic amendmeént "and
related “transaction documents, Atlantic agreed to reduce the avarlabrhty of the Atlantic Loan to the amount

" outstanding as of April 11, 2006 of $3.0 million and approximately $0.7 fnillion of accrued interest, agreed that this
indebtedness shall be an unsecured obligation of the Company, agreed to subordinate this indebtedness to amounts
owed by the Company to Silver Point and agreed to extend the maturity;date of the loan to the earlier of the date that
is 90 days after the earlier of: (a) Apnl 11,2011, and (b) the date all obligations under the Silver Point Credrt Facility
have been paid. in full o N . s .

In the event the Company’s outstanding repayment obligations under the Atlantic Loan are not paid in full on
or before the date that is 90 days after the closing date of the Silver Point transaction, Atlantic shall have the right,
but not the obligation, at all times thereafter until Atlantic receives full payment, of converting such outstanding
amounts into shares of the Company S COMMon srock by dividing (r) the dollar value of the outstandmg obhgauon
by (u) $2 81, rounded to the nearest whole share !

ot S 1L . LT !

! LI [

At July 31 2006;.we had.$3.0 m1llron outstandmg under the Atlanuc Loan This amount is shown as Long
Term Note Payable to Related Party on our Consolidated Balance Sheets. On July 31, 2006, we had approxrmately
$0.8 million in, accrued interest related to:this note : .. . - !

(c) Revalvmg Credrt Facrlrty wrth Atlantzc Investors LLC

. i R A
- On April 11, 2006 we' entered into'an unsecured subordinated Revolving Credit Agreement with Atantic
lnvestors' LLC, in connection. with.and as a condition precedent to the Silver Point credit facility, whereby the
Company established a subordinated revolving credit facility with Atlantic (the “Atlantic Facility?) in the amount
not to exceed $5 million: Credit advances under the Atlantic Facility shall bear interest at either: (a) 7% per annum

plus, the greater of (i) Prime Rate, and (ii) the'Federal Funds Effective Rate plus:3%, or.(b) 8% plus the floating rate
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of LIBOR. Interest may, at the Company’s option, be paid in cash or promissory notes. All outstanding amounts
under the Atlantic Facnluy shall be paid in full by the Company no later than the date that is 90 days after the earlicr
of: {a) April 11, 201 ll and (b) thé date.all obligations under the Credit Facility have been paid in full, .

We plan to use the proceeds of the Atlantic Credit Facility, if necessary, for general corporate and working
capital purposes of the Company and its subSldlanes As of July 31 2006, there were no borrowings outstandmg

under the Atlantic Credlt Facility.
f

(d) Notes Payable to the ApphedThem:y ‘Estate

-As part of CBTM s acqulsmon of certain AppliedTheory assets, CBTM entered into two unsecured prom-
issory notes totaling $6 0 million (Estate Liability) due to the AppliedTheory Estate on June 13, 2006. The Estate
Liability bears interest at 8% per annum, which is due and payable annually. At July 31, 2006, we had
approximately $0.5 mllllon in accrued interest related' to these notes. At July 31, 2006, we had borrowed
$6.4 million from Sllver Point Finance as part of the ‘Term Loan and placed it in an escrow account reserved
to repay these notes. This $6.4 million is included in “Prepaid expeénses and other current assets” on our
Consolidated Ba]ance Sheets. In’ July 2006, NaviSite reached agreement with the secured creditors of Applied-
Theory to settle certain claims against the estate of AppliedTheory and repay the outstanding notes including
accrued interest for appr0x1mately 35.0 miltion. The settlement agreement is currently awaiting approval by the
bankruptcy court and is expected to become final within the next twelve months.

l

(e) Notes Payable,to Landlord

As part of an amendmem to our 400 Mmuteman Road lease, $2.2 mllllon of our future payments to the land]ord
of our 400 Minuteman Road facility was transferred into a note payable (Landlord Note). The Landlord Note bears
interest at an annual fate of 11% and calls for 36 equal monthly payments of principal and interest, with the final
payment due on November 1, 2006. The $2.2 million represents leasehold improvements made by the landlord, on
our behalf, to the 400 Minuteman location in order to facilitate the leasing of a portion of the facility (First Lease
Amendment), as well as common area maintenance and properly taxes associated with the space.

In addition, durlng fiscal year 2004, we paid $120,000 and we entered into a separate $150,000 note (Second
Landlord Note) w1thL the landlord for additional léasehold improvements to facilitate a subleasing transaction
involving a specific secuon of the 400 Minuteman location. The Second Landlord Note bears interest at an annual
rate of 11% and calls for 36 equal monthly payments of principal and interest, with the final payment due on
March 1, 2007. ,

. . { .
(11) Derivative Instruments
'

In May 2006, the Company purchased an interest rate cap on a 1 notional amount of 70% of the outstanding
principal of the Term;Loan (see Note 10) until expiration in April 201 1. The Company paid approximately $320,000
to lock in a maximum LIBOR interest rate of 6.5% that could be charged on the notional amount during the term of
the agreement. As of Uuly 31, 2006, the fair value of the interest rate derivative was approximately $210,000 which
is included in Other assets in the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets. The change in fair value of approx-
imately $1 10 000 was charged to Other income/(expense), net during the fourth quarter.

The prepaymem penalty of our Term Loan was determined to be an embedded derivative which was requ1red to
be separately valued from the Term Loan. The Company’s third party valuation consultant calculated the fair value
of this embedded denvatwe to be approximately $867,000 which has been included in the Consolidated Balance
Sheets as a dlscount to the Term Loan with an offsetting amount included in “Other long-term. liabilities”.
Amortization of the: embedded derivative, calculated on a straight line basis, will be included in interest expense and
will reduce the dlscoum to the Term Loan over the term of the loan. Any changes in the valuation of the embedded

[
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COSts assocnaterd with these leases, we made the decision to cease using these spaces during the fourth quarter of
fiscalyyear,2004 and,have no foreseeable plans to occupy them in the future. Therefore, in accordance with
SFAS No. 146 we recorded a charge to our eammgs 1n the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2004 of approxrmately
$2.7 mrlhon {5 iecOghize the costs of é exnmg these’ s'p'aces \The habrhty is equal 1o the total amount of rent and other
ireet €osls for the' penod of trme the spaces ire expected to remam unoccupled plus the’ present value of the amount
‘by W]‘IlCh thé rent‘pard by" 8 'to" the landlord exceeds any Tent” pard‘to us by a tenant under a sublease over the
'féfainder of the 1¢as¢ terms‘“whtch ¢xpire in'Ociober 2008 for Houston-‘TX"November 2006 for Sari Jose, CA'and

"

‘DecEimber 2007 for Syracuse' NY, ™7 il s vlicdudly Tooobhv Rehs fam e anae L 0 Do
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NAVISITERING:
NOTES TO' CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS > (Contintied)

1'l“'(e) Orher Stock OpaamGramsm. oo W YieHSAF BAPSTEb Y srininbilut tich BTy iinblh it

'lb & it Tl pA s ‘fz-f i Po0% St ‘mbﬁu butneie rroitqO amuesvinns dinom hiia sds no geidammno boheg

At | uly 3! 2000, el had 2, 665 outstandmg‘;;tto_\ck opuons tssued out‘;tde of emtmg plans to certam [c‘ilref:t%r% at,
ap average exeréLlse prlce of $135.56. These "stock opuons were fully Vested on e grant 'date and have acontractual

!}.f?ﬁgfl .l.ptyef‘\l?.; ) |abiry rﬂU.lq') A00% 10 2ani1q Jeuura,lgcmmarrl b vt 2iasfin older yuiwolic) sl

e TaTRa N‘l(l‘ brE TOUS BUQEITTE, viul Hobits Zuind el

I T
16 Related Part Transactmns DR Lo Hurs o Ave e Sidmbe- rnu-we
16) y | RS - t‘ amlscim A fu,-.- % e, &

TIACE HIvn 8T e

";g’:_ij’;]iegmmng Aprll I, 2;’(.)04" we . emered into an Outsourcmg Agreemetnt with ClearBlue Technologles"(UK)

lelted ¢ ClearBlue 0 whereby,i the’ "Gompany. will provrde certamlmanagement services as well as: managepthe
day L ‘day operauons as requrred by ClearBifle’s customers. contracis The Company charges ClearBlue a' monthly
fee of £4, 700 plus 20% of gross proﬁt (gross proﬁt is revenue collected from ClearBlue, customers‘ ‘less the monthly

q,mmm»

$132 000 respectrvelly under th1s agreemem Wthh has been 1nclud’cd~m.“'R.ev_enue_ .re_lat.ed_par-tr.e J?‘m‘ th_e

Consolldated Statements of Operauons As of July 3 1, 2006 and 2005 there are no amounts, outstandmg under this,
AL _JJ L] OV e 1| e s v adzeat LINATAGY

agreement ——
ggieg s« PECEOA T B0EE of O?S 0882 _ TuC&  OLIE2LQ . : 169y to by ynibagigiuo enoisqO

. [n ﬁscal year 2006 we performed professronal servrces and hostmg services for '3 company whose Managing
Dlrector Js, a member of ouf, Bowd of Drrectors In fiscal year 30065 tevenue: géherated front thid Company was
approx1malely $55, 000 and i§'included in “Revenue related parties” in the Consolidated Stzétements of. Operauons

b eE! (P, the 2003 L1 ‘0bgaet e Plag o “ZUC3FHMnhT 0 v o ‘lw IR ol Py ww“u

%o ln ﬁscal alzyear 2006, we, performeds; professional .services:and: hostmgtservtces for aJcompanyrwhose Chief.
Executlve i3 related 1o our.Chief Executive | Ofﬁcer In ﬁscal year12006 revenuergenerated from this, company, was.
approxrmately $51 000 and is mcluded in ,fRevenue related partles in the Consolidated Statemems of Operatlortg

ki g iR cnorlfltr"l T ambiagiang enangty
!u. TR, PP YL dre me" SHUE B&ld,;m‘i PRV wnren Wa 15 hos acotbatl e e gy s determinge”
(17) Selected Quarterly Fmanctal Data‘(Unaudlted)’r Tofs 20 d LN R Susk for

e RS w03 DT NiGusiuno L o Mddedis L3 Pan wos et bnoes Jhe s v
TR A 4 futef i 4] lusy
”"‘Fmancral'mfonnauon for.interim? penods.wasl‘as follgws: ‘. the Toa o d o) Ditoions oo Eefpibapsslin sey

o P L fev ¥ e LG AR /) Vo) gm‘,\g;‘}u;;;,ﬂ;%ar g, ne
e rpd *_"".eta}aa" - Fubrpe pp 20, 2008 P tamgyy Ko 2o Q1 QT ntQ4-re“”0
ShoEE CUIQEREICT ) g (g M aTeER T ainhiE ma.r.. ."r-‘.‘. _ .'.n “in thmrsands) R m TR
?" i ")l H R LTI L A ‘_{ J . v\'n 43 A ”"
i; lgeireln’u’ékg.??. ! .1.,';; " ke b T?‘?'f;.it;.. $25.430"" $26 305 $27 53 $29 TR

T~ gy R 2 L e

'Gross Sroﬁt ...... wre L.'. ...... f".‘?. US 763 7612 798 9850“
Ll "ﬁrhﬁr sod Sl o !

Net'loss.&. e T 3 470) U3, 968)"‘ ) "(3‘448)“'?"&(3 045)2’- d
1

Bodhatie 310

ek o, nrfl'"“'l'a'll‘ "'l“ )J i e "’)‘ - "'r ot
‘\‘? Net loss;per conyg‘rlLOE "?hﬁ{g*(a) : 1d1§" *(0 t‘rn)trm.m @ 11) wgrﬂg?ulrzzf - 'u"(o lt)i‘-i.':c
A T ov.! Tleg Peagg T N et.1 - 80.
f() [ QHA.TH /0. [f: Ta.é BN L. Fiseal Year Ended July 31, 2005 VE.S - 02,1
FRCE e Begrlerr . ouItaw, Lo geIR o RARARTEN LT QI 07 Q2T E 4N, 103 (4 M1 Q4T Bt

PRI TYTHEEE] o MuRRglec] amQuiT.l  LTEHBYE 1 SIME. e (Inthousands)cr, . 2200 TRC'
i Reveniie e BT Tie o2l o Diagy, 1oy 6142100102 $28,894. <1 $28,38 10 3§26,796 %4 + $25(7921.C'+
RGOS profits T M M THAR M R 0p0lg31 - L w074 4717137 rigls3g e G lg el

IeE. iﬁ:et’l‘ésg;‘ﬁ? = A ’. *.3.‘*?- ...... '.C.? ..... i‘f‘?-.“fz“.. C(6.576) - - (4,632) * *(3,033) - 9(1’843) £
(A o [T pt bt 1; UY*, V! $;:(0‘24) ‘$ (0 17) 1s(() “)f ${t((g 06)?;%&:-

Net'loss per commonishare (a), Botam b TR R

tgr v U" QAN S .1% 1! -'lf_'-';'\.lt VLU H‘)}-’ LWorl*- M H AR TR W x.,'.‘.d B S T (llL l& i
ARCZ, . k00, L. 2, -

(a) Net loss; per ¢ common share is computedundependently for each of the quarters based on the wetghted average

vi' L O S 1S o S I LS O U T R

<A number of shares outstandmg durmg the' quarter Therefore "the aggregate per “Share amount “for the! quarters
& may fiot-equalithe amountcalchlated forfthe® Mulltyear st et T Sptien: L eraehahl geeo 33839 ¢
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED-PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Ll J - - - LY
L T T o

>y \“ :
The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Naverte Inc and Sub51dlanes Co s

o . .
oy e ) L

Under date of’ October 11, 2006, we reported on the consolidated balance sheets of NavrSﬂe Inc. and
subsidiaries as'of Ju]y 31, 2006:and 2005- and the related consolidated statements of operations, changes in
stockholders’ -equity (deficit), and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended: July 31, 2006,
which are ‘contained in the July 31, 2006 Annual Report on Form 10-K. In connection with our audits of the
aforementioned consolidated financial statements, we also,audited the related consolidated financial statement
schedule of Valuation and Qualifying Accounts in this Form 10-K. This financial statement schedule is the
responmblllty of the Company’s management Our responmbthty is to express an oplmon on [hlS financial statement
schedule bised on our audits. Tn our opinion, such financial statement schedule wheén considered in relation to the
basic consolidated ﬁnancral statements taken asa whole presents fairly, in all matenal respects thé mformatlon set
forth theretn o . e R

/s KPMG LLP
Boston, Massachusetts’
Octobet; 11, 2006

v

e
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NAVISITE, INC. *
VALUATION AND QUALIFY[N('";‘_ ACCOUNTS

Years Ended July 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004 P

R Balance at Additions Deductions  Balance at
e Beginning Charged to : from End of
gt of Year Expense = Other Reserve Year
P [ e L . + . {In thousands) o, S
Year ended July '31 2004: o ey O ¥ .
- Allowance for doubtful accoums ........ - $2,030 %$2,568 . $— $(2,100) .$2,498 .
Year ended July 31,-2005: 7 R SR
Allowance for doubtful accounts. ... . . ... $2,498  $2,288 - '$—  $(1,899)  $2,887
. . ‘. T \ f . . ot L
Year ended July'3l 2006: ‘ e . e ‘
Allowance for doubtful accounts. . . . . . . . $2,887 $ 51 $— $ (994) $1.944 .

e e ————
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400 Minuteman Road ‘
Andover, Massachusetts 01810 SR

: ‘. .. ¢+ . November 1, 2006

Dear NaviSite Stockholders: ‘ . . » .o

I am pleased to invite you to attend the 2006 Annual Meeting of Stockholders of NaviSite, Inc. to be held
on Tuesday, December 12, 2006 at 9:00 a.m., local time, at The Westin Boston Waterfront hotel located at
425 Summer Street, Boston, MA 02210.

Specific details regarding admission to the meeting and the business to be conducted at the Annual
Meeting are included in the accompanying Notice of Annual Meeting of Stockholders and Proxy Statement.
We encourage you to carefully read these materials, as well as the enclosed Annual Report to Stockholders for
the fiscal year ended July 31, 2006. NaviSite’s Board of Directors recommends that you vote in favor of each
of the director nominees and for each other proposal set forth in the Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy
Statement, i

Your vote is important. Whether or not you plan to attend the Annual Meeting, I hope you will ensure
that your shares are represented and voted at the Annual Meeting by completing and returning the enclosed
proxy card. If you do attend'the Annual Meeting, you may withdraw your proxy and vote in person if you so
desire. ' '

Thank you for your continued support.
Sincerely,

4 ‘

ARTHUR P. BECKER
Chief Executive Officer and President




NAVISITE, INC.
400 Minuteman Road
Andover, MA 01810

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS
To Be Held Tuesday, December 12, 2006 '

To the Stockholders of NaviSite, Inc.:

Notice is hereby given that the Annual Meeting of Stockholders (the “Annual Meeting”) of NaviSite, Inc., a
Delaware eorporation (“NaviSite”), will be held on Tuesday, December 12, 2006 at 9:00 a.m., local time, at The
Westin Boston Waterfront hotel located at 425 Summer Street, Boston, MA 02210, to consider and act upon the
following matters: .

(1) To elect six members of the Board of Directors of NaviSite (the “Board of Directors™) to serve for a
one-year term,;

(*2) To ratify the appointmeltt of KPMG LLP as NaviSite’s independent registered public account'ing firm
for the fiscal year ending Tuly 31, 2007; and

{3) To transact such other business as may properly come before the meeting or any adjournment thereof.
The Boarq of Directors has no knowledge of any other business to be transacted at the Annual Meeting.

A coﬁy of NaviSite’s Annual Report to Stockholders for the fiscal year ended July 31, 2006, which contains
consolidated financial statements and other information of interest to stockholders, is included with this Notice and
Proxy Statement

Admlssmn of stockholders to the Annual Meeting will be on a first-come, first- served basis, and picture
identification will be required to enter the Annual Meeting. Each stockholder will be entitled to bring one guest to
the Annual Meeting. An individual arriving without picture identification will not be admitted unless it can be
verified that the individual is a NaviSite stockholder. Cameras, cellular phones, recording equipment and other
electronic devices will not be permitted at the Annual Meeting. NaviSite reserves the right to inspect any persons or
items pnor to their admission to the Annual Meeting.

Only stockholders of record as of the close of busmess on Monday, October 23, 2006 are entitled to notice of,
and to vote at, the Annual Meeting. All stockholders are cordially invited to attend the meeting.

By order of the Board of Directors,
pun e Lo
MoNIQUE _CORM]E];

Secretary

Andover, Massachusetts
November 1, 2006

YOUR VOTE IS IMPORTANT.

WHETHER OR NOT YOU PLAN TO ATTEND THE ANNUAL MEETING, PLEASE COM-
PLETE, DATE AND SIGN THE ENCLOSED PROXY CARD AND PROMPTLY MAIL IT IN THE
ENCLOSED RETURN ENVELOPE TO ASSURE REPRESENTATION OF YOUR SHARES AT THE

_"ANNUAL MEETING. NO POSTAGE NEED BE AFFIXED IF THE PROXY CARD IS MAILED IN
THE UNITED STATES.




TR . NAVISITE,INC. =+
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Lo . PROXY STATEMENT -

; P R I . . R . - -

Annual Meeting of Stockholders
To Be Held On Tuesday, December 12, 2006

General o ' -
ST N S S A B o : L . :
This Proxy Statement is furnished in connection with the solicitation of proxies by the Board of ‘Directors
(the “Board of Directors” or the “Board”) of NaviSite, Inc., a Delaware corporation (*NaviSite”), for use at
NaviSite’s 2006 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which will be held on Tuesday, December 12, 2006 (the
“Annual Meeting”) at 9:00 a.m., local time, at The Westin Boston Waterfront hotel, 425 Summer Street,
Boston, MA 02210, and at any adjournments thereof, for the purposes set forth in the Notice of Annual

Meeting of S_tockholders (the _“Noticq of Armual Meeting”).

Ayt aat ! [T

The Notice of Annual Meetmg, this’ Proxy Statement, the accompanying proxy card and NaviSite’s
Annual Répoit to Stockholdefs for the fiscal year ended July 31, 2006 (the “2006 Annual Report”} are being
matled to stockholders on’or about November 3, 2006. NaviSite’s prmmpal executive offices are located at *
400 Mmuteman Road Andover Massdchusetts 01810 and 1ts te]ephone number is (978) 682- 8300

’ 1 i

Solicitation o o , ) o '

The cost of soliciting proxies, including expenses in connection with preparing and mailing this Proxy
Statement, will be borne by NaviSite. NaviSite may engage a paid proxy solicitor to assist in the solicitation.
Copies of solicitation materials wiil be furnished to brokerage: houses, nommees ﬁduc1arles and custodians to
forward to beneficial owners of NaviSite’s common stock, $.01 par value per share, held in ‘theif names. In
addition to_the solicitation of proxies by mail, NaviSite’s directors, officers and other employees may, without
additional compensation, solicit proxies by telephone, facsimile, electronic communication and personal
interviews. NaviSite will also reimburse banks, brokerage firms and other custodians, nominees and fiduciaries
for reasonable expenses mcun'ed by them in sending proxy matena]s to stockholders

et . 7 ! LI

Record Date, Voting Securities and Votes Required

Only holders of record of NavnS:te common stock as of lhe close of busmess on Monday, October 23,
2006 (the “Record Date’ ) will be entltled t6 réceive notice of and vote at the Annual Meeting and any
adjoumments thereof. On the Record Date NawSlte had approximately’ 29,065,200 shares of common stock
issued and dutstanding and entitled to be voted. The holders of common stock are entitled to one vofe'for each
share held as of the Record Date on any proposal presented at the Annual Meeting.

e ‘_‘! . o, 4._-, 3 !
A majority of the shares of common stock issued and outstanding and entitled to be voted at the Meetmg

will constitute a quorum at the Anriual‘Meeting. Votes withheld, absténtions and broker non-votes shall be

counted for purposes of determmmg &he presence of absence of a quorum for the transaction of busmess at the

Annual Meetmg ’ Lo ST " =

The af’ﬁxmauve vote of the holders of a plurahty of .the votes. cast at the Annua] Meeting is requu'ed for the 5
election of directers (Proposal No. 1). The affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the shares of NaviSite. -
commeoen stock present or Tepresented by-proxy and voting on the matter is required to ratify the appointment of -
KPMG LLP ds NaviSite's independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year endmg July 31,2007
(Proposal No. 2).




I
|
i
'
i
|

Shares which abstam from voting on a particular matter and shares held in “street name” by brokers or
nominees who mdrcate on their proxies that they do not have discretionary authority to vote such shares as to
a particular matter (“broker non-votes™) will not be counted as votes in favor of such matter and will also not
be counted as votes cast or shares voting on such matter. Accordingly, neither abstentions nor broker non-
votes will have any effect upon the outcoime of voting with respect to the election of directors (Proposal No. 1),
which requires a pluralrty of the votes cast, or the ratification of the appointment of KPMG LLP. as NaviSite’s
independent reglstered public accounting firm (Proposal No. 2), which requires an affirmative vote of a
majority of the sharesi of NaviSite common stock present or represented by proxy and voting on the matter.

An automated systern administered by NavrSne s transfer agent tabulates the votes. The voles on each
matter are tabulated separately

To vote by mail, ' complete date and sign the enclosed proxy card and retum it in the enclosed envelope.
No postage is necessary if the proxy card is mailed in the United States. If you hold your shares through a
bank, broker or other. nominee, they will give you separate instructions for votlng your shares.

I e - N [ . - i N

Proxies i

v

- Votmg By Proxy -

Voling instructions are included on your proxy card. If you properly complete sign and date your proxy
card and return it to s (in the postage prepaid envelope provided) in time to vote, one of the individuals v
named as your proxyT will vote your shares as you have directed. If you sign and timely return your proxy. card
but do not indicate how your shares are to be voted with respect to one or more of the proposals to be voted
on at the Annual Meetmg, your shares will be voted for each of such proposals and in accordance with the
judgment of the proxy holders as to any other matter that may be properly brought before the Annual Meeting,
and the individuals named in the proxy card will have discretionary authority to vote upon any ad]oumrnent of
the Annual Meetmg |

S 4

Revokmg Your Proxy ,

- You may revok%, your proxy at any time before it is voted by:

¢ Notifying Nav1Sne s Secretary in writing at the principal executive offices of NaviSite located at
400 Minuterman Road, ‘Andover, MA 01810, Attention: Secretary, before the Annual Meeting that you

have revoked|your PIoxy; or
+ . 1
» Attending thej Annual Meeting and voting in person at the Annual Meeting.

I . . . . . N

Voting in Person

I
If you plan to attend the Annual Meeting and wish to vote in person we will gwe you a ballot at the
meeting. However, 1f your shares are held in the name of your | broker, bank or other nominee,, you must bnng
a proxy, from your nommee authorlzmg you to vote your “street name” shares held as of the Record Date.

i : . .
Householdmg of Annual Meetlng Materlals

v

" Some banks brokers and other nominee record holders may participate in the practrce of “householdmg
proxy statements ancli annual reports, This means that only one copy of our Proxy Statement or 2006 Annual
Report may have been sent to multiple stockholders in your household. We will promptly deliver a separate copy
of either document to you if you write or call us at the following address or telephone number: Investor
Relations Department NaviSite, Inc., 400 Minuteman Road, Andover, Massachusetts 01810, telephone:
{978) 682-8300. If you want to receive separate copies of the Proxy Statement or 2006 Annual Report in the-
future, or if you are receiving multiple copies and would like to receive only one copy for your houschold, you
should ‘contact: your bank broker, or other nominee record holder, or you may contact NaviSite at the above
address and telephorlle number.

I




Secunty Ownerslup of Certam Benef cial Owners and Management

The followrng table sets forth certain information as of September 30, 2006 (unless otherwise mdlcated), ’
w1th regpect to the beneﬁeral ownership of NaviSite common stock by the following: _ Ewr e E

» each person known by Nav1Srte o beneﬁcrally own more than 5% of the outstanding shares of NavrSrte
‘ comimon. stock;' T L I e L A N A
i, -t o -t . R RSN . N PRAPS B M .".'E g
*. each of NavrSrte 5 drreetors . o o S )
*' each of the Named Executive Ofﬁcers {as defined below under the headmg “Executive o
Compensatlon”) and - -

1 P P

' e Tty
H all of the current executive ofﬁcers and drrectors asa group

P

For purposes of the followmg table, beneficial ownershrp is determmed n accordance w1th Lhe rules .
promulgated by the.Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) and the information is not necessanl}
indicative of beneficial ownership for any other purpose. Except as otherwise noted in the footnotes to the
table, NavrSue believes that each person or entity named in the table has sole vonng and ifivestmetit power .
with-respect to all shares of- NaviSite-common stock shown as benéficially owned by them (or shares such
power with his or her spouse). Under such rules, shares of NaviSite common stock rssuabIe under opuons thit
are currently exercisable or exercisable within 60 days after September 30, 2006 (“Presently Exercrsable ",.‘
Options”), shares of our common stock issuable under warrants that are ‘currently’ exercisable, or exercrsable .
within 60 days after September 30, 2006 (“Presently Exercrsabie Warrants™), and shares of olir common stock *
issuable upon coriversion of. amounts owed by us under an outstandmg promrssory note held by Atlantw i e
Investors, LLC (the “Atlantic Note”) are deemed outstanding and are included in the number of. shares . «f 1
beneﬁerally owned by a person named in the table and are used to compute the percentage ownership of that n
person. These, shares are not, however, deemed outstandrng for c0mputmg the percentage ownership of any,
other person or, ent1ty Unless otherwise indicated, the address of each person listed in the table i is c/o NavrSrte
Inc., 400 Mmuteman Road, "Andover, Massachusetts 01810, ) T

Lol B
: The percentage ownership of NaviSite common stock of each person or entrty named in the folIowmg N
table is based on 29,059,977 shares of NaviSite common stock outstandmg as of September 30 2006 plus any

shares subject 10 Presen[ly Exercrsable Opuons held by such person.

[T [ S P R T e T P N e,




"Amount and Nature of
Beneficial Ownership

Name and Address of' Co o s T ' . * Number of Percentage

Beneficial Owner . . - ) . "+ . Shares of Class
5% Stockholders; ‘ T . - .
Atlantic Investors, LLC. . . .. PRI PR S U TP N e e e 18.475,069(1) 61.0%
20 East 66th Street|. ., » . ... .. - : e _
New York, NY 10021 . ., .-+ ... P - Sy, .
Hewlett-Packard Fmanmal Serv1ces Company e e e e A A416,392(2)  15.2%

420 Mountain Avenue

Murray Hill, NJ 07974 L o oy , ' _
Waythere, Inc(3)...|..,....,.,l ........ Lt 2.880,280 9.9%

c/o BG Affiliates ' L : ' - o L

One Beacon Street| ** !

Suite 1500 N - ,

Boston, MA 02108 v ' AN . }
SPCP Group, LLC. and SPCP Group I LLC e e 35149334 12.1%

c/o_ Silver Point Capital . ! . , . R

- Two Greenwwh Plaza : N

Grcenw1ch CT 06830

Dlrectors and Named Executlve Officers - . . ) . . ,
Andrew Ruhan S e e P e S 63,750(5), . * .

I

l ] .
Arthur P, Becker..... .. v vl 0 sinien ot N e oo . 1,055,086(6) 3.5%
JamesDennedjf'. Ji ..... PR S A S PR SR 98,750(7) i
Thomas R. Evans . %50 ... S PUR O A S L ¥ &1 ) S

475,000(7) 1.6%

Gabriel Ruhan’ . . ...

:
r
John J. Gavin, Jr; f U O 360,446(7)  1.3%

Larry SChwartz . . .. .. oot ‘ 98,750(T) *
Monique Cormier . .| ... ...... DU '55,866(7) Lo
All current executive| officers and directors as a group (8 persons) .............. 2,295,398(8) 7.4%

|
* Less than 1%.

(1) Based on information provided by Atlantic Investors, LLC in a Form 4 dated July 28, 2004 filed with the
SEC on July 30, )2004 Includes 1,353,417 shares of common stock issuable upon conversion of
$3,803,10i oweq by us to Aflantic Investors, LLC under the Atlantic Note as of September 30, 2006,
which may be converted at any time at the election of Atlantic into shares of our common stock at a con-
version price of $2 81. Atlantic Investors, LLC is controlled by two managing members, Unicorn World-
wide Holdings Limited and Madison Technotogy LLC. Unicorn Worldwide Holdings Limited is jointly
controlled by its 'Board members, Simon Cooper and Simon McNally. Mr. Becker is the managing member
‘of Madison Technology LLC. Messrs. Cooper and McNally for Unicorn Worldwide Holdings Limited and
Mr. Becker for l\lfladlson Technology LLC share voting and investment power over the securities held by
Atlantic Investor's LLC. Mr. A. Ruhan holds a 10% equity interest in Unicorn Worldwide Holdings
Limited, a managing member of Adantic Investors, LLC. Atlantic Investors, LLC has informed us that the
17,121,652 shares of our common stock it holds and the promissory notes issued to Atlantic Investors,

|
LLC by us are currently its sole investment.

(2) Shares are held of record by Hewlett-Packard Fmancnal Services Company, a wholly owned subsidiary of

Hewlett- l:'ackardI Company, a widely held publicly traded company. Hewlett-Packard Company and Hew-
lett-Packard Financial Services Company may each be deemed the beneficial owner of these shares.

S




(3) Based on information provided by Waythere, Inc. (formerly. known as Surebridge, Inc.) in a Form 4 filed -
.witﬁ! the SEC on July 24, 2006. Waythere, Inc. is a corporation with a Board of Directors elected by stock-
holders. No individual member of the Board of Directors has voting or investment power over the securi-
ties held by Waythere, :

-

(4) Consists of shares of common stock issuable upon the exercise of Presently Exercisable Warrants. *- -,
SPCP Group, L.L.C. is owned by Silver Point Capital Fund, L.P. (the “Fund”) and Silver Pomt Capnal NG
Offshore Fund (the “Offshore Fund”). Silver Point, L.P. (*Silver Point”) is the investment manager of Lhe
Fund and the Offshore Fund. Silver Point is controlled by Edward A. Mule and Robert J. O’Shea. SPCP
_ Group 1II-LLC is an affiliate of Silver Point {(via common ownership) and is controlled by Messrs. Muie
and 0’ Shea.

(5) Consists of shares of cornmon stock issuable upon the ‘exercise of Presently Exercisable Opuons Excludes.
17,121,652 shares of common stock owned by Atlantic Investors, LLC, 1,353,417 shares of common stock
‘ underlymg the Atlantic Note and 426,134 shares of common stock owned by Global Unicorn Worldwnde )
Holdings S.A.R.L., a wholly owned' subsidiary of Unicorn Worldwide Holdings Limited, with respect to *
‘all of which Mf. A. Ruhan disclaims beneﬁcnal ownership. Mr. A. Ruhan holds a 10% equity mteresl in,
Unicorn Worldwide l—loldmgs Limited, a managing member of Atlantic Investors, LLC.-

(6) Cons:sts of 213 067 shares of common stock owned by Madison Technology LLC and 842, 019 shares of -
common stock issuable upon the exercise of Presently Exercisable Options. Excludes 17,121,652 shares of.
common stock owned by Atlantic Investors, LLC and 1,353, 417 shares of common stock underlying the
Adantic Note with respect to which Mr. Becker disclaims beneficial ownership. Mr. Becker is the manag-

.. ing member of Madison Teg:hnology LLC, a managing member of Atlantic Investors, LLC.

(7) Consists of shares of common stock issuable upon the exercise of Presently Exercisable Options.

(8) Consists of 213,067 shares of common stock owned by Madison Technology LLC and 2,082,331 shares of
" common stock issuable upon the exercise of Presently Exercisable Options. Excludes 17,121,652 shares of
.common stock owned by Atlantic Investors, LLC and 1,353,417 shares of common stock underlying the
‘Atlaiitic Note with respect to which Messrs. A. Ruhan and Becker disclaim beneficial ownership, and
426,134 shares of common stock owned by Global Unicorn Worldwide Holdings S.A.R.L. with respect to -
which Mr. A. Ruhan disclaims beneﬁcml ownershlp

R
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© =+ . PROPOSAL NO. 1
W . ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant 10 NawSlte s By-Laws, all of the directors are elected at each annual meeting of slockholders
and hold office until his or her successor has been elected and qualified or until his or her earlier death,
resignation or removal. The By-Laws further provide that the number of directors shall be determined from
time to time by resolution of the Board-of Directors or by the holders of shares represemmg a majority of the
voles enmled 10 be cast by all stockholders in any annual elecllon of diréctors, ‘

The Board of Directors currently has six members. The current members of the Board of Dlrectors are |
Messrs Andrew Ruhan, Arthur P. Becker, James Dennedy, Thomas R. Evans, Gabriel Ruhan and Larry
Schwanz

The Board of Directors recommends that the six nominees named below be elected as directors‘of - -

" NaviSite. The persons named as proxies will vote to elect the six nominees named below as directors of
NaviSite unless the proxy card is marked otherwise. Each nominee is presently serving as a director, has
consented‘to being named in' this' Proxy Statement and has indicated his wnllmgness to serve if elected f for o
the proxy for the election of a substitute nommee The Board, of Dlrectom has no reason to believe thai any
nominee will be unable to serve ‘

+ R Y
Biographical and certain other information concerning NavnSne s nominees for re—elecnon to the Board of
Directors, each of whom is presently serving as a director, is set forth below. Information with respect to the’
number of shares of NaviSite common stock beneficially owned by each director, as of September 30, 2006,
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appears above in the sect;on entitled “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management.”

With the exception ofI Andrew Ruhan and Gabriel Ruhan, who are brothers, no director .or executive officer is
related by blood, mar‘rlage or adoption to any other director or executive officer. - o S

I " A

|
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Nommm for Elechon to the Board of Directors
Andrew Ruhan, age 44, has served as Chairman of thie Board of NavnSne since September 2002
Mr.: Ruhan is also a Managmg Directot of Bndgehouse Capital, a London based pnvate equity 1nvestment
advisory firm. ‘Since 2000 Mr. Ruhan has served as Chief Executive Officer of ClearBlue Technologles Inc.,
a managed service prowder and an affiliate of NaviSite (“CBT"). From 1998 to 2002, Mr. Ruhan was the co-
founder and, Chief E)ﬁecunve Officer of GlobalSwitch Group, a data cemer company. in the United ngdom

Lo

Arrhur P Becker, age 56, "has served as a d1rector of Nav1S|te since Seplember 2002 and its Chlef .
Executive Officer and President since February 2003. Since 2000, Mr. Becker has served as-Vice Chalnnan
and a director of. CBT Mr. Becker is also a co-founder of Atlantic Investors LLC, a holder, of approximately
59% of the oulstandmg shares of NaviSite common stock as of the Record Date. From 1999, to February 2003,
Mr. Becker was a private investor and since 1999 he has been the Managing Member of Madison
Technology LLC, anjinvestment fund that is focused on technology and teleeommumcatlons compames
Madlson Technology LLC is a managmg "member of Atlanue lnveslors LLC.

" James Dennedy, age 41,’has served as a director of NaviSite' since January 2003. Smce November 2004,

Mr. Dennedy has beeén the Président and Chief Executive Officer of Engyro Corporation, an enterprise systems
and network manage'ment company:. From September 2003 until November 2004, Mr. Dennedy served-as a %!
Managing Partner of,Mnchell-anht LLC, a technology buy-out and investment company..From August 2002
to September 2003, Mr Dennedy was the President of Strategic Software Holdings, LLC, an investment firm

making equity mvestments and buyouts on behalf of itself and its investors in the enterprise software industry.
From March 2001 to March 2002, Mr. Dennedy served as President of divine Managed Services, a technology
services company. -1’ : . ‘ " C

Thomas R. Evans, age 52, has served as a director of NaviSite since October 2003. Since June 2004,
Mr. Evans has been Lhe Chief Executive Officer and President of Bankrate, Inc., an Internet-based consumer
banking marketp]ace Mr. Evans also serves on the Board of Directors of Bankrate. From September 2002 w0
June 2004, Mr. Evans was a private investor and consultant. From August 1999 to August 2002, Mr. Evans
served as Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer for Official Payments Corp., an onlme payment
service for government taxes and fees. Mr Evans is also a dlrector of Vlceroy, Inc. = - bl

Gabnel Ruhan, age 42 has served as a dlrector of NawSlte since October 2002. Smce January 2004 -
Mr. Ruhan has been' the Managing Director of Global Marine Systems Limited, a marine technology and -, . ..
engineering company specializing in the maintenance of submarine telecommunications cables. From.. ..
April 2003 1o December 2004, Mr. Ruhan served as NaviSite's Chief Operating Officer. From December 2002
until April 2003, Mr. Ruhan ‘served as NaviSite’s Executive Vice President for Business Developmem From
1998 to 2002, Mr. Ruhan was Corporate Development Director of GlobalSwitch Group; a data center company
in the United ngdom Mr. Ruhan is also a director of CBT and NaviSite Europe Lid., one of NaviSite’s
subsidiaries locatedhn the United Kingdom. v . . . .

Larry Schwartz, age 43 ‘has served as a dlrector of NaviSite since May 2003 Since August 2004 .
Mr. Schwartz has served as the Chief Executive Officer of Brldgehouse Marine lelted a company that .
acqu1res and manages companies providing marine services to the telecommumcauons ‘and energy. mdustrleé
In January 2004, Mr Schwanz founded The Wenham Group, a private equity 1nvestment firm. From May 2000
to December 2003, Mr. Schwartz was the Senior Vice President and Chief Reslructurmg Officer for Genuity
lnc where Mr. Scthartz also served as a member of Genuity’s senior management eommmee

The Board of Directors recommends a vote FOR the election of the above-named nominees as directors
of NaviSite. AR . - . . . .. . '




I - v : . PROPOSAL NO.2 .. 0" 2t o o ol

EER ‘ RATIFICATION OF SELECTION OF INDEPENDENT ’
- . REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Audit Committée has sélected KPMG LLP as NaviSite’s independent’ registered public accounting
firm to audit NaviSite’s financial statements for the fiscal year ending July 31, 2007. KPMG LLP has audited
the financial statements of NaviSite for each fiscal year since NaviSite’s inception. If the stockholders do not
ratify the selection of KPMG LLP as NaviSite’s independent registered public accounting firm, the Audit
Committee will reconsider its selection. Even if the appointment is ratified, the Audit Committee, in its
discretion, may direct the appointment of a different independent registered public accounting firm at any time
during the year if the Audit Committee determinés that such a change would be in NaviSite’s and its’
stockholders’ best interests. A representative of KPMG LLP is expected to be present at the Annual Meeting
and will have the opportunity to make a statement if he or she 'desnres to do so and will be available to
respond to’ appropriate questions from stockholders.. L ‘

The Board of Directors recommends a vote FOR ratlﬁcatmn of the selectlon of KPMG LLP as .
NaviSite’ s mdependent reglstered pubhe aecountmg ﬁrm for the ﬁscal year endmg July 31, 2007.
3
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" CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND BOARD MA’ITERS K e

N v e

lndependence of Members of the Board of Directors <

Our Board of Directors has’ determmed that our. company isa “Comrol]ed Company, as, deﬁned in the
rules of The’ Nasdag Stock Market, lnc because "Atlantic Investors, LLC is the beneﬁcnal owner of more than
50% of our voting power. We therefore are exempt from certain independence requirements of the Nasdaq
rules, including the requirement.to maintain a majority of independent directors on our Board of Directors, an
independént compensation committee {although we do have'a Compensation Committee comprised of three
independent directors) and a standing nominating committee or committee performing-a similar function. .-

To increase the quality’ of the Board’s. oversight and to tessen the possibility of damaging conflicts. of
interest, the Board intends to have at least three “‘independent directors”, as defined from time to time by The
Nasdag- Stock Market, by law or by any. rule or regulation of any other regulatory body or self-regulatory body
applicable to NaviSite. No director will-be considered “independent” unless the Board of Directors
affirmatively determines that the director has no material relationship with NaviSite (either directly or as a :
partner, sharcholder or officer of an organization' that has a relationship with NaviSite). The Board of Directors
has determined that each of Messrs. James Dennedy, Thomas Evans and Larry Schwartz is an independent
director as defined in the rules of The Nasdag Stock Market, and none of Messrs. Dennedy, Evans and
Schwartz has a material relauonsh;p with, NavxSue other ihan by viftue of his service on the Board of
Directors. . . .

. v A . e ‘ F
Board and Committee M'ee'tingjs' e . ) -
5 .

The Board of Directors held 8 meetings during the fiscal year ended July 31, 2006. Each incumbent
director attended at least 75% of the aggregate number of meetings of the Board of Directors. and of the
committees on which he served. NaviSite strongly encourages all directors to attend the annual meeting of
stockholders All members of the Board of Dxrectors attended the 2005 Annual Meeting of Stockholders

v
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Committees of the Board of Directors L \

The Board of DI{ECIOYS has designated two principal standing committees, an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee™) and a compensatlon committee (the “Compensation Committee™). The current members of the
Audit Commitiee and!the Compensation Committee are identified in the following table:

.. Name | ) i Lt ) T . .. .. Audit Committee . Compensation Committee
James Dennedy - ....... DURPUEA L. ¢  Chair ' - X
Thomas R. Evans.' .......... J X o X
LarrySchwartz w' ....... B X - Chair,

i s ! P . . . N

Audu Commmee It

f L . s . ,

-The Audit Comm1ttee assists the Board of Directors in fulﬁllmg its responsibilities to slockholders
concerning NaviSite’ é financial reporting and internal controls. The Audit Committee facilitates .open commu-
nication among the Audlt Committee, Board of Directors, NaviSite’s independent registered public accounting
firm and management. "The Audit Committee discusses with management and NaviSite’s 1ndependent
registered public accountmg firm the financial information developed by NaviSite, NaviSite’s systems of
internal controls and NaviSite’s audit process. The Audit Committee is solely and directly responsible for
appointing, evaluatmg, retaining, and, where necessary, terminating the engagemerit of NaviSite’s independent
registered public accoummg firm. The 1ndependent registered public accounting firm meets with the Audit
Committee {(both w1Lh and without the presence of NaviSite's management) to review and discuss various
matters pertaining to ithe audit, including NaviSite's financial statements, the report of the independent
registered public accounting firm on the results, scopé and terms of their work, and their recommendanons
concerning the ﬁnanual practices, controls procedures and policies employed by NawSlte '

The Audit Commntec preapproves all audit services to be provided to NaviSite by the principal auditor
and all other servicesl', (including reviewing, attestation and non-audit services) to be provided to NaviSite by
the independent regi§tered public accounting firm. . - . ,

The Audit Committee is charged with establishing procedures for (i) the receipt, retention and treatment
of complaints recewéd by NaviSite regarding accounting, internal accounting controls or auditing matters; and
(i) the confidential, Innonymous submission by employees of NaviSite of concerns regarding questionable,,-
accounting or auditing matters. The Audit Committee reviews all related party transactions on an ongoing
basis, and all such transactions must be approved by the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee is authorized,
without further action by the Board of Directors, to engage independent legal, accounting and other advisors
as it deems necessar'y or appropriate to carry out its responsibilities. The Board of Directors has adopted a

written charter for the Audit Committee, a copy of which is attached as Appendix I hereto.

The Board of Directors has determined that all of the members of the Audit Committee are independent
as defined under lhe| rules of The Nasdaq Stock Market, and that the Audit Committee members meet the
independence reqmrements contemplated by Rule 10A-3 under the Securitics Exchange Act of 1934 Dunng
the last fiscal year, the Audit Committee held 6 meetmgs

Compensation Ca'mmirree

The Compensaéton Committee of the Board of Directors determmes salaries, incentives and other forms
of compensation forI the Chief Executive Officer and the ‘execuiive officers of NaviSite and reviews and makes
recommendations to the Board of Directors with respect to director compensation. In addition, the Compensa-
tion Committee administers NaviSite's stock incentive compensation and equity-based plans. The Board of
Directors has adopted a written charter for the Compensation Committee. During the last fiscal year, the
Compensation Com;mittee held 6 meetings. '

;
Nommarmg Commitree

We are a “Controlled Company,” as defined in the rules of The Nasdaq Stock Market, Inc. because
Atlantic Investors, LLC is the beneficial owner of more than 50% of our voting power. Therefore, we are

| 8
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exempt, from certain independence requirements of the Nasdagq rules, including the requirement to maintdin a -
standing nominating committee or committee performing a similar function, and as such we do not have a
separate nominating committee. :

T [
The Board serves the function that would otherwise be provided by a separate nominating’ comumittee. '

Each member of the Board of Directors participates in the consideration of director nominees. Generally, the

- Board of Directors identifies candidates for director nominees in consultation with management and the
independent members of the Board, through the use of search firms or other advisers, through the recommen-
dations submitted by stockholders or through such other methods as the Board of Directors deems to be
helpful to identify candidates. Once candidates have been identified, the Board of Directors confirms that' the
candidates meet the qualifications for director nominees established by the Board. The Board of Directors may
gather information about the candidates through interviews, questionnaires, background checks, or any other
means that the Board of Directors deems to be helpful in the evaluation process. The Board of Directors meets
to discuss and evaluate the qualities and skills of each candidate, both on an individual basis and taking into
account the overall composition and needs of the Board.

In considering whether to includc'any particular candidate in the Boaid’s slate of recommended director
nominees, the Board will consider the candidate’s integrity, education, business acumen, knowledge of
NaviSite’s business and industry, age, experience, diligence, conflicts of interest and the ability 1o act in the
interests of all stockholders. The Board does not assign specific weights to particular criteria and no particutar
criterion is a prerequisite for each prospective nominee. NaviSite believes that the backgrounds and qualifica-
tions of its directors, considered as a group, should provide a composite mix of experience, knowledge and '
abilities that will allow the Board to fulfill its responsibilities. The Board of Directors will consider director .
candidates who are recommended by the stockholders of NaviSite. Such recommendation for nomination must
be in writing and include the following:

* Name and address of the stockholder making the recommendation;

¢ Number of shares of NaviSite common stock that are owned beneficially and held of record by such
stockholder; -

« Name and address of the individual recommended for consideration as a director nominee;
* Principal occupation and experience of the director nominee' -

+ Total number of shares of NavrSrte common stock that will be voted for the dlrector nominee by the
stockholder making the recommendation; and

* A written statement from the stockholder making the recommendation stating whether the director
nominee has indicated his or her willingness to serve if elected and why such recommended candidate
would be able to fulfill the duties of a director.

Nominations must be sent to the attention of the Secretary ‘of NaviSite by U.S. mail to NaviSite, Inc.,
400 Minuteman Road, Andover, Massachusetts 01810. The Secretary will then provide the nomination to the
Board for consideration.” Assuming that the required material has been provided on a timely basis, the Board
of Directors will evaluate stockholder-recommended candidates by following substantially the same process,
and applying substantially the same criteria, as it follows for candidates s_ubmlttcd by others.

Stocklrolder Communications with the Board of Directors

Stockholders may communicate with the Board of Directors by sending written communications to the
Board of Directors or any individual member of the Board of Directors to the following address: Board of
Directors, ¢/o Secretary, NaviSite, Inc., 400 Minuteman Road, Andover, Massachusetts 01810. The Secretary
will forward all such correspondence accordingly, except for mass mailings, job inquiries, surveys, business
solicitations or advertisements, personal grievances, matters as to which NaviSite 1ends to receive repetitive or
duplicative communications, or patently offensive or otherwise inappropriate material.

9




-4* + +. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
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Management

Officers are appointed annually by the Board and serve at the discretion of the Board. Set forth below is
information regardlng the curent executive ofﬁcers of NaviSite. L : ‘ Y

Name ' \ o ' ! Age - Position
Arthur P, Becker . :f."., Sl 56 Chrcf Executive Offlcer President and Drrector
John J. Gavin, Jr ...... . e 51 Chref Financial Ofﬁeer and’ Treasurer ‘

. Momque Cormller ........... e _ 38 General Counsel, Vice President and Secretary

" Arthur P. Becker has served as a drrect'or of NaviSité since Septembér 2002 and its Chief Executive
Officer and President since February 2003. Since 2000, Mr. Becker has served as Vice Chairman and a
director of CBT. Mrl Becker is also a co-founder of Atlantic lnveslors L.LC, a holder of approximately 59%
of the outstanding shares of NaviSite common stock as of the Record Date. From 1999 to February 2003,
Mr. Becker was a prwate mvestor and since 1999 he has been the Managing Member of Madison .
Technology LLC, an investment fund that is focused on iechnology and telecommunications companies.
Madison Technology LLC is a managing member of Atlantic Investors, LLC,

-

" John J. Gavin, L’r has sérved as our Chief Financial Officer since May 2004. From January 2002 to
April 2004, Mr. Gavm was a private investor. From February 2000 through December 2001, Mr. Gavin served
as the Senior Vice Presrdem and Chief Financial Officer of Cambridge Technology Partners, which was
acquired by Noveli, |Inc. Prior to his work at Cdmbrldge Technology Partners, Mr. Gavin spent twelve yedrs at
Datd General Corporatron rising through the financial organization to Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer. Mr. Gavin also spent ten years at Price Waterhouse LLP in various accounting and audit positions
including serving as Senior Manager in charge of multi-national audits. From October 2001 until April 2005,
Mr. Gavin served on the Board of Directors of Ascential Software Corporation, an enterprise software
company providing ldata integration and management solutions. Mr. Gavin currently serves on the Board of
Directors of VistaPrint Ltd., a provider of graphic design services and customized printing products. Mr. Gavin
is a certified public laccountant.

Monique Cormrer has served as the General Counse] Vice Presrdent and Secretary of NavrSrre since
August 2005. From |Augusl 2004 10 August 2005,-Ms, Cormier served as Associate General Counsel for
NaviSite. From March 2004 to July 2005 Ms. Cormier served as a Corporate Associate for Todtman,
Nachamie Spizz & Johns LLP, a general practice law firm. September 2000 to October 2003, Ms. Cormier
served as a Corpora:te Associate for Gunderson Dettmer, LLP, a full service'law firm.

i
[ . . : : |

Director Cnmpenshtion

On September‘27 2005, the Board of Directors adopted a new policy with respect to the compensation of
the independent drrectors of the Board and the Chairman of the Board. The new Jpolicy provides that each
independent director and the Chairman of the Board shall be paid an anniual fee of $20,000. In addition, (i) the
Chairperson of the FAudrt Committee and of the Compensatlon Committee will each receive an additional
annual fee of $5; OOO (ii) each member of the Audit Committee and the Compen%anon Commitiee, other than
the Charrman will Teceive an additional annual fée of $3 000, and (iii) the Charrma‘n of the Board will | recerve
an additional annuz{l fee of $7,000, Upon initial election t6 the Board, edch independent director and the
Chairman of the Board will receive an initial stock option of 50,000 shares of NaviSite common stock, which
stock option will vést monthly over a period of three years. Upon. -re-élection to the Board, each independent
director and the Charrman of the Board will receive a stock option for 15,000 shares of NaviSite common
stock, which stock, opuon will vest monthly over a perrod of 12 months. The Chairman of the Audit )
Committee and the Compensauon Commmee wr]l not receive any addmonal stock options by virtue of h:s

position as a commmee Chairman,

i

During the 2006 ﬁscal year, Messrs. G, Ruhan and Becker were not pand for service on the Board of
Directors. In aecordance with, NaviSite’s director compensation policy, upon re-election to the Board of
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Directors, each of Messrs. A. Ruhan (Chairman), Evans, Dennedy and,;Schwartz received an option to purchase
15 000 shares of NaviSite common stock on December 8, 2005 at a purchase price per share of $1.25. The
opnon vests monthly over a penod of 12 months. For his services as Chairman of the Board, Mr.' A.'Ruhan
also recéived an option to purchase 50,000 shares of NaviSite common stock on September 27, 2005 at a
purchase price per share of $1.45. The option was fully vested ai the grant date. In addition, under the director
compensation policy, NaviSite paid Mr, Dennedy $8,000 for his service as Chairman of the Audit Committee
and as a member of the Compensation Committee; Mr, Evans $6,000 for his service on the Audit Committee
and Compensation Committee; Mr. Schwartz $8,000 as Chairman of the Compensation Committee and
member-of the Audit Committee and Mr. A. Ruhan $7,000 as Chairman of the Board.

Apart from the arrangements discussed above, NaviSite does not pay any-cash compensation tc members
of its Board of Directors for their services as members of the Board of Directors, although directors are
reimbursed for their reasonable travel expenses incurred in connection with attending Board of Directors and
committee meetings. Directors who are also NaviSite ofﬁcers or employees are eligible to pamc;lpate m the

Amended and Resmted 2003 Stock Incentive Plan. .

Naane and each member of the Board of. Directors have entered into an indemnification agreement
pursuant to which the directors will be indemnified by NaviSite, subject to certain limitations, for any
liabilities incurred by the directors in connection with their role as directors of NaviSite.

Executive Compensation
Summary Compensation’

" “The followmg table sets forth certain summary mfon'nanon with respect to the compensatlon paid clurmg
the fiscal years ended July 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 earned by each of (i) NaviSite’s Chief Executive Ofﬁcer
and (ii) two other executive officers who were serving as executive officers on July 31, 2006 whose total
annual salary and bonus for fiscal year 2006 exceeded $100, 000 (collectively, the “Named Executive
Officers™). In the table below, columns required by the regulations of the SEC have been omitted where no
information was required to be disclosed under those columns.

— Summary Cqﬁ]pensationl’l‘able ) _
, . . . Long-Term

Compensation
" Awards
. ] . ., ‘ " _‘ Annual Compensation US:((i::ll;]:lsg
Name and Principal Position ‘ oo ’ Year  Solary (5)  Bonus (5) Qptions
Arthur P. Becker. . ... ... .. . . e 2006 275,000 — 103,125
Chief Executive Officer and President i 2005 275,000 —_— 500,000
. 2004 275,000 — 460,000
John 1. Gavin, Jr. .0 ... I 2006 250,000 25,000(1y 50,000
Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer ' - 2005 7 250,000 = 300,000 -
T . ' ‘ - 2004 50,800 - — 200,000
Monique Cormier .. ........ e e e e 2006 176,346 20,000(1) 52,500

" General Counsel, Vice President and Secretary

(1) Cash paid for bonus under the FY2006 Executive Bonus Program. Bonus was paid on October 13, 2006.
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- Option Grants During the Fiscal Year Ended July 31, 2006

The following tzlble sets forth information regarding options to purchase NaviSite common stock grantecl
to the Named Executllve Officers during the fiscal year ended July 31, 2006. Nav1S1te has never granted any
stock appreciation rights.

a

STOCK OPTION GRANTS IN THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JULY 31, 2006..
" Individual Grants

Potential Realizable .

Number of Percent of
Securities Total . Value at Assumed
Underlying Options . An_nual Rates ot_‘ Stock
Options Granted to Exercise L Price Appreciation for
. l : Granted Employees in Price * ""Expiration - Option Term ($)(1)
Name . ! # Fiscal Year - (Per Share) ($) * Date 5% ' - 10% -
Arthur P. Becker .. .. ... 103,125(2)  4.72% 1.48 2162016 95952 243,142
John J. Gavin, Jr. . l, ..... 50,0002)  2.29% 148  2/16/2016 46,522 117,887
Monique Cormier. . | .. ... 40,00003) ©  1.83% .55 7 8/31/2015 38,978 98,770
| 12,500)  057% 1.48 2/16/2016 © 11,631 29,472

(1) Amounts reported in these columns represent hypothetical amounts that may be realized upon exercise of
the options 1mmf|:d|dtely prior to the expiration of their term assuming the specified rates of appreciation
(5% and 10%) on the underlying common stock over the term of the options. These numbers are calcu-’
fated based on rules promulgated by the SEC and do not reflect NaviSite’s estimate of future stock price
growth Actual glams if any, on stock option exercises and common stock holdings are dependent on the
timing of such exercise and the future performance of the underlymg common stock. There can be no
assurance that the rates of appreciation assumed in this table can be achleved or that the amounts reﬂecled
will be recelved by the opuonholder

(2) On February 17 12006, each was gramed thls opuon under the Amended and Restaled 2003 Stock Incen-
tive Plan. The option grant was a component of the FY2006 Executive Bonus Program. The options are
exercisable as t0|25% of the original number of shares on August 16, 2006 and thereafter in equal monthly
over the three year period commencing on August 16, 2006. The option grant will accelerate in full if
incentive targetslare met. On October 2, 2006, it was determined that the individuals have met the targets
and the options became fully exercisable on October 2, 2006.

&) On September lI 2005, Ms. Cormier was granted this option under the Amended and Restated 2003 Stock
Incentive Plan. The option is exercisable as to 25% of the original number of shares on February 28, 2006
and thereafter 1n] equal amounts monthly over the three year period commencing on February 28, 2006.

|
Options Exercised During Fiscal Year Ended July 31, 2006

The following table sets forth the number of exercisable and unexercisable options to purchase NaviSite
common stock held by the Named Executive Officers as of July 31, 2006. No stock options to purchase ,
NaviSite common stock were exercised.by any Named Executive Officer durmg the fisca! year ended July 31,

2006. |
|

AGGREGATED OPTION EXERCISES IN LAST FISCAL YEAR AND
' FISCAL YEAR-END OPTION VALUES

i Number of Securities Value of Unexercised In the

| Underlying Unexercised Money Options at

| Options at July 31, 2006 July 31, 2006 {$)
Name ! Exercisable Unexercisable Exercisable Unexercisable
Arthur P. Becke!r ..................... 658,340 444,785 621,432 930,162
John J. Gavin, Jlr. .................... 270,836 279,164 280,340 488,160

Monique Cormier. .. .........ovninnns 37,394 55,106 82,901 127,374

|
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Compensation Committee Report on Executive Compensation . . . | .
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NaviSite’s executive compensation program is administered by the Compensation Committée of the Board

of Directors. The Compensation Committee determines the salaries of, establlshes bonuses for and grants,stock
oplions to NaviSite’s executive ofﬁcers S SR R o . e '

.

Compensanon Ph:losophv Naane s e)‘(ecuuve compensauon program has three objecnves (l) to al:gn
the mterests of ns execunve off“ icers wnth the mterests of NawSue ) s(ockholders by basmg a sngmﬁcanl i,
pomon‘of an execuuve § compensauon on Nav1Sne s perfonnance (ii) to attract and retain, talcmed executwe
officers who can conmbute to the successqof Nav1S1te and (m) to provide mcenuves for superior performance
by NaviSite’s execuuves To’ achieve these ohjecpves the Compensauon Committee has developed a .
compensation program that consist$ of base salary, short-term incentive compensanon in the fonn of a bonus,
and long-term incentive compensation in the form of stock options. These compensanon elements are in

addition to the general benefit programs that are offered to all of NaviSite’s executive officers.
I e A A I

Base Salaries and Short-term Incentive Compensanon The Compensation Committee reviews NaviSi-
te’s executive compensation program annually. In its review, the Compensation Committee assesses the
competitiveness of NaviSite’s executive compensation program by comparing its pay practices with those of
other companies whose business and financial condition are similar to that of NaviSite's. In determining
individual salaries and bonuses, the Compensation Committee considers overall corporate performance,
business unit performance, individual performance and an individual’s hlstoncal salary and bonus levels. The
Compensation Committee established the FY2006 Executive Bonus Program pursuant fo Which NaviSite pa1d
a bonus of $25,000 to Mr..Gavin and options to purchase. 50,000 shares of common stock and $20,000 to
Ms. Cormiet on October 13, 2006, for FY2006. In addition, Mr. Becker received options to purchase | =,
103,125 shares of common stock, Mr. Gavin received options to purchase 50,000 shares of common stock, and
Ms. Cormier received opnons to purchase 12,500 shares of common stock on February 17, 2006, all of which
were fully accelerated @ upon the achievement of the FY2006 corporate objectives in accordance with the
FY2006 Executive’ Bonus Program., e . . ey

I B
Long “Term Incentive Compensation. The Compensation Committée believes that’ placmg a pomon of an

executive’s total compensanon in the form of stock options achieves three objectives: (i)'it aligns the interest
of NaviSite’s executives directly with those of NaviSite's stockholders; (ii) it gives executives a significant
long-term interest in NaviSite’s success; and (iii) it helps NaviSite retain key executives. In determining the
number and terms, of options to grant an executive, the Compensation Committee will primarily consider the
executive’s: past performance and the degree to which an incentive for long-term performance would benefit
NaviSite, The Compensation Committee also considers the number of shares of NaviSite common stock
covered by, ind 'the.exercise price of, outstanding stock options, the total number of.shares reserved for !

issuance .undér NaviSite's stock option plans, NaviSite’s pro;ected hiring ' needs for.the near future and the:

recent pérformance. of NaviSite. '+~ T P R N T Y ot

Campenmtion of the Chief Eﬁrecuriv‘e Oﬁ‘" icer. The Compensanon Commmee beheves that the compen-
sation of 'the 'Chief Executive Officer is' consistéfit with NaviSite's genetal policies concerning executive
compensation and is appropriate’in light of NaviSite’s financial objéctives and performance. Awards of
intermediate and .long-term incentive compensation to the Chief Executive Officer, are considered concurrently
with awa:ds to other executive officers and follow the same general policies as such other, mtermedlate and
long-term’incentive awards. In determining the Chief Executive Officer’s compensation, the Compensauon
Commmee considers the factors described above with respect to olher execuuve officers. In addition, the
Compensatlon Committee considers the Sxtent to which'ihe ‘Chief Execuuve Ofﬁcer anucnpales opportunmes
and takes advantage of them, the extent to which he anticipates problems and avoids them, the'success of his °
efforts towards building NaviSite's-management team, business and infrastructure and his involvement in,
improving the operating. and financial performance of NaviSite. .Based on these factors and considerations, the
Compensation Committee-elected to set Mr. Becker’s annual base salary for fiscal 2006 at $275,000. Because
of NaviSite’s financial condmon NaviSite. did not pay, any, cash bonuses to Mr. Becker in fiscal 2006. In 11eu
of-a cash bonus, the Compensauon Commlttee granted Mr, Becker an option to purchase 103,125 shares of s
NaviSite common, stock at an, exercise price per share equal 10 $1 48..The stock optlon vested as to 25% of
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the original riumber-of shares on August 16, 2006 and vests thereafter in equal installments on a monthly basis
until fully vested on August 16, 2009, ‘
+ i

Policy on Deddcribili:y of Executive Compensation: Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986, as amended (the “Code™), generally disallows a federal income tax deduction to public companies for
certain compensation over $1,000,000 paid to a company’s Chief Executive Officer and four other most highly
compensated executwe ofﬁécrs Quahfymg performance-based compensauon will not be subject to the
deduction limit if certam requirements are met. The Compensation ‘Committee intends to review the potemlal
effects of Section 162(m) periodically and intends to structure NaviSite's stock option grants and certain other
equity-based awards in a manner that is intended to avoid disallowances under Sectioni 162(m) of the Code
unless the Compensation Committee believes that such compllance would not be in the best interest of
NaviSite or its stockholders

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE

oo : . Larry Schwartz, Chairman
James Dennedy
Thomas R. Evans

Independent Reglstered Pubhc Accounting Firm Fees

The following | table presents fees for professional audit services rendered by KPMG LLP for the audit of
NaviSite’s annual ﬁnanc1al statemmients ‘for fiscal years ended July 31, 2005 and 2006, and fees billed for other
services rendered by KPMG LLP '

. o ) 2005 2006
Audit Fees(1) R T E T ] .. $529225  $530,850
_Andi_t-Related _Fees(Z) ............................ P e — 18,040
Audit and Audit-Related Fees . ,I ....... SN e e e . 529,225 578,890
Tax Fees(3). ........0...o..ooo o 65,000 65,000
AllOLherFeesl(4)................: ........................ L e ) et
Total Fees. . ..ol P '$594,225  $613,800

(1) Audit fees consisted principally of fees for the audit in accordance with the Standards of the Public Com-
pany Accounting Oversight Board (United States) and quarterly reviews of the consolidated financial state-
ments. The audit fee for both fiscal years also includes fees for the review of, and consents included
within, Nawsue s registration statement on Form S-2 and other SEC ﬁlmgs

(2) Audit-related fees consisted principally of fees for accounting consultation on proposed transactions.
(3) Tax fees consisted principally-of fees for tax compliance, tax planning and tax advice.

(4) All other fees include all other non-audit services. No such sérvices were provided during fiscal year 2005
or ﬁscal year 2006. '

Policy on Audit Commlttee Pre-Approval of Audit and Permissible. Non-Audit Serwces of Independent ,
Registered Public - Accountmg Firm ~

1

* The Audit Commmee s policy is to pre-approve all audit and permissible non-audit services provided by
the independent reéistemd public accounting firm. These services may include audit 'services, audit-related
services, tax scrvic:es and other services. Pre-approval is generally provided for up to one year and any pre-
approval is detailed as to the particular service or category of services and is generally subject to a specific
budget. The mdependem registered public accounting firm and management are required to periodically report

to the Audit Commltlee regarding the extent of services provided by the independent registered public
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accounting.firm in accordance with-this pre-approval, and the fees for the services performed to date. The
Aud1t Committee may also pre-approve particular.services on a case—by case basis. ; - ., . 2.
Audtt Comimittee Fmancral Expert o ."" SR ‘ v )
The Board of Dtrectors has determmed that James Dennedy is an audlt comrmttee ﬁnanc1a] expert as
deﬁned in Item 401(h) of Regulatlon S K. o

- . oo, 1, e T e e

. - . . K3 . .
L8 [ ! : - Tt . e’ P N L Y J] !

Audit Commlttee Report Coa e . R - . o ‘ e

The Aidit Committee of the Board of Directors has revrewed and diséussed NaviSite’s adited financial
statements for fiscal year 2006 with NaviSite’s management. The Audit Committee has discussed with KPMG
NaviSite’s independent.registered public accounting firm, the matters required to be discussed by, Statement on
Auditing:Standards No. 61. The Audit Committee has recewed the written dlsclosures and the letter from
KPMG requlred by Independence Standards Board Standard No. 1 and has discussed with KPMG its .
independence. The Audit Committee also considered whether KPMG’s provision of non-audit services to
NaviSite-is compatible with maintaining KPMG’s‘independence. Based on ‘the review and discussions
described above, among-other things, the Audit Committee recommended to the Board of Directors that-the
audited financial statements be-included in NaviSite’s. Annual Report on Form 10-K for fiscal year 2006,

; . e S €, : v - - . v L

Ll

LEFR . ot ' ) . L . .

AUDIT COMMITTEE

P .~ . -+ ... . JamesDennedy, Chairman . -
A . Cr e Larry Schwartz - D
v 'ﬁ' S S ' . Thomas R. Evans ‘ " A

l.,

. 1 o S
The information contamed in the foregomg report shali not be deemed to be ¢ ‘soliciting material” or
“filed” or incorporated by reference into any of NaviSite’s previous or future filings with the SEC, or subject
to the liabilities of ‘Section 18 of the Exchange Act,.except to the extent specifically incorporated by reference
into a.document filed under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the,“Securities Act”), or the Exchange’
Act. \ . ey

i . : LA A W N ‘ o8 ey
Yo . ' ' ) t oL . LA o . L B

Certain Relatlonshlps and Related 'llransacttons ot o A
it £ bt e,y

SPCP Group, L L C. and SPCP Gmup IH LLC

q e + R " B "

On Apr11 11 2006 we entered into a Credlt and Guaranty Agreernent (the “Credlt Agreement”) w1th
Silver Point Finance, LLC (“S11ver Pomt”) and certain affiliated entities whereby Silver Point and the, Ienders
named in the Credit Agreement provided to us a $70 million senior secured-term loan facility and a $3 million
senior secured revolving credit facility, (collectively, the “Credit Facrhty”) .Each of our.subsidiaries is-also a .
party to the Credit Agreement as guarantors of our obhgatlons

1, ' ‘ . ' PEa

The term loan was funded in full on the closmg date. Durmg the first twelve (12) months, of the loan, we,
are required to make quarterly interest-only payments to the lenders under the Credit Agreement. We are.
scheduled to make quarterly repayments of principal commencing, approximately one year after. the ﬁrst
anniversary of the closing date. The maturity date of the term loan is April 11, 2011. . -

Outstanding amounts under the term loan bear interest at either: (a) 7% per annum plus, the greater of
(1) Prime Rate, and (ii) the Federal Funds Effective Rate plus 3% (the “Base Rate™), or (b) 8% per annum plus
the floating rate of LIBOR (the “LIBOR-Rate™). To the extent interest payable on the term-loan (a) exceeds
the LIBOR Rate plus 5%.in year one or (b) exceeds the LIBOR Rate plus 7% for the years thereafter, such :-
amounts .will be capitalized and added to the outstanding principal amount of the term loan and shall therefore
bear interest. Interest is payable in arrears on the last.day of the month for Base Rate loans, and the last-day
of the chosen-interest period (one, two or three months) for LIBOR Rate loans.
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Principal -under|the term loan that-we repay may'not berre<borrowed. In'addition,-the Credit Agreement
requires us to prepay principal prior to its scheduled payment-date in certain circumstances, including if we ./
sell assets, have excess cash or close an equity financing transaction; provided that, in connection with an
cquity financing, the first $10,000,000 of net proceeds and 50% of all amounts raised thereafter shall not.be
subject to the mandatory prepayment requirement and ‘may be kept by us. Generally, prepayments are subject
toaprepaymentpremtum oy s T VO e A oo}

The revolving f‘acility provides us with the right to borrow up_to $3' 000'(1))00 “The amounts borrowed and
repaid. under the revolvmg facility generally may be re-borrowed by us. The revolving facility terminates on
April 11, 2011, Outstandmg amounts will bear interest at either: (a) the Base Rate, or (b) the LIBOR Rate. -
Interest is payable in arrears on the last day of the month for B’ase Rate loans, and the last day of the chosen
mterest pertod (one two or three months) for’ LIBOR Rate loans. .

L .. R .

“The Credit Fac111ty is secured by a secunty interest in substanttally all of our and each of our sub51d1ary 5
assets. In connection with the’ grant of such secunty mterest the parttes entered into a Pledge and Secunty "‘
Agreement L T L e . TR L

' B f Vo ey

On the closing date of the, Credtt Facility, we issued two warrants to apurchase an aggregate of,
3,514,933;shares of our common stock..We issued a warrant to SPCP Group, L.L.C: to purchase. .
2,636,200 shares of hur common stock at an exercise price of $.01 per share,;and we issued a warrant to
SPCP Group III LLC to purchase 878,733 shares of our common stock at an exercise price of $.01 per share.
The warrants are subject to potential wetghted average anti-dilution adjustments that could result in additional

shares being issuable upon exercise of the warrants. The warrants expire on April 11, 2016.

LTI ' [ S -l O, i

At any time and from time to tiriie until April.1'1,:2016, the warrantholders are entitled to demand and
piggyback reglstratton rights, whereby either warrantholder may request that we file a registration statement,
or include within a registration statement'to be filed, with the Securities and Exchange Commission for the
warrantholders’ resale of the shares of common stock 1ssuable upon exerelse of the warrants.

Pl L [ [ S V1A 'y t Y.,
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. " .
Atlantic Investors, LLC : e ) ‘. ’ e e L
PRl O W RS L T r foga i

Atlaritic In'hesto‘rs,f'l;LC owns approXimately 59% of ‘our outstanding common §tock. Following the
closing of the Credit Agreement described above on April 11, 2006, Atlantic Investors’ ownership was
approximately 43% pn a fully diluted basis. In addition, Atlantic Investors holds a promissory note in the
principal amount of $3.0 million, the maturity date of which.was: extended, :pursuant to an -amended loan ; -

agreement dated Aphl 11, 2006, to 90 days after the maturity date of the Credit Agreemem
. i Sy : v

Some of the members of our management group also serve as members of the management group of
Adanti¢ Inveslors and its ‘affiliates. Specifically, Andréw Ruhan, the Chairman- of our Board, holds a
10% équity’ intérest’ m Unicorn Worldwide Holdings Limited, -a managing thémber of ‘Atlantic Investors:
Arthur Becker; our ]?res1dent and Chief Executtve Officer and a member of our Board of- Directors, is the
maitaging member'of Madison Technology LLC,a managmg member-of Atlantic Investors .

.k AT ' i . N " .

In connection \'\;’lth and as a condition precedent to the Credit Facility, we entered into an Amencled and
Restated ‘Loan tAgreement (the “Atlantic’ Amnendment”) with Atlantic' Investors, which amended and restited
our existing’ LOan‘Aéreement*»%ith‘ Atlantic Invéstors dated January 29,2003 (the “2003 ‘Atlantic Agreement,”
collectively withi the| Atlantic: Amendment, thé “Atlantic Loan #1”). The amounts ouistanding under the ' -
Atlantic Loan #1 are convertible at any -time,-at 'Atlantic Investors’ option; into shares of our common stock at

a conversmn pnce of $2.81. ,
Nyt . e o fo

" Also in connectton with and as'a eondttton precedent to the Credit Fac111ty, we entered into a Term Loan
Agreement with Atldntlc InVestors whereby we established a subordinated term loan facility with ‘Atlantic-in -
an amount not to exceed $5,000,000. Unicorn Worldwidé ‘Holdings Limited" (a British Virgin Islands- . !
corporation and an efﬁltate ‘of Atlantic) has-guaranteed Atlantic’s performance obligations under the Atlantic
term loan; pursuant to-that certain Atlanuo Fund. Guaranty' made ‘and executed by Umeom in favor of the
Company. . AR :

Y Lo ol Pl T C .
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Credit advances under the Atlantic term loan shall bear interest at either: {(a) 7% per annum plus; the’
greater of (i) Prime Rate, and (ii) the Federal Funds Effective Rate plus 3%, or (b) 8% plus the floating rate of
LIBOR. Interest may, at our optien, be paid in cash or quarterly by promissory notes executed by us on behalf
of Atlantic. All outstanding amounts under the Atlantic term note shall -be.paid in full by us no later than the
date that is 90 days after the earlier of: (a) Apnl 11, 2011, and (b) the date all obligations under the Credit
Facility have been paid in full. . “1

Under the Atlantic térm loan and related transaction documents, Atlantic agreed to subordinate lhlS
indebtedness to amounts owed to' Silver Point and its affiliates and that $uch amounts shall be unsecured
obligations. . L

Hewlett-Packard Financial Serwces Company and Aﬁ" Hliates

In connection with our acquisition of C]earB]uc Technologies Management, Inc., a subsidiary of CBT,
(“CBTM”) we assumed CBTM’s equipment lease pursuant to which CBTM had leased hardware and software
from HPFS. Pursuant to the assumed equipment lease, we are required to make monthly payments to HPFS
through May 2007, following which we will own the leased items. In connection with our acquisition of -
Surebridge, we assumed Surebridge’s equipnient lease pursuant to which Surebridge had leased hardware and
software from HPFS. Pursuant to the assumed equipment lease, we are required to make monthly payments to
HPFS through May 2007, following which we will own the leased items. In October 2004 we entered into a
Reaffirmation and Modification” Agreemem with HPFS pursuant to which we testructured the equipment lease
to refinance past due amounts and rematning obligations under the equnpment lease and to finance the buyout
amount with respect to the leased hardware and software. In connection with this restructuring, we were
required to guaranty’ the ‘obligations of CBTM and ManagedOps.com, Inc. with respect to the restructured
leases. In May 2006 we entered into a Forbearance and Modification Agreement with HPFS pursuant to which
we restructured the equipment lease to refinance past due amounts and remaining obligations under the
equipment. As of July 31, 2006, the aggregate balance outstanding under the assumed leases was approxi-
mately $2.0 million,

Beginning April 1, 2004, we entered into an Outsourcing Agreement with ClearBlue Technologies
(UK) Limited (“ClearBlue]’) whereby, we provide certain management services.as well as manage the
day-to-day operations as required by ClearBlue’s customers’ contracts. We charge ClearBlue a monthly fee of
£4,700, plus 20% of gross profit (gross profit is revenue collected from ClearBlue customers, less the monthly
fee), but in the event such calculation is less than $0, 100% of the gross profit shall remain with ClearBlue.
During the fiscal year ended July 31, 2006, we charged ClearBlue approximately $137,000 under this
agreement. As of July 31, 2006, there are no amounts outstanding under this agreement.

Pursuant to a services'agreement between NaviSite and HPFS, during fiscal year 2006 HPFS provided -
technology support services to NaviSite for-which NaviSite paid approximately $0.3 million.

oo
[

Waythere, Inc.

- On June 10, 2004, we-completed the acquisition of subsiantially all of the assets and liabilities of
Waythere, Inc. (f/k/a Surebridge, Inc.) in exchange for two promissory notes in the aggregate principal amount
of approximately $39.3 million, three million shares of our common stock and the assumption of certain
liabilities of Waythere. . ' S p .

The'promissory hotes that we issued to Waythere accrued interest on the unﬁaid balance at an annual rate
of 10%, however no interest accrued on any principal paid within nine months of the closmg The maturity
date of the notes was June 10, 2006

r, ' ' f

On April 11, 2006, we used amounts borrowed under the Credit Facility described above to repay
approximately $41,000,000 to Waythere, which included all outstanding pnnmpa] and accrued but unpaid
interest undcr the two promissory we issued on June 10, 2004.

17




Stock Performance IGraph

The following g'raph compares the cumulative total return to stockholders of NaviSite common stock for
the period from Aughst 1, 2001 through July 31, 2006, with the cumulative total return over the same period
of (i) the Nasdaq Compos:te Index and (ii) a peer group index of publicly traded companies that provide
s:mllar services to those of NaviSite (the “Peer Group Index”). The graph assumes the investment of $100 in
NaviSite common stock and in each of such indices (and the reinvestment of all dividends, if any) on August 1,
2001. The performance shown is not necessarily indicative of future performance.

Comparison of Cumulative Total Return
Assumes Initial Investment of $100
August 1, 2001 Through July 31, 2006
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i "Nasdaq
Measurement Period i Composite Peer Group
(Fiscal Year Covered) ) " NaviSite, Inc, Jndex - Index(1)
August 1, 2001 | $100.00 © $100.00 $100.00
July 31,2002 | | %1600 . $ 6576 $ 59.52
July 31,2003 | ] 82623 | 88631 $ 61.34
July 31, 2004 ] $ 17.96 $ 94.34 $ 66.92
July 31,2005 ' $ 16,98 $109.92 $ 66.04
July 31, 2006 j $ 3478 $106.10 $ 74.04

(1) The Peer Group|Index is a modified-capitalization weighted index of stocks selected by NaviSite that rep-
resents the follo:wing publicly traded companies: International Business Machines Corporation, Electronic
Data Systems CPrporalion, Computer Sciences Corporation, Level 3 Communications, Inc,, Qwest Com-
munications Internationat Inc., AT&T Corp., Akamai Technologies, Inc. and SBC Communications Inc.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth in any of NaviSite’s filings under the Securities Act or
the Exchange Act that might incorporate other filings with the SEC, including this Proxy Statement, in whole
or in part, the Compensanon Committee Report on Executive Compensation and the Stock Performance Graph
shall not be deemedpncorporated by reference into any such filings. : .
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Employment Agreements and Severance and Change of Control Arrangements

. -
s

Arthui Becker
We entered into an employment agreement with Arthur P. Becker as of February 21, 2003, pursuant to
which he is employed as NaviSite’s Chief Executive Officer and President. His agreement isfora contmuous
term, but subject to the provisions described below, may be termmated by either party at any ume Pursuam 1o

this agreement, Mr. Becker is entitled 10 recewe T

* a base salary, currently $275, 000 per year, whlch is reviewed by our Board of Directors annually (but
no more frequently than annually); :

* an annual bonus upon NaviSite's achlevemem of vanious financial and/or.other goals established by the
Board; and . .

. = fringe beneftts, includinglstock options and health insurance and otner beneﬁts available to our .
employees. . . ‘ : . g

If Mr. Becker’s employment is terminated (i) by reason of death or disability? (ii) by NaviSite with cause
or (iii) due to his voluntary resignation; then he. will receive no add1t10nal salary or benefits other than what
has accrued through the date of termination.

If Mr. Becker s employment is terminated without cause and he signs a general release of known and
unknown claims in a form satisfactory to NaviSite, Mr. Becker will receive severance payments at his final
base salary rate, less applicable withholding, untit the earher of (1) six months after the daté of h1s termmatxon
without cause, or (ii) the date on which he first commences ‘other employment Y :

Mr. Becker and NaviSite have also entered into an mdemmﬁcauon agreement pursuant to which he w1ll
be indemnified by NaviSite, subject to Certain limitations, for any l1ab111tles mcuned by hlm in connecuon

with his role as a dlrector and officer of Nav1Stte
v . ’ '

- On April 6, 2006, we entered into a Separation Agreement with Mr. Becker. The Separation Agreement
provides that if his employment is terminated by NaviSite other than for cause (as defined), disability (as
defined) or death, or by Mr. Becker for good reason (as defined) following a change of control (as defined),
then NaviSite shall be obligated to (i) pay Mr. Becker as severance his annual base salary in effect on the date
of termination for a period of six months, (ii) pay a lump sum bonus payment equal to his target bonus for the
current fiscal year pro rated to the date of terminition, (iii} pay any unpaid bonus from the prior fiscal year,
(iv) pay all legal fees and expenses incurred by Mr” Becker in seeking to obtain or enforce any right provided
by the Separation Agreement, and (v) reimburse Mr. Becker for COBRA payments for health and welfare
benefits continuation if he elects COBRA coverage for a period of six months. Mr. Becker will not be entitled
to the foregoing benefits if an equivalent benefit is received by him from another employer during the six
month period following his termination. The Separation Agreement also provides that following a change of
control (as defined) of NaviSite, all options and shares of restricted stock issued to Mr. Becker under
NaviSite's Amended and Restated 2003 Stock Incentive Plan or any other NavxSnte stock incentive plan wnll
become exercisable and vested in full on the date of the change of control.

t

NaviSite’s obligations to provide the forgoing benefits is subject to the effectiveness of a general waiver
and release from Mr. Becker in favor of NaviSite, its directors, officers, employees representanves agents and
affiliates in a form satisfactory 1o Nav:Slte -

On October 24, 2006, we entered into a Bonus Letter'with Mr. Becker detailing our 2007 Executive
Incentivé Program (the 2007 Plan”). Under the 2007 Plan, Mr. Becker’s base salary for fiscal 2007 is
$350,000, his target incentive bonus is $250,000 and his over-achievement bonus opportunity is $120,000. .
Payment of the incentive bonus and the over-achievement bonus is dependent on the Company achlevmg
certain financial goals as established by the Board of Directors. - - »
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John J. Gavin, Jr. | A B Y R

+

On April 6, 2006, we entered into a Separation Agreement with Mr. Gavin. The Separation Agreement
with Mr. Gavin provides that if his employment is terminated by NaviSite other than for cause (as defined),
disability (as defined) or death, or by him for good reason (as defined) following a change of control (as #
defined), then NaviSite shall be obligated to (i) pay.Mr. Gavin as severance his annual base salary in effect on
the date of termination for a period of six months, in the case of a termination by NaviSite other than for .
cause, disability or death, or for a peried of twelve months, in the case of a termination by Mr. Gavin for good
reason, (ii) pay a lump sum bonus payment to Mr. Gavin equal to his target bonus for the current fiscal year
pro rated to the datejof termination, (iii) pay to Mr. Gavin any unpatd bonus from the prior fiscal year, (iv) pay
all legal fees and expenses incurred by Mr. Gavin in seeking to obtain or enforce any. right provided by the
Separation Agreement, and (v) reimburse Mr. Gavin for COBRA payments for health and welfare benefits
continuation if he elects COBRA coverage. for a period of six months, in the case of a termination by NaviSite
other than for cause. disability or death, or for a period of twelve months, in the case of a termination by
Mr. Gavin for good reason. Mr. Gavin will not be entitled to the foregoing benefits if an equivalent benefit is
received by'him from another employer during the six month period following his termination, in the éase of a
termination by Naane other than for cause, disability or death, or for a period of twelve month$ in‘the case
of a termlndnon by him for good reason.

; 1 :
The SeparauonlAgreement also provides that followmg a change of control (as defmed) of NaviSite, all-

options and shares of restricted stock issued to Mr. Gavin under NaviSite’s Amended and Restated 2003 Stock

Incentive Plan or any other NaviSite stock incentive plan will become exercnsable and vested in full on the

ddte of lhe change of control T '

. NavnSne s obllgauons ) provxde the forgomg benefits is subject 10, the effecnveness of a general waiver
and release from Mr. Gavin in favor of NaviSite, its directors, officers, employees, representatives, agents and
aff liates in a form sausfaclory to NaviSite.

On October 24, 2006 we entered into a Bonus Lelter wuh Mr. Gavin deta:lmg our 2007 Plan Mr. Gavin’s
compensation under the 2007 Plan includes a fiscal 2007 base salary of $250,000, a target, incentive bonus of
$125.000 and an ovér-achievement bonus opportunity of $80,000. Payment of the incentive bonus and the
over-achievement banus is dependent on the Company achieving certain financial goals as established by the
Board of Directors. . ‘ , T L

i . T . . )

' Momque Corrmer, ot

ot [

wWe, entered mto an employment offer letter, with Momque Cormier as of August 12, 2005, pursuzmt to
wh:ch she is employed as NaviSite’s Generdl Counsel. Pursuant to this agreement, Ms. Cormicr i is enmled to
receive: . .'l .

bl an annual base salary of $180 000 per year and " _
., fnnge beneﬁts mcludmg stock opuons and heallh insurance and other benefits avallable to our

employees - : : WENT
[}
On Apnl 6 2006 we entered into a Separatlon Agreement with Ms. Cormier. The Separanon Agreemem

provides that if her employment is terminated by NaviSite other than for cause (as defined), disability {as
defined) or death, or by Ms. Cormier for good reason (as defined) following a change of control (as defined),
then.NaviSite shall be obligated to (i) pay Ms. Cormier as severance her annual base salary in effect on the
date of termination for a period of six months, (ii) pay a lump sum bonus payment equal to her target bonus
for the current ﬁscal year pro rated to the date of termination, (iii) pay any unpaid bonus from the prior fiscal
year, {iv) pay-all legal fees and expenses incurred by Ms..Cormier in seeking to obtain or enforce any right
provided by the Separation Agreement, and (v) reimburse Ms. Cormier for COBRA payments for health and
welfare (benefits continuation if she elects COBRA coverage for a period of six months. Ms. Cormier will not
be entitled to the foregomg benefits if an equivalent benefit is received by her from another employer during
the six month perlod following her termination. ... . . . ' o , ,
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The Separation' Agreement'also provides' that following a change of ¢ontrol (as defined) of NaviSite; all
options and shares of réstricted stock issued-to-Ms. Cormier under NaviSite’s Amended and Restated 2003
Stock Incentive Plan or any other NaviSite stock incentive p!an will become exerc:lsable and vested in full on
the date of the change of control. :

. vl R j,ll'. |. Yyt Y

NaviSite’s obligations to provide the forgoing benefits is subject to the effectiveness of a general waiver
and release from Ms. Cormier in favor of NaviSite, its directors, officers, employees, representatives, agents
and affiliates in a form satisfactory to NaviSite.

On October 24, 2006, we entered into a Bonus Letter with Ms, Cormier detailing our 2007 Plan.
Ms. Cormier’s compensation under the 2007 Plan includes a fiscal 2007 base salary of $190,000, a target
incentive bonus of $55,000 and an over-achievement bonus opportunity of $25,000, Payment of the incentive
bonus and the over-achievement bonus'is dcpendem on the Company achieving certain financial goals as
established by the Board of Directors.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act requires NaviSite's directors, executive officers and persons who own
more than 10% of a registered class of NaviSite’s equity securities (collectively, “Reporting Persons™) to file
reports of beneficial ownership and changes in beneficial ownership with the SEC. Based solely upon review
of copies of such reports, or other written representations from Reporting Persons, NaviSite believes that,
during the fiscal year ended July 31, 2006, all Reporting Persons complied with all applicable requirements of
Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act, except that Andrew Ruhan reported one day late the receipt of a stock
option for 50,000 shares of common stock granted on September 27, 2005,

Annual Report on Form 10-K

Concurrently with this Proxy Statement, NaviSite is sending a copy of its 2006 Annual Report on
Form 10-K without exhibits to all of its stockholders of record as of October 23, 2006. The 2006 Annual
Report contains NaviSite’s audited consolidated financial statements for the fiscal year ended July 31, 2006.

A copy of NaviSite’s Annual Report on Form 10-K (with all exhibits) for the fiscal year ended July 31,
2006 filed with the SEC may be accessed from the SEC’s website {(www.sec.gov) or may be obtained without
charge upon writien request to NaviSite, Inc., 400 Minuteman Road, Andover, Massachusetts 01810, Attention:
Investor Relations.

Other Matters

The Board of Directors does not know of any other matters which may come before the Annual Meeting.
However, if any other matters are properly presented to the meeting, it is the intention of the persons named in
the accompanying proxy to vote, or otherwise act, in accordance with their judgment on such matters.
Discretionary authority for them to do so is contained in the enclosed proxy card.

An adjournment of the Annual Meeting may be made from time to time by the chairman of the Annual
Meeting or by approval of the holders of shares representing a majority of the votes present in person or by
proxy at the Annual Meeting, whether or not a quorum exists. In their discretion, the proxies named in the
proxy card are authorized to vote upon any adjournment of the Annual Meeting. However, no proxies voted
against Proposal No. 2 will be voted in favor of adjournment of the Annual Meeting for the purpose of
soliciting additional proxies with respect to any such proposal.

Stockholder Proposals

Proposals of stockholders intended to be presented in NaviSite's proxy statement and form of proxy for
the 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders in accordance with Rule 14a-8 under the Exchange Act
(“Rule 14a-8"), must be received by NaviSite no later than July 13, 2007 in order to be incluaded in NaviSite's
proxy statement and form of proxy relating to that meeting.
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l
Under the By- Laws proposals of stockholders intended to be submitted for a formal vote at NaviSite’s
2007 Annual Meetmg of Stockholders (other than proposals intended to be included,in NaviSite’s proxy
statement and form’ qf proxy in accordance with Rule 14a-8) may be made only by a stockholder of record
who has given notice of the proposal to the Secretary of NaviSite at its principal executive offices no earlier ,
than September 16, 2007 and no later than October 1, 2007.
" . | .

i
v o

By order of the Board of Directors,
— Mty Lot

MoniQuE CORMIER |
Secretary

November 1, 2006
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a APPENDIX I

NAVISITE, INC.
. AUDIT COMMITTEE CHARTER

1. PURPOSE

The purpose of the Audit Commmee is to assist the Board of Dlrectors in fulfilling its oversight
responsibilities by reviewing the financial information which will be provided to the stockholders and others,
reviewing the systems of internal controls which management and the Board of Directors have established,
selecting and reviewing the performance of independent auditors, and overseeing the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting processes and the audits of the Company’s financial statements.

The Audit Committee will fulfill these responsibilities by carrying out the activities enumerated in
Section 3 of the Charter. The Audit Committee shali be given full and direct access 1o the Company’s
management and independent auditors as necessary to carry out these responsibilities. However, the Audit
Committee’s function is one of oversight only-and shall not relieve the Company’s management of its
resp0n51blltt1es for preparing financial statements which accurately and falrly present the Company’s financial
results and condition, or the responsibilities of the, independent auditors relating 1o lhe audit or review of
financial statements. .,

The independent auditors” ultimate responsibility is to the Board of Directors and the Audit Committee,
as representatives of the stockholders. These representatives have the ultimate authority to select, evaluate and,
where appropriate, replace the independent auditors. :

+

2. COMPOSITION OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE - '

The Audit Committee shall be compnsed of not less than three directors, each of whom will be
mdependent as required by Section 10A(m) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the
“Exchange Act™), any rules and regulations promulgated thereunder by the Securities and Exchange Commis-
sion (the “SEC”), and the applicable rules of NASDAQ. Members of the Audit Committee shall be appointed
by the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors may remove members of the Audit Committee from such
committee, with or without cause. The compensatlon of Audit Committee members shall be as determined by
the Board .of D|rectors

.
T

All members of the Audit Committee shall be able to read and understand fundamental financial
statements, including a balance sheet, income statement and cash flow statement, At least one member of the
Committee shall have past employment experience in finance or accounting, requisite professional certification
in accounting, or any other comparable experience or background which results in the individual’s financial
sophistication, including being or having been a chief executive officer, chief financial officer or other senior
officer with financial aversight responsibilities. :

3. RESPONSIBILITIES AND DUTIES

To fulfill its responsibilities and duties, the Audit Committee shall:

1. Review annually the Audit Committee Charter for a(iequacy and recommend any changes to the
Board.

2. Review the significant accounting principles, policies and practices followed by the Company in
accountmg for and reporting its financial resulls of operatmns in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles (“GAAP”)

3. Review the ﬁnanc1al investment .md risk management policies followed by the Company in
operating its business activities, . . ‘
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4. Review fand discuss with the Company’s management and independent auditor the Company’s
audited financial statements, including the matters about which Statement on Auditing Standards No. 61
(Codification of Statements on Auditing Standards, AU §380) requires discussion.

5. Consider whether it will recommend to the Board of Directors that the Company’s audited

financial statements be included in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K.
, A

" ' 6. Prepare)for inclusion where necessary in a proxy or information statement of the Company
relating to an annual meeting of security holders at which directors are to be elected (or special meeting
.or written consents in lieu of such meetmg) the, report descnbed in Item 306 of Regulation S-K.

7. Rev1ew -any management letters or internal control reports prepared by the independent aud:tors
or the Company s internal auditors and responses to prior management letiers, and review with the .
independent audltors the Company’s internal financial controls. .- - |

8. Reviewthe effectiveness of the independent audit effort, including approval of the scope of, and
fees charged in|connection with, the annual audit, quarterly reviews and any non-audit services being

provided. ! ,

9. Be dlrectly responsible for the appointment, determination of the compensatlon for, retention and
oversight of lheI work of the independent auditors employed to conduct the audit (including resolution of
disagreements between the independent auditors and management regarding financial reporting) or other
audit, review or attest services. The independent auditors shall report directly to the Audit Committee.

10. Pre-approve all audit services and permissible non-audit services by the independent auditors, as
set forth in Secuon 10A of the Exchange Act and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder by the
SEC. The Audlt Committee may establish pre-approval policies and procedures, as permitted by
Section 10A 0f| the Exchange Act and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder by the SEC, for-
the engagement of independent auditors to render services to the Company, including but not limited to ?
policies that w?u]d allow the delegation of pre-approval authority to one or more members of the Audit
Commltlee prov1ded that any pre-approvals delegated to one or more members of the Audnt Commlttee

are reported to|the Audit Committee at ltS next schcduled meetlng - .
11. Review the hiring policies for any employees or former employees of the independent auditors.

12. ObLam on an annual basis a formal written statement from the mdependent auditors dehneatmg
all relauonshlps between the mdependem auditors and the Company consistent with Independence
Standards Board Standard No. 1, and review and discuss with the independent auditors all significant
relationships tﬁe'gndependent auditors have with the Company which may affect their independence. The

. Audit Committ;ee is responsible for ensuring the independence of the independent -auditors.

13. For each of the first three fiscal quarters and at year end, at'an Audit Committee meeting review
with managem‘em the financial results, the proposed earnings press release and formal ‘guidance which the
Company may’plan to offer, and review with the independent auditors the results of their review of the
interim financial information and audit of the annual financial statements.

14, Revmw management’s analysis of any significant accounting issues,.changes, estimates, judg-
ments or unusyal items relating to the financial statements and the selection, application and effects of
critical accounting policies applied by the Company (including an analysis of the effect of alternative
GAAP methods) and review with the independent auditors the reports on such subjects delivered pursuant

- to Section lOA(k) of the Exchange Act and the rules and regulauons promulgated thereunder by the SEC.

15. Follolwing completion of the annual audit, review separately with the independent auditors and
management aJny significant difficulties encountered during the course of the audit. ‘

16. Engage and determine funding for such independent professional advisers and counsel as the
Audit Committee determines are appropriate to carry out its functions hereunder. The Company shall
provide appropriate funding to the Audit Committee, as determined by the Audit Committee; for payment
of (a) compen:s.ation to the independent auditors for services approved by the Audit Committee,

!
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(b) compensation to any outside advisers retained by the Audit Committee, and {c) ordinary administra-
tive expenses of the Audit Committee that are necessary or appropriate in carrying out its duties.

17. Report 10 the Board on a regular basis on the major events covered by the Audit Committee and
make recommendations to the Board and management concerning these matters.

18. Perform any other activities consistent with this Charter, the Company’s Bylaws and governing
law as the Audit Committee or the Board deems necessary or appropriate, including but not limited to the
Company’s legal and regulatory compliance.

19. Approve all related-party transactions, as defined by applicable rules of NASDAQ), to which the -
Company is a party.

20. Establish procedures for {a) the receipt, retention and treatment of complaints received by the
Company regarding accounting, internal accounting controls or auditing matters, and (b) the confidential,
anonymous submission by employees of concerns regarding questionable accounting or auditing matters.

4. AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETINGS

The Audit Committee shall meet on a regular basis at least four (4) times each year, and will hold special

meetings as circumstances require. At all Audit Committee meetings a majority of the total number of
members shall constitute a quorum. Minutes shall be kept of each meeting of the Audit Committee. The
timing of the meetings to be scheduled for an upcoming fiscal year shall be determined by the Audit
Committee prior to the beginning of such fiscal year. A calendar of proposed meetings will be reviewed by the
Audit Committee at the same time as the annual Audit Committee Charter review. The calendar shall include
appropriate meetings to be held separately with representatives of the independent auditors and management,
including a meeting to conduct the reviews required under Section 3.15 above. In addition, the Audit
Committee will meet at any time that the independent auditors or management believe communication to the
Audit Committee is required.

Approved by the Board of Directors of NaviSite, Inc. on October 17, 2003.
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